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chairman’s letter

To MetLife's Shareholders:

The attributes that define the Metlife brand and reputation —trustworthy, financially strong and opti-
mistic, to name a few—were clearly reinforced in 2003 by the positive results we generated across the
entire organization. As a fellow shareholder, | am pleased to report that MetLife made sirong progress in
2003 as we continued to implement our business strategy, grow our diverse businesses and, ultimately,
position our company for continued, tong-term growth.

The marketplace for financial services is extremely competitive, and Metl.ife continues to be a leader.
In addition tc being the largest fife insurer in the United States, we are ranked number oneg in most group
product areas, including life insurance, automobile and homeowners insurance and long-term care. But
more than anythmg, as a leader, we undoubtedly play a significant role in millions of people's lives. We also know that MetLife does
much more than help its clients grow or protect their financial future. We are helping millions of individuals live a life of significance,
enjoying the things that matter most because we have helped them build financial freedom.

> Delivering Strong, Positive Results

After three years of a broad, economic slowdown, in 2003 we witnessed improvements in both the credit and equity markets. At the
same time, while interest rates remained at historic lows, the S&P 500 index was up 26% for the year. Against this backdrop, Meilife
delivered $2.22 billion in net income during the year—a 38% increase over 2002's results. Also in 2003, assets under management grew
by 17% to $350.2 bilion; Individual annully deposits grew 42% to $11.2 biilion; and total premiums and fees increased 9% to
$23.2 billion.

These positive results clearly demonstrate both our commitment and ability to deliver value and growth to MetlLife's shareholders. In
addition to top line growth across the enterprise, our diverse businesses increased sales, improved operating efficiencies and continued
to leverage resources, improving our ability to perform—today and many years into the future. '

Metlife’s financial strength continues to be augmented by business segments that have established leadership posmons and a
strong track record in the marketplace.

With 88 of the FORTUNE 100 as clients and a 13% return on equity, Metlife’'s Institutional Business segment has sustained strong
growth. In 2003, we further expanded and enhanced our institutional market position with the acqguisition of John Hancock's group life
insurance pusiness and the pending acquisition of the long-term care business of TIAA-CREF. At the same time, our existing group life
insurance business continued to outpace the market as premiums and fees reached $5.4 hillion in 2003.

On the retall side, our Individual Businegss segment not only sharpened its business focus, but also experienced significant growth in
key areas. In 2003, MetlLife investors Group, which distributes MetLife products through banks and naticnal and regional independent
broker/dealers, achieved annuity deposits of $6.4 billion in 2003—%2.9 billion more than in 2002. Including annuity deposits from
Meilife Financial Services and New England Financial, total annuity deposits were $11.2 billion for the year. At the same time, our
Metlife Financial Services and New England Financial distribution channels continued to focus on expense management, future sales
growth and improving profitability.

During the year, MetlLife Bank, which was formed in 2001, surpassed $1 billion in deposits. Moving forward, the bank will play an
important role in the MetLife enterprise. In the first quarter of 2004, we launched a promotional campaign to bring more new business to
the bank and we continue to leverage the bank’s offerings among our Individual and Institutional distribution channels.

At Metlife Auto & Home, the 13th largest provider of personal lines property and casualty insurance in the U.S. by written premium,
record net income of $157 million was achieved in 2003 and Auto & Home's combined ratio was 99.7% at year end.

MetLife International played an important role in our progress in 2003. We continued to focus on growing our business in significant
emerging markets. Like other areas of Metlife, we alsc created a common platform of support for International to enhance customer
service, create efficiencies and build a global Metlife brand. We successfully integrated our Mexican companies and launched MetLife
Mexico, the largest life insurance company in that country. We formed a joint venture company with Capital Airports Holding Company to
begin business in Beijing, China, where sales are expected to begin in the first quarter of 2004, After performing disciplined analysis, we
decided to exit the Insurance markets in Spain, Portugal and Poland-—countries that were not part of our strategic focus.

> Effective Capital Management

in addition to maintaining strong, top line growth in our business segments, we have continued to effectively manage our capital. This
effort, which has been ongoing since the initial public offering, has enabled us to preserve Metlife’s financial strength and has resulted in
increases in Metlife's book value, risk-based capital ratio and operating return on equity.

In November, we leveraged our strong credit ratings as we completed a $200 million retall offering of 5.875% 30-year senior noles
and a $500 million institutional offering of 5.00% 10-year senior notes. The retail offering was different from our prior debt offerings in that
it was targeted directly to retail investors, which will enable MetlLife to attract a broader and more diverse base of investors. At the same
time, we resumed ouwr common stock repurchase program and, in the fourth quarter of 2003, repurchased an additional three miilion
shares. We also declared an annual stock dividend of $0.23 per common share—~a 10% increase from the 2002 annual dividend.

In 2003, we generated nearly $12 billion in net investment income while adhering to our investment principles of rigorous asset-
liability management, through risk management and portfolio diversification in managing MetLife's $222 billion investment portfolic. We




also capitalized on our strength in the real estate market by producing significant gains through the sale of several high-profile real estate
properties, including 11 Madison Avenue in New York City and One California Plaza in Los Angeles. And as of December 31, 2003, there
were an estimated $3.6 billion of unrealized gains in the real estate portfolio. '

> Driving High Standards of Performance

Clearly, strong performance is a priority for MetLife and the progress we have made to date is due to the commitment of our talented
and diverse professionals. Working together, our strong business leaders and knowledgeable associates have driven our growth
initiatives, eliminated redundancies and created operating efficiencies across the entire MetLife enterprise.

In addition to instituting clear performance management metrics at Metlife, we have created a sense of partnership throughout the
organization. Due in part to performance management, our businesses are generating increasingly better results and our employees are
directly compensated in line with our pay for performance philosophy..In addition to improved business performance, in 2003 we
successfully retained 94% of all our top performers and 97% of our top performing officers.

Not only is this an exciting time to be at MetLife, but it's also a time for those who are associated with this company to feel very
proud. MetLife is committed to upholding highly ethical business principles and continues to place great importance on meeting equally
high corporate governance standards. :

In 2003 and in the first quarter of 2004, we added four new independent members to the Metlife board, which is comprised of
talented and experienced leaders who, collectively, bring a diverse breadth and wealth of experience to the company. Every director not
only acts in the best interests of Metlife’s stockholders, but also is committed to ensuring that the right corporate governance controls
and procedures are in place. As of January 21, 2004, MetLife had taken all steps necessary to meest or exceed all of the New York Stock
Exchange guidelines. And all directors who sit on the company’s Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees meet the indepen-
dence requirements of the NYSE.

Because Metlife believes that empioyees’ and directors’ financial interests should be aligned with those of stockholders, directors
received 50% of their compensation in Metlife stock. In addition, in 2003, stock ownership guidelines were instituted for every officer.
Everyone from the vice president level to the CEO will be required to achieve certain equity ownership requirements over the next few
years.

> A Solid Position for Continued Growth

Metlife has a long, proud history and we remain committed 0 preserving that legacy as we simultaneously develcp innovative
products and solutions that will enable us to capitalize on opportunities for future growth.

We have made significant progress since our initial public offering in 2000. And this is just the beginning of what we believe we will be
able to accomplish. As we move forward in 2004, we have some exciting plans in place to grow our businesses, launch new initiatives
and deliver valuable, long-term solutions that can help our customers meet their financial goals.

We have the ability to do all of this because of our highly professional staff, experienced leaders, strong financials and, most
important, our positive outlook for the future of MetlLife and the millions of customers who rely on us to deliver on our promises.

Thank you for your continued support of our efforts.

Sincerely,

A

Robert H. Benmosche
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
March 22, 2004




Cautionary Note Regarding 'Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report, including the Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condttion and Resulis of Operations, contains statements
which constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements relating to
trends in the operations and financial resuits and the business and the products of the Registrant and its subsidiarigs, as well as other statements
including words such as “anticipate,” “belfieve,” “plan,” “estimate,” “expect,” "intend” and other similar expressions. “MetlLife” or the "Company" refers
to MetLife, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries, including Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“Metropolitan
Life"). Forward-looking statements are made based upon management’s current expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their
potential effects on the Company. Such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance.

Actual results may differ materially from those included in the forward-looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties including, but not
limited to, the following: () changes in general economic conditions, including the performance of financial markets and interest rates; (i) heightened
competition, including with respect to pricing,. entry of new competitors and the development of new products by new and existing competitors;
{iiiy unanticipated changes In industry trends; (iv) MetLife, Inc.'s primary reliance, as a holding company, on dividends from its subsidiaries to meet debt
payment obligations and the applicable regulatory restrictions on the ability of the subsidiaries to pay such dividends; (v) deterioration in the experience of
the "closed block” established in connection with the reorganization of Metropolitan Life; (vi) catastrophe losses; (vii) adverse results or other
consequences from litigation, arbitration or regulatory investigations; (viil regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for,
the Company's products or sernvices; (ix) downgrades in the Company's. and its affiliates’ claims paying ability, financial strength or credit ratings;
(%) changes In rating agency policies or practices; (xi) discrepancies between actual claims experience and assumptions used in setling prices for the
Company's products and establishing the liabilities for the Company’s obligations for future policy benefits and claims; (xii) discrepancies between actual
experience and assumptions used in establishing liabilities related to other contingencies or obligations; (xii) the effects of business disruption or
economic contraction due 1o terorism or other hostililes; (xiv) the Company's ability 1o identify and consummate on successiul terms any future
acquisitions, and to successfully integrate acduired businesses with minimat disruption; and (xv) other risks and uncertainties described from time to time
in Metlife, Inc.’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission,.including its S-1 and S-3 registration statements.. The Company specifically
disclaims any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise.

Selected Flnanc:al Data

. The fonowmg table sets forth selected consoclidated financial information for the Company. The selected consolidated financial information for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2002, and 2001 and at December 31, 2003 and 2002 has been derived from the Company's audited consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere herain, The selected consolidated financial information for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999 and
at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 has been derived from the Company's audited consolidated financial statements not included elsewhere herein.
The following information should be read in conjunction with and is qualified in its entirety by the information contained in "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,™ and the consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere herein. Some previously
reported amounts have been reclassified to conform with the presentation at and for the year ended December 31, 2003,

For the Years Ended December 31, -
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
{Dollars in millions)

Statements of Income Data

Revenues:
=01 $20,673 $19,077 $17,212 $16,317 $12,084
Universal fife and investment-type product policy fees ... . 2,496 2,147 1,889 1,820 1,437
Net investment INCome(l) . ... S 11836 11,281 11,187 10,986 19,436
OtNEr rVENUES . oot e e 1,342 1,332 1,507 2,229 1,861
Net investment gains (losses)(N@)(BN7) .o e (358) (751) (579) (390) (70)
Total revenues@)B) ... ..ot C......... 35789 33066 31,216 30,962 24,748
Expenses: . ‘ .
Policyholder benefts and ClamS(2)7) o o 20,848 19,5623 18,454 16,803 - 13,100
Interest credited to policynolder account balances ...l 3,035 2,950 3,084 2,935 2,441
Policyholder dividends . ... e 1,975 1,942 2,086 1,919 1,680
Rayments to former Canadian policyholders(5). ... ... - — — 327 -
Demutualization COStS ..o e — L= — 230 260
Other expenses( )(2)(8} .............. S PP 7.301 7,015 7,022 7,401 8,210
Total expenses(4)(6) ............... I B 33,15¢ 31,430 30,646 29,705 23,701
income from continuing operations before provision for mcome faxes ... . 2,630 1,636 570 1,257 1,047
Provision for income taxes(1)0) .. ... o 887 502 204 405 511
Income from continuing OPErations ... ...\ .o e 1,043 1,134 366 852 536
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes(1) ................ o 300 471 107 101 81
Income before cumulative effect of change inaccounting .. ... 2,243 1,606 473 953 617
Cumulative effect of change in accour\tmg, net of income TEXES .. (26) — - — —
Netincome.................. P . S $ 2,217 $1605 B 473 $ 953 $ 617
Net income after April 7, 2000 (date of demutualization). ... oo $ 1,173

) MetLife, Inc. 1




At December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Doltars in miilions})

Balance Sheet Data

Assets:
General 8CCoUNt BSSETS . . v\ttt e $251,085 $217,733  $194,256 $183,812 $160,291
Separate 80C0oUNT ASSBIS . o v e e 75,756 59,693 62,714 70,250 © 64,041
Tl BSSBES . . vttt e $326,841 $277,426 $256970  $254,162  $2025,232
Liabilities:
Life and health policyholder liabilties(10) ........ .. oo i i, $176,628 $162,569 $148,395 $140,040 $122,637
Property and casualty policyhclder liabifities(10) ...................... 2,843 2,673 2,610 2,659 2,318
Short-term debt .. .. 3,642 1,161 355 1,085 4,180
long-termdebt.. ... ... P 5703 4,425 3,628 2,400 2,494
Other labilities . . .o 41,020 28,255 21,950 20,348 14,972
Separate account liabitities .. .. .. B P 75,756 59,693 62,714 70,250 64,941
Total abilities . . .o 305,602 258,776 239,852 236,683 211,542
Company-obligated mandatorily redeermable securities of subsidiary trusts. . — 1,265 1,256 1,090 —
Stockholders’ Equity: :
Common stock, at par value(11) ... 8 8 8 8 -
Additional paid-in capital{11) ... 14,997 14,968 14,966 14,826 —
Retained eamings(T1) . ..ot e 4,193 2,807 1,349 1,021 14,100
Treasury StOCK, &l COSHTT) oot e e (835) (2,408) (1,834) 613) -
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) .. .o oo ev et 2,792 2,007 1,673 1,047 410)
Total StoCKNOIdErs' U . vt e 21,149 17,385 16,062 16,389 13,680
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ... viiiei i $326,841 $277,426 $256,970 $254,162 $225,232
At or for the Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)
Other Data
N NCOME ottt e et e 3 2217 $ 1,605 $ 473 3 953 5 817
Retum on egUIY(12) e e 13.1% 10.8% 3.2% 6.5% 4.5%
Total assets under management(13}. ... oo $350,235  $299,187  $282,486  $301.3256  §373,612

Income from Continuing Operations Available to Common
Sharehoiders Per Share Data(14)

Basic @amings par Share . ... o $ 260 $ 161 $ 048 & 142 N/A

Diluted 8amMiNgs PEr ShAMS . . ...\ttt e $ 257 3 166 & 048 $ 140 N/A
Income from Discontinued Operations Per Share Data(14)

Basic eamings Per Share . .. ..o o $  0.41 $ 067 $ 014 % 010 N/A

Diluted GAMINGS PO SNArS . .ot et e e e $ 040 $ 065 $ 014 $ 009 N/A
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Per Share Data(14) :

Basic eamings Per Share . ... ...t $ ©04 % — $ — $ — N/A

Diluted eamings D8I SNArS . . ..o\ e e et e $ 003 & — $ — $ — N/A
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders Per Share Data(14)

BaSIC GAMINGS DEF SNAIS . . vt e ettt e et e $ 298 § 228 $ 064 B 182 N/A

Diluted 8amings DEr SNArS. ... ..o\t $ 204 $. 220 $ 062 3§ 149 N/A

$ 0.21 $ 020 $ 020 N/A

Dividends Declared Per Share ..................................... $ 023

(1) In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS™) No. 144, Accounting for the impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, income related to real estate sold or classified as held-for-sale for transactions inttiated on or after January 1, 2002 is presented as
discontinued operations. The following table presents the components of income from discontinued operations:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in millions)

Net Vesiment NCOME . ... vvveeeeeei ... R $ 52 $160 $169 $150 $128
Net investment gains (losses) ......... e 421 582 — — —
Ol TBVENUES .« oo e 473 742 169 159 128
INtErest BXDBNSE . .. 1 1 — — -
Provision for INCOME taXES . . . .. ittt e e e 172 270 62 58 47
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes............ $ 300 $471 $107 $101 $ 81
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(2) Investment gains and losses are presented net of related policyholder amourts. The amounts netted against investment gains and losses are the

following:
For the Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
{Dollars in millions)
Gross invastment gains (I0SSES) .« .ot v v vt e $573) 3896 713 B444)  $(137)
Less amounts allocated from: '
Deferred policy aCqUISIION COSIS . vt 31 ©) (25) 385 46
Participating Contracts ... oot e 40 ) - (126) 21
Policynolder dividend obligation. ... ... o 144 157 1869 85 —
TOtal L e 215 145 134 54 67
Net investment gains (J0SSES) ..o v v vt 53580 751 HB7Y  H390) % (70

Investment gains and losses have been reduced by (i) amortization of DAC, to the extent that such amartization results from investment gains and
losses, (i) adjustments to participating contractholder accounts when amounts equal to such investment gains and losses are applied to the
contractholder's accounts, and (i) adjustments to the policynolder dividend obligation resulting from investment gains and losses. This presentation
may not be comparable to presentations made by other insurers.

(3) Net investment gains and losses presented include scheduled periodic settliement payments on derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended, of $84 million, $32 milion and
$24 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

{4) Includes the following combined financial statement data of Conning Corporation (“Conning”), which was sold in 2001 and the Company’s
controlling Interest in Nvest Companies, L.P. and its affliates ("Nvest"), which was sold in 2000:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2001 2000 1999

—(Dollars in miilions)
TOAI TEVENUBS v v v vttt et et e ettt et e e e $32 8605 $655
TOMA EXDBNSES . -+ ot e e e $33  $580  $603

As a result of these sales, investment gains of $25 million and $663 million were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

In July 1998, Metropolitan Life sold a substantial portion of its Canadian operations to Clarica Life Insurance Company (“Clarica Life”). As part of that
sale, a largs block of policies in effect with Metropolitan Life in Canada were transferred to Clarica Life, and the holders of the transferred Canadian
policies became policynolders of Clarica Life. Those transferred policyholders were no longer policyholders of Metropolitan Life and, therefore, were
not entitied 1o compensation under the plan of recrganization. However, as a resutt of a commitment made in connection with obtaining Canadian
regulatory approval of that sale and in connection with the demutualization, in 2000, Metropolitan Life's Canadian branch made cash payments to
those who were, or were deemed to be, holders of these transferred Canadian policies. The payments were determined in a manner that is
consistent with the treatment of, and fair and equitable to, eligible policyholders of Metropolitan Uife.

Included in total revenues and total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 are $421 milion and $358 milion, respectively, related to
Aseguradora Hidalgo S.A., which was acquired in June 2002. Included in total revenues and total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2000
are $3,738 million and $3,561 million, respectively, related to GenAmerica, which was acquired in January 2000.

(7) Policyholder benefits and claims exclude ($184) million, ($150) million, {$159) million, $41 million, and ($21) million for the years ended Decem-
ber 31, 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, of adjustments to participating contractholder accounts and changes in the policyholder
dividend obligation that have been netted against net investment gains and losses as such amounts are directly related to such gains and losses.
This presentation may not be comparable to presentations made by other insurers,

(8) Other expenses exclude ($31) milion, $5 milion, $25 million, ($85} million, and ($46) milion for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001,
2000 and 1999 respectively, of amortization of DAC that have been netted against net investment gains and losses as such amounts are directly
refated 1o such gains and losses. This presentation may not be comparable to presentations made by other insurers.

{9} Provision for income taxes includes ($145) million and $125 milion for surplus tax (credited) accrued by Metropolitan Life for the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively, Prior to its demutualization, Metropolitan Life was subject t© surplus tax imposed on mutual life
insurance companies under Section 808 of the Internal Revenue Code.

(10) Policyhoider liablities include future policy benefits and other policyholder funds. Life and health policyholder liabilities also include policyholder
account balances, policyholder dividends payable and the policyholder dividend obligation.

(11) For additional information regarding these items, see Notes 1 and 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(12) Retum on equity is defined as net income divided by average total equity, excluding accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

(13) Includes MelLife's general account and separate account assets managed on behalf of third parties. Includes $21 bilion of assets under
management managed by Conning at December 31, 2000, which was soid in 2001. Includes $133 billion of assets under management managed
by Nvest at December 31, 1899 which was sold in 2000.

(14) Based on eamings subsequent to the date of demutualization. For additional information regarding net income per share data, see Note 16 of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For purposes of this discussion, the terms "MetLife” or the "Company” refers to Metlife, Inc., a Delaware corporation {the “Holding Company”), and
its subsidiaries, including Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (‘Metropolitan Life"). Following this summary is a discussion addressing the consolidated
results of operations and financial condition of the Company for the periods indicated. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company's
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere herein.

Economic Capital

Beginning in 2003, the Company changed its methodology of allocating capital to its business segments from Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") to
Economic Capital. Prior (¢ 2003, the Company’s business segments’ allocated equity was primarily based on RBC, an internally developed formula
based on applying a multiple to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners Statutory Risk-Based Capital and included certain adjustments in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). Economic Capital is an internally developed risk
capital model, the purpose of which s to measure the risk in the business and to provide a basis upon which capital is deployed. The Economic Capital
mode! accounts for the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in Metlife's businesses. This is in contrast to the standardized regulatory RBC
formula, which is not as refined in its risk calculations with respect to the nuances of the Company's businesses.

The change in methodology is being applied prospectively. This change has and will continue to Impact the level of net investment income and net
income of each of the Company's business segments. A portion of net Investment income is credited 1 the segments based on the level of allocated
equity. This change in methodology of allocating equity does not impact the Company’s consolidated net investment income or net income.

The following table presents actual and pro forma net investment income with respect to the Company's segments for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001. The amounts shown as pro forma reflect net investment income that would have been reported in these years had the
Company allocated capital based on Economic Capital rather, than on the basis of RBC.

Net (nvestment income
For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001
Actual Pro forma Actual Pro forma

X {Dollars in millions}
INSHIULONAL. . i $ 3918 $398 $3967 $ 4040
INdividual .. ..o e 8,244 6,185 6,165 6,078
AUID & HOME . 1ottt e e e 177 160 200 184
International . . ... ... oo RS AP 461 424 267 251
ReinsuUrance . ................ N 421 382 390 354
Asset Management ................ P 59 71 7 89
Comporate & Oher ... .o (19 89 127 191
TOW . e e C®11,267 0 $11.281  $11,187 11,187

Acquisitions and Dispositions ‘ v

In September 2003, a subsidiary of the Company, Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated ("RGA™), announced a coinsurance agreement
under which it assumed the traditional U.S. life reinsurance business of Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America. The transaction closed during
the fourth quarter of 2003 with an effective date retroactive to July 1, 2003, The transaction added approximately $278 bilion of life reinsurance in-force,
$246 million of premium and $11 million of income befare income tax expense, excluding minority interest expense, to the fourth quarter of 2003,

In June 2002, the Company acquired Aseguradora Hidalgo S.A. ("Hidalgo"), an insurance company based in Mexico with approximately $2.5 billion
in assets as of the date of acquisition. The Company's existing Mexica subsidiary and Hidalgo now operate as a combined entity under the name Metlife
Mexico.

In November 2001, the Company acquired Compenia de Seguras de Vida Santander S.A. and Compania de Reaseguros de Vida Scince Re S.A,,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Santander Central Hispano in Chile. These acquisitions marked Metlife's entrance into the Chilean insurance market.

In July 2001, the Company completed its sale of Conning Corporation (“Conning'), an affiliate acquired in the acquisition of GenAmerica Financial
Corporation ("GenAmerica”) in 2000, Conning specialized in asse‘[ management for insurance company ‘mvest‘merﬁ portfolios and investment research.

Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAARP reguires management to adopt accourmng policies and make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. The critical accounting. policies, estimates and related judgments
underlying the Company’s consolidated financial statements are summarized below. In applying these policies, management makes subjective and
complex judgments that frequently require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain. Many. of these policies, estimates and related judgments
are common In the insurance and financial services industries; others are specific 1o the Company's businesses and operations.

Investments

The Company’s principal investments are in fixed maturities, mortgage loans and real estate, all of which are expossd to three primary sources of
investment risk: credit, interest rate and market valuation. The financial statement risks are those associated with the recognition of impairments and
income, as well as the determination of fair values. The assessmeant of whether impairments have occurred is based on management's case-by-case
evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors about the security issuer and uses its
best judgment in evaluaiing the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the securfty and in assessing the prospects for near-term recovery.
Inherent in management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the issuer and its future eamings potential.
Considerations used by the Company in the impairment evaluation process include, but are notlimited to: () the length of time and the extent to which the
market value has been below cost; (i) the potential for impairments of securities when the issuer is experiencing significant financial difficullies; (i) the
potential for impaiments in an entire industry sector or sub-sector; (iv) the potential for impairments in certain economically depressed geographic
locations; (v) the potential for impairments of securities where the issuer, serles of issuers or industry has suffered a catastrophic type of loss or has
exhausted natural resources; (vi) unfavorable changes in forecasted cash flows on asset-backed securities; and (Vi) other subjective factors, including
concentrations and information obtained from regulators and rating agencies. In addition, the eamings on certain investments are dependent upon market
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conditions, which could resuit in prepayments and changes in amounts to be earmed due 1o changing interest rates or equity markets. The determination
of fair values in the absence of quoted market values is based on: (i) valuation methodologies; (i) securities the Company deems to be comparable; and
(i) assumptions deemed appropriate given the circumstances. The use of different methodologies and assumptions may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts. In addition, the Company enters into certain structured investment transactions, real estate joint ventures and limited
partnerships for which the Company may be deemed to be the primary beneficiary and, therefore, may be required to consolidate such investments. The
accounting rules for the determination of the primary beneficiary are complex and require evaluation of the contractual rights and obligations associated
with each party involved in the entity, an estimate of the entity's expected losses and.expected residual retuns and the allocation of such estimates 1o
each party. ] ' .

Derivatives

The Company enters into freestanding derivative transactions primarily to manage the risk associated with variability in cash flows or changes in falr
values related 1o the Company's financial assets and ligbllities or to changing fair values. The Company also uses derivative instruments to hedge its
ourrency exposure associated with net investments in certain foreign operations, The Company also purchases investment securities, issues certain
insurance policies and engages in certain reinsurance contracts that embed derivatives. The associated financial statement risk is the volatiity in net
income which can result from (i) changes in fair value of derivatives not qualifying as accounting hedges; (i) ineffectiveness of designated hedges; and
(i) counterparty default. In addition, there is a risk that embedided derivatives requinng bifurcation are not identified and reported at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements. Accounting for derivatives is complex, as evidenced by significant authoritative” interpretations of the primary
accounting standards which continue to evoive, as well as the significant judgments and estimates involved in determining fair valug in the absence of
quoted market values, These estimates are based on valuation methodologies and assumptions deemed appropriate in the circumstances. Such
assumptions include estimated volatility and interest rates used in the determination of fair value where quoted market values are not available. The use of
different assumptions may have a material effect on' the estimated fair value amounts.

Deferred Policy Acquisition. Costs

The Company incurs significant costs in connection with acquiring new and renewal insurance business. These costs, which vary with and are
primarily refated to the production of that business, are déferred. The recovery of such costs is dependent upon the future profitability of the related
business. The amount of future profit is dependent principally on investment retums in excess of the amounts credited to policyholders, mortality,
morbidity, persistency, interest crediting rates, expenses to administer the business, creditworthiness of reinsurance counterparties and certain economic
variables, such as inflation. Of these factors, the Company anticipates that investment returns are most likely to impact the rate of amartization of such
costs. The aforementioned factors enter into management's estimates of gross marging and profits, which generally are used to amortize such costs.
Revisions to estimates result in changes to the amounts expensed in the reporting period in which the revisions are made and could result in the
impairment of the asset and a charge to income if estimated future gross margins and profits are less than amounts deferred. In addition, the Company
utilizes the reversion 1o the mean assumption, a standard industry practice, in its determination of the amortization of deferred policy acauisition costs
("DAC’), including value of business acquired {"VOBA"). This practice assumes that the expectation for long-term appreciation in equity markets is not
changed by minor short-term market fluctuations, but that it does change when large interim deviations have occurred.

Future Policy Benefits

The Company establishes liabilities for amounts payable under insurance policies, including traditional life insurance, annuities and disabllity
insurance. Generally, amounts are payable over an extended period of time and liabilities are established based on methods and underlying assumptions
in accordance with GAAP and applicable actuarial standards. Principal assumptions used in the establishment of liabilities for future policy benefits are
mortality, morbidity, expenses, persistency, investment retums and inflation.

The Company also establishes liabiliies for unpaid claims and claims expenses for property and casualty insurance. Liabilities for property and
casualty insurance are dependent on estimates of amounts payable for claims reported but not settled and claims incurred but not reported. These
estimates are influenced by historical experience and actuarial assumptions with respect to current developments, anticipated trends and risk
management strategies.

Differences between the actual experience and assumptions used in pricing these policies and in the establishment of liabilities result in variances in
profit and could result in losses.

Reinsurance . .

The Company enters into reinsurance transactions as both a provider and a purchaser of reinsurance. Accounting for reinsurance requires extensive
use of assumptions and estimates, particularly related to the future performance of the underlying business and the potential impact of counterparty credit
risks. The Company periodically reviews actual and anticipated experience compared to the aforementioned assumptions used to establish assets and
liabilities relating to ceded and assumed reinsurance and evaluates the financial strength of counterparties to its reinsurance agreements using criteria
similar to that evaluated in the security impairment process discussed previously. Additionally, for each of its reinsurance contracts, the Company must
determine if the contract provides indemnification against loss or liability relating to insurance risk, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
The Company must review all contractual features, particularly those that may limit the amount of insurance risk to which the reinsurer is subject or
features that delay the timely reimbursement of claims. If the Company determines that a reinsurance contract does not expose the reinsurer to a
reasonable possibility of a significant toss from insurance risk, the Company records the contract using the deposit method of accounting.

Litigation

The Company is a party to a number of legal actions. Given the inherent unpredictability of litigation, it is difficult to estimate the impact of litigation on
the Company's consolidated financial position. Liabiities are established when it is probable that a ioss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. Liabilities related to certain lawsuits, including the Company's asbestos-related liability, are especially difficult to estimate due to
the limitation of avallable data and uncertainty regarding numerous variables used to determine amounts recorded. The data and varigbles that impact the
assumption used to estimate the Company's asbestos-related liability include the number of future claims, the cost to resolve claims, the disease mix
and severity of disease, the jurisdiction of claims filed, tort reform efforts and the impact of any possible future adverse verdicts and thelr amounts. It is
pessible that an adverse outcome in certain of the Company's litigation, including asbestos-related cases, or the use of different assumptions in the
determination of amounts recorded could have a material effect upon the Company’s consolidated net income or cash flows in particular quarterly or
annual periods.
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Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering empioyees who meet specified eligibllity requirements. The
reported expense and liability associated with these plans requires an extensive use of assumptions which include the discount rate, expected return on
plan assets and rate of fulure compensation increases as determined by the Company. Management determines these assumptions based upon
currently available market and industry data, historical performance of the plan and its assets, and consultation with an independent consuiting actuarial
firm to aid it in selecting appropriate assumptions and valuing its related liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the Company's
aggregate projected benefit obligation may vary and include an expectation of long-term market appreciation in equity markets which is not changed by
minor short-term market fluctuations, but does change when large interim daviations occur, These assumptions used by the Company may differ
materially from actual results due to changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of the
participants. These differences may have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements and liguidity.

Results of Qperations
Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002 — The Company

Executive Summary

Metlife, Inc., through its affiliates and subsidiaries, is a leading provider of insurance and other financial services to a broad spectrum of individual
and institutional customers.: The Company offers fife insurance, annuities, automobile and homeowners insurance and mutual funds to individuals, as well
as group insurance, reinsurance, and retirement and savings products and services to corporations and other institutions. The MetLife companies serve
approximately 13 million households in the U.S. and provide benefits to approximately 37 milion employees and family members through thelr plan
sponsors including 88 of the FORTUNE 100 largest companies. MetLife, Inc. also has direct international insurance operations in 10 countries serving
approximately 8 million customers. MetlLife is organized into six business segments: Institutional, Individual, Auto & Home, International, Reinsurance and
Asset Management.

The marketplace for financial services is extremely competitive. Metlife, the largest life insurer in the United States, reported $2.2 billion in net
income and diluted eamings per share of $2.94 for the year ended December 31, 2003, In 2003, after a three-year economic slowdown, there were
improvements in both the credit and equity markets. At the same time, interest rates remained at historic lows and the S&P 500 Index was up 26% for the
year. Total premiums and fees increased to $23.2 billion, up 8% over the prior year, which primarily stems from continued sales growth across most of
the Company's segments, as well as the positive impact of the U.S. financial markets on policy fees. Assets under management grew to $350.2 billion,
up 17% over the prior year, and Individual annuity deposits grew to $11.2 billion, up 42% over the prior year. MetlLife generated over $11 bilion of net
investment income while adhering 1o rigorous asset-liability management principles and portfclio diversification. An increase in expenses year over year is
primarily attributable to employee-related expenses, including pension and postretirement benefit expense and severance, expenses associated with
strengthening the Company's distribution systems and taking action in cansaolidating office space and reducing redundancies, while continuing to invest
heavily in infrastructure. In addition, regulatory capital increased and the Company repurchased stock through its buyback program.

Industry Trends ‘

The Company’s segments continue to be influenced by a variety of industry trends and it is the Company’s belief that each of its businesses is well
positioned 1o capitalize on those trends. '

In general, the Company is seeing more employers, both large and small, outsourcing thelr benefits functions. Further, companies are offering
broader new arrays of voluntary benefits to help retain employees while adding littie to their overall benefits costs. These trends will likely continue and in
fact expand across companies of all sizes, Employers are also demanding substantial online access for their employees for various self-service functions.
This functionality requires substantial information technology investment that smaller companies will find difficult to absorb. This will put pressure on those
smaller and mid-size companies o gain scale quickly or exit the business.

In addition, alternative benefit structures, such as simple fixed benefit products, are becoming more popular as the traditional medical indemnity
products costs have continued 10 increase rapidly. These low cost fixed benefit products can provide effective catastrophic protection for high cost
ilnesses to supplement the basic health coverage provided by medical indemnity insurance.

fFrom a demographics standpoint, the bulk of the U.S. population is moving from an asset accumulation phase to an asset distribution phase.
People within ten years of retirement hold significant assets. With continually lengthening lifespans and unstructured asset distribution, the Company
believes many of these people may outlive their retirement savings and/or require long-term care. As a result, the Company expects that the demand for
retirement payout solutions with guarantees will increase dramatically over the next decade.

The combination of these trends will favor those with scale, breadth of distribution and product, ability to provide advice and financial strength to
support the long-term guarantees.
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Discussion of Results

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
P TIUI IS o e e e $20,673  $19,077 8%
Universal life and investment-type product poiicy fees ... 2,496 2,147 16%
Nt MVESIMENt MO . oo e e e e e e e 11,636 11,261 3%
OB TBYENIUES .« o o oo e e 1,342 1,332 1%
Net investment gains (losses) (net of amounts allocable from other accounts of ($215) and :

(B14B), reSPECIVEIY) .« o ottt e (358) (751) - 52%

Total revenues ....... . 85789 33,066 8%

Expenses
Policyholder benefits and claims (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains

(losses) of (3184) and ($150), respectively) ... e 20,848 19,523 7%
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ... 3,035 2,950 3%
Policyholder dividends . ... . 1,975 1,042 2%
Other expenses {excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains (losses) of ($31)

and B85, reSPECHVEIY) . .. 7,301 7,015 4%

Ot XSS oot 33,158 31,430 6%

Income from continuing operations before provision forincome taxes. . ... L. 2,630 1,636 61%
PrOVISION 0T INCOME 18XES .« v ot o e e e e e e 687 502 37%
Income from CoNtiNUING ORETaLIoNS .. oottt e e e 1,943 1,134 71%
Income from discontinued operations, net of INCOMETaxXeSs ... .ot 300 471 (36)%
Income before cumulative effect of change inaccounting ... ... o oL 2,243 1,605 40%
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of incometaxes ..., {26) —
Nt O . o o oot o e e e e e $ 2217 3 1,605 38%

Income from continuing operations increased by $809 million, or 71%, to $1,943 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from $1,134 million
in the comparable 2002 period. Income from continuing operations for the years 2003 and 2002 includes the impact of certain transactions or events
that resutt in net income not being indicative of future eamings, which are described in the applicable segment's results of operations discussions. These
iterms contributed an after-tax benefit of $159 milion in 2003 and an after-tax charge of $150 milion in 2002. Excluding the impact of these items, income
from continuing operations increased by $500 milion in 2003 compared to the prior year. Declings in after-tax net investment losses account for $220
million of this increase with the balance being contributed by the Company's operations. The decline in net investrent losses is largely attributable 1o less
credit-related losses, which is consistent with the U.S. financial market environment. The Company anticipates net investment 1osses in 2004 1o be
comparable with 2003 levels and continues to reflect a concentration of interest-related losses rather than credit-related losses.

Premiums, fees and other revenues increased 9% over the prior year primarily as a result of growth in the annuities, retirement and savings and
variable and universal life product lines. This increase stems in part ffom policy fee income eamed on annuity deposits, which were $11.2 billion in 20083,
increasing 42% from the prior year. In addition, the annulty separate account balance was $28.7 bilion at December 31, 2003, up 57% versus the prior
year end. Growth in retirement & savings is primarily attributable to higher sales in structured setilement products. Fee income from variable and universal
life products increased 12% over the prior year primarily as a result of a 25% growth in separate account balances. In addition, the coinsurance
agreement with Allianz Life in the Reinsurance segment contributed approximately 1% to the year over year increase. Partially offsetting these increases is
a decline in traditional life premiums, which is largely attributable to run off in the Company's closed block of business.

Investment margins, which represent the spread between net investment income and interest credited to policyholder account balances, remained
favorable in 2003 as the Company took appropriate crediting rate reductions in most products in an effort to keep pace with the market environment. In
several product lines, where investment margins are a substantial part of earnings, the Company still has a reasonable amount of flexibility to reduce
crediting rates further if portfolio vields were to decline from year-end 2003 levels. Investment margins in 2003 did benefit from higher than expected
levels of prepayments, a trend that is not expected to continue in 2004,

Underwriting results varied in 2003. The group life mortality ratio continues to be favorable at 92%. The individua! life mortality ratio was also solid at
88%, which includes the impact of several large claims in the variable and universal product line, some of which had lower levels of reinsurance. Group
disability's morbidity ratic increased to 98.5%, from 97.9% In the prior year but is still within management's expected range. The Auto & Home combined
ratio, which is & measure of both the loss and loss adjustment expense ratio, as well as the expense ratio, remained favorable at 97.1% excluding
catastrophes. The Company's International segment increased its loss recognition reserve in Talwan as a result of low interest rates relative 1o product
guarantees. This action resulted in a $19 million after-tax charge. ‘

Other expenses increased 4% over the prior year period primarily as a result of an increase of $133 million in pension and postretirement expenses.
As a result of contributions made to the pension plan in late 2003 and early 2004, which totaled approximately $750 million, and the stronger
performance of the pension plan assets in 2003, the Company anticipates the pension and postretirement expenses to moderate in 2004, Other
expenses in 2003 also include the impact of several actions taken by management in the fourth quarter, including lease terminations, office consolida-
tions and closures, and asset impairments. In addition, severance costs and expenses asscciated with strategic initiatives at New England Financial
contributed to the increase in expenses year over year. Also, there was an increase in many of the product lines’ volume-related expenses, which are in
line with 2003 business growth.

Net investment losses decreased by $3393 million, or 52%, to $358 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $751 milion for the
comparable 2002 period. This decrease reflects total investment losses, before offsets, of $573 million. The Company's investment gains and losses are
net of related policyholder amounts. The amounts netted against investment gains and losses are () amortization of DAC, to the extent that such
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amortization results from investment gains and losses, (i} adjustments to participating contractholder accounts when amounts equal to such investment
gains and losses are applied 1o the contracthelder's accounts, and (i) adjustments to the policyholder dividend obligation resulting from investment gains
and losses. Offsets include the amortization of DAC of $31 million and ($5) milion in 2003 and 2002, respectively, and changes in the policyholder
dividend obligation of $144 milion and $157 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively, and adjustments to participating contracts of $40 milion and
(87) million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The dollar amount of the offsets may vary disproportionately with net investment gains and losses based on
the relationship of the underlying sold securities to certain insurance products.

The Company believes its policy of netting related policyholder amounts against investment gains and losses provides important information in
evaluating its performance. Investment gains and losses are often excluded by investors when evaluating the overall financial performance of insurers.
The Company believes its presentation enables readers to easily exclude investment gains and losses and the related effects on the consolidated
statements of income when evaluating its performance. The Company’s presentation of investment gains and losses, net of policyholder amounts, may
be different from the presentation used by other insurance companies and, therefore, amounts in its consolidated statements of income may not be
comparable to amounts reported by other insurers.

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $687 milion, or 26% of income from continuing operations before provision for
income taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting, compared with $502 million, or 31%, for the comparable 2002 period. The 2003 effective
tax rate differs from the corporate tax rate of 35% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income, tax credits for investments in low income
housing, a recovery of prior year tax overpayments on tax-exempt bonds, and an adjustment consisting primarily of a revision in the estimate of income
taxes for 2002, In addition, the 2003 effective tax rate includes a reduction of the deferred tax valuation allowance related to certain foreign net operating
loss carryforwards, and tax benefits related to the sale and merger of foreign subsidiaries reflected in the International segment. The 2002 effective tax
rate differs from the corporate tax rate of 35% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income, partially offset by the inability to utiize tax
benefits on certain foreign capital losses.

Income from discontinued operations declined $171 million, or 36%, to $300 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $471 million in the
comparable prior year perlod. The decrease is primarily due to lower recognized net investment gains from real estate properties sold in 2003 as
compared to the prior year. The income from discontinued operations is comprised of net investment income and net investment gains related to
properties that the Company began marketing for sale on or after January 1, 2002. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company
recognized $421 milion and $582 millon of net investment gains, respectively, from discontinued operations related to real estate properties sold or
held-for-sale.

The Company changed its method of accounting for embedded derivatives in certain insurance products as required by new accounting guidance
which became effective on October 1, 2003, and recorded the impact as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Institutional
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Institutional segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 % Change
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues
P B IS .« . .t e e $ 9,093 $ 8245 10%
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees ... 635 624 2%
NEt INVESIMENT INCOME o ottt s e e e e e e e e e e 4,038 3,918 3%
BT VNS . ettt e e e e et et e e e e 592 602 8%
Net investment gains (losses) (net of amounts allocable from other accounts of ($89) and $6,

TESDECHVENY) .« ot e e (204) (494) 59%

TOME TBVENUES « et et e e e e e 14,154 12,902 10%
Expenses
Policyholder beneiits and claims (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains

(losses) of (B39) and 6, reSPaCHivEN) . .. oot 9,932 9,339 6%
Interest credited to policyholder account BalanCes ... e e 915 332 (2)%
Pollcynolder diVIGENAS « . .ot e 198 115 72%
BT BXDENSES - . v oo e e e e e e e e e 1,784 1,531 17%

TOtE BXPENISES . ettt et 12,829 11817 8%

Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes. ............. ot 1,325 985 35%
Provision for INCOME 1aXES . . ..o vt e e 480 347 38%
Income from CONLINUING OPEIAHONS .+ .+ vttt e ettt e et ettt 845 638 32%
iIncome from discontinued operations, net of INCOMETaXeS . oo 30 121 (75)%
Income before cumulative effect of change inaccounting . .o.oooo i 875 759 15%
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of income taxes ...t (26) —
N O . ot $ 849 $ 759 12%

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002—Institutional

The Company's Institutional segment offers a broad range of group insurance and retirement and savings products and services to corporations and
other institutions. Group insurance products are offered as either an employer-paid benefit, or as a voluntary benefit with premiums paid by the employee.
Retirerment and savings products and services include an array of annuity and investment products, as well as bundled administrative and investment
services sold to sponsors of small- and mid-sized 401(k) and other defined contribution plans.

Income from continuing operations increased by $207 million, or 32%, to $845 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $638 million for
the comparable 2002 period. Revenue growth combined with favorable underwriting resuits and interest margins contributed to the year over year
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increase. Lower net Investment losses in 2003 versus 2002 contributed $185 milion after-tax to the year over year inCrease. Favorable underwriting
experience was partially offset by an increase in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations, as well as an increase in pension and
postretirement benefit costs. In addition, the prior year period includes a $20 million after-tax benefit from the release of a previously established Yiability for
the Company’s 2001- business realignment initiatives and a $17 million after-tax benefit from the release of a previously established liability for disability
insurance-related losses from the September 11, 2001 tragedies.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $962 milion, or 7%, to $14,358 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $13,396 million for the comparable 2002 pericd. The increase is attributable to both the group insurance and the retirement and savings
product fines. Within group insurance, fife insurance premiums, and fees increased by $238 milion, or %, which is in line with management's
expectations. This increase: is attributable primarity to higher sales and favorable persistency. The late 2003 acquisition of the John Hancock block of
group life business contributed $72 millon to this increase. In addition, the long-term care, dental, and disability products experienced continued growth
at a combined rate of approximately 14%, which is in fine with management's expectations. Retirement and savings revenues increased approximatsly
12% primarily due to higher sales in the structured setlement products partially offset by the impact of a sale of a significant, single premium contract in
the second quarter of 2002, Premiums and fees from retirement and saving products are significantly influenced by large transactions and, as a result,
can fuctuate from period to period. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in revenues primarily due to a decline in retirement and savings
administrative fees from the Company's 401(K) business. This decling resuited from the exit from the large market 401(k) business in late 2001.
Consequently, revenue decreased as business was transferred to other carriers throughout 2002,

Total expenses increased by $312 million, or 8%, to $12,829 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $11,917 milion for the
comparable 2002 pericd. Policyholder-related expenses increased $659 million primarily as a function of the growth in business. The increase in
expenses is offset by favorable underwriting results in the term life insurance, dental, long-term care, and retirement and savings products. The term life
mortality incurred loss ratio, which represents actual life claims as a percentage of assumed claims incurred used in the determination of future policy
benefits, was 92% for. 2003 as compared to 93.6% in 2002. Underwiiting results declined in disability as the morbidity incurred loss ratio, which
represents actual disability claims as a percentage of assumed claims incurred used In the determination of future policy benefits, increased to 98.5% in
2003 from 97.9% in the prior year. The 2003 ratio was within management's expected range. In addition, the 2002 period includes a $28 million release
of a previously established liability for disability insurance-related losses from the September 11, 2001 tragedies. Other expenses increased by
$253 million over the prior year period. Group insurance and retirement and savings expenses increased $115 milion primarily due 1o an increass in non-
deferrable expenses associated with the aforementioned revenue growth, $77 million from an increase in pension and postretirement benefit expense,
and a $33 million increase in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations. In addition, the prior year period includes a $30 million
release of a previously established liability for the Company’s 2001 business realignment initiatives.

Individual
The following table presents consclidated financial information for the Individual segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 % Change
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues
Premiums ................ R A $ 4344 % 4,507 (4%
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees .. ... ..o 1,589 1,379 15%
Net INVESIMENt NGO L. oottt i e e e e e e 6,201 6,244 (1%
O TV IS S . . o e vt et e e e e e 407 418 3%
Net investment gains (losses) (net of amounts allocable from other accounts of ($177) and

B1AT), TeSDBCHVEIY) . vt (130) (144) (10)%

Ol TEVENUES . oo ottt ittt e e e e 12,411 12404 0%
Expenses
Policyholder benefits and claims (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains

{losses) .of ($144) and (B157), respectivaly) ... 5,183 5,220 (1%
Interest credited to policyholder accountDAlaNCes ..o 1,798 1,793 0%
POICYNOIAET GIVITENTS - .+« e e e e e e e e 1,700 1,770 (4)%
Other expenses (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains (losses) of ($33)

and B10, 18SPECHVEIY) . . oo 2,880 2,629 10%

JO Al EXPBNISES . o v oo oot et e 11,556 11,412 1%
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes. ... Ll 855 892 (14)%
Provision for INCOME taXES . .. e 284 365 (22)%
InCcome from CONtINUING ORETatIoNS . ..o\ oot e e e e e e e e 571 627 9%
Income from discontinued operations, net of INCOMEtaxes . ... 30 199 85)%
NetInCOme . ..o A $ 601 $ 826 (27)%

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002—Individual

Metlife's Individual segment offers a wide variety of protection and asset accumulation products aimed at serving the financial needs of its
custorners throughout thelr entire fife cycle. Products offered by Individual Include insurance products, such as traditional, universal and variable life
insurance and variable and fixed annuities. i addition, Individual sales representatives distribute disability insurance and long-term care insurance
products offered through the Institutional segment, investment products, such as mutual funds, as well as other products offered by the Company's other
businesses.

Income from continuing operations decreased by $56 million, or 9%, to $571 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $627 million for
the comparable 2002 period. The decrease year over year is primarily driven by an increase in expenses of $144 milion, or 1%, which is largely
attributable to an increase in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations, pension and postretirement benefit costs, an increase in
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legal-related costs and an adjustment related to certain improperly deferred expenses at New England Financial. Although revenues are essentially flat
year over year, policy fees from variable life and annuity and investment-type products grew 15% year over year. In addition, there is a slight increase in
premiums related to other traditional life products. These increases are offset by a 5% decline in premiums from the Company’s closed block business,
which consists of participating policies issued prior to the Company's demutualization. Premiums on the closed block represent approximately 80% of
this segment’s premiums for the year ended December 31, 2003,

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, decreased by $7 million, or less than 1%, t© $12,541 millicn for the year ended
December 31, 2003 from $12,548 million for the comparable 2002 period. Policy fees from variable fife and annuity and investment-type praducts grew
by 15% over the prior year period. This growth is primarily a result of an 18% increase in the average separate account balances, which is largely
attributable to improvements in the U.S. financial markets. Additionally, this increase is associated with the aging of the in-force policies, as well as an
increase in the sales of the enterprise variable annuity product through non-traditional distrioution channels. Policy fees from variable fife and annuity and
investment-type products are typically calculated as a percentage of average assets. The value of these assets can fluctuate depending on equity market
performance. This increase in policy fee income was almost entirely offset by declines in premiums and net investment income. Premiums associated
with the Company's closed block of business declined by $186 million, or 5%, which is in line with management's expectations, as this business
continues to run-off. Partially offsetting this decline is a slight increase in the other traditional life products. The decline in net investment income is mainly
dus to the change in capital allocation methodology and lower investment yields year over year.

Total expenses increased by $144 million, or 1%, to $11,556 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $11.412 milion for the
comparable 2002 pericd. Other expenses increased by $251 million over the prior year period primartly as a resutt of expenses associated with certain
efficiency initiatives and events. The most significant items include an increase of $67 milion from pension and postretirement bensfit expense, a
$48 million expense recorded in the second quarter of 2003 for an adjustment related to certain improperty deferred expenses at New England Financial,
$42 million in expenses associated with office closures and other consolidations, $42 million increase in legal-related costs, and other expenses
associated with strategic initiatives at New England Financial. Offsetting these expense increases are a decling in policyholder benefits consistent with the
aforementioned decling in the closed block and a decrease in dividends due to the reduction of the dividend scale in the fourth quarter of 2002, reflecting
the impact of the low U.S. interest rate environment on the asset portfolios supporting these policies.

Auto & Home
The following table presents consalidated financial information for the Auto & Home segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 % Change
{Dollars in millions}

Revenues
P U IS ottt e $2,908 $2,828 3%
Nt VSN NGO . ottt e e e e e e e e e e 1568 177 (11%
T TV ENUES .« . ettt et e e e e e e e e e e 32 26 23%
Net INVeStmEnt GaINS (0SS8S) . . oottt e e e (15) (46) B7)%
Ol TEVENUBS « - o e e e e e e e e e e 3,083 2,985 3%
Expenses
Policyholder benefits and Claims . . ..o oo 2,139 2,019 6%
Policynolder diVIAENdS . .. 1 - 0%
OB XN . ottt 756 793 5)%
Ot XN S oo ottt 2,896 2,812 3%
Income before provision for INCOME taxes . .. oot 187 173 8%
PrOVISION fOr INCOMIE T8XES .+ 1t ot et e e e e e e e e e 30 41 (27)%
N2 1o 0 1= T $ 157 § 132 19%

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002—Auto & Home

Auto & Home, operating through Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company and its subsidiaries, offers personal lines property and
casualty insurance directly to employees through employer-sponsored programs, as well as through a variety of retail distribution channels. Auto & Home
primarily sells autc and homeowners insurance.

Net income increased by $25 million, or 18%, to $157 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $132 milion for the comparable 2002
period. The increase In eamings year over year is mainly due to premium growth, lower investment losses and a reduction in expenses, partially offset by
adverse claims development.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $67 million, or 2%, to $3,098 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $3,031 million for the comparable 2002 period. This variance is mainly due to increases in the average eamed premium due to rate increases,
partially offset by lower investment income primarily resulting from the change in capital allocation methodology.

Total expenses increased by $84 million, or 3%, to $2,896 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $2,812 million for the comparable
2002 period. Adverse claims development related to prior accident years, resulting mostly from bodily injury and uninsured motorists claims, accounted
for $46 million of the increase in policyholder benefits. Also contributing to this increase are higher catastrophe losses of $22 million. Partially offsetiing
these increases are improved non-catastrophe homeownears claims frequencies, a reduction in the number of auto and homeowners policies in-force,
and underwriting and agency management actions. In addition, there was a $23 milion reduction in expenses resulting from the completion of the
St. Paul integration and a $35 million reduction in the cost associated . with the New York assigned risk plan. The combined ratio, excluding catastrophes,
which represents l0sses and total expenses including claims as a percentage of premiums, declined to 97.1% for the year ended December 31, 2003
versus 97.4% for the comparable 2002 period.
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International i
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Intemational segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
P MIUMIS .t $1.678 31,511 11%
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees............. e e 272 144 89 %
Net investment income ..................... e 502 461 9%
OFIBE TEVEBIIUES « ot vttt et e et e e e e e e e e e e e et e e 80 14 471 %
Net investment gains {losses) (net of amounts aliocable from other accounts of $3 and 30,
TBSPECIIVELY) .« o e 4 9 144 %
Ol VNS . . ettt e e 2,536 2,121 20%
Expenses .
Policyholder benefits and claims {excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains
{losses) of $3 and $O, respeCtivEly) . ... ot 1,454 1,388 5%
interest credited 10 policynolder account balanCes . ... ..o 143 79 81 %
Policyholder divIdENaS . . e 55 35 57 %
(1 0] 1 O G O 659 507 30%
Total expenses ....... L 2,311 2,009 15%
Income from continuing operations before provision forincomet@axes .. ... .. 225 112 101 %
Provision for iNCOMe axes. ... .. voviee v R 17 28 (39)%
=70 o] 42 A PP $ 208 & 84 148 %

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002—International

International provides life insurance, accident and health insurance, annuities and savings and retirement products to both individuals and groups,
and auto and homeowners coverage to individuals. The Company focuses on emerging markets in the Latin America and Asia/Pacific regions.

Net income increased by $124 million, or 148%, to $208 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $84 million for the comparable 2002
period. The acquisition of Hidalgo accounted for $48 milion of this increase. Also contributing to the increase in eamings during 2003 is a $62 milion
after-tax benefit from the merger of the Mexican operations and a reduction in policyholder liabilities resulting from a change in reserve meathodology, a
$12 million tax benefit in Chile and an $8 million after-tax benefit related to reinsurance treaties, These Increases are partially offset by a $19 milion after-
tax charge in Talwan refated to an increased loss recognition reserve due 1o low interest rates relative 1o product guarantess.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and fosses, increased by $402 million, or 19%, to $2,532 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $2,130 million for the comparable 2002 period, This increase is primarily due to the acguisition of Hidalgo, which accounted for $469 miflion of
the variance, partially offset by decreases in Canada of $106 million attributable to a non-recurring sale of an annuity contract and $28 million relating to
the restructuring of a pension contract from an investment-type product 10 a long-term annuity, both of which occurred in 2002, In addition, South
Korea's, Chile's and Taiwan's revenues increased by $102 million, $80 milion and $36 million, respectively, primarily due to business growth. These
increases are partialy offset by a $161 million decrease in Mexico, excluding Hidalgo. Anticipated actions taken by the Mexican govemment adversely
impacted the Insurance and annuities market and resulted in a decling in premiums in Mexico's group and individual life businesses. In addition, the
cancellation of a large broker-sponsored case at the end of 2002 and the weakening of the peso also contributed to the 2003 decline in Mexico.

Total expenses increased by $302 million, or 15%, to $2,311 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $2,009 million for the comparable
2002 period. The acquisition of Hidalgo contributed $394 million to this increase. Partially offsetting this is a decrease of $106 milion for the
aforementioned. non-recuring sale of an annuity contract and a decrease of $28 milion for the restructuring of a pension contract, both of which
occurred in 2002. In addition; South Korea's, Chile's and Taiwan's expenses increased by $95 milion, $65 milion and $64 million, respectively,
commensurate with the revenue increases in each country. Additionalty, Taiwan's expenses include a $30 milllion pre-tax charge due to an increased loss
recognition reserve as a result of low interest rates relative to product guarantees. These increases are partidlly offset by a $251 million decrease in
Mexico, other than Hidalgo, primarily as a result of the impact on expenses from the aforementionsd revenue decline in Mexico and a reduction in
policyholder liabilities related to a change in reserve methodology.
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Reinsurance
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Reinsurance segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
=7 21011 01 OO $2,668 $2,005 33%
Nt VSN NGO Lo it et e et e e e e e e e 473 421 12%
OB TEVEMIUES « vttt ettt e et et e e e e e e e e e 49 43 14%
Net INVESIMENt GaAINS (I0SSES) - - v oot e ettt e e et e e e e 31 2 1,450 %
Ot TEVENUBS . . . o ottt ettt e e 3,221 2,471 30%
Expenses
Policynolder benefits and ClaimS . . ..o e e e 2,136 1,654 37 %
Interest credited 1o policyholder accourt balanCes .. oo 184 146 26 %
Policynolder dividends .. ..o 21 22 5)%
OB BXPENSES 1.ttt ittt et e e 740 622 19%
TOMA! EXPENSES .« . v et et e e e 3,081 2,344 31%
Income before provision for INCOME TaXES . . .o oo e e 140 127 10%
PrOVISION fOr NGO TXE S . vttt ettt e et ettt e e e et e e 48 43 12%
N MM oottt $ 92 & 84 10%

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002— Reinsurance

Metlife's Reinsurance segment is comprised of the Iife reinsurance business of Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated (“RGA"), a publicly
traded company, and Metl.ife's ancillary life reinsurance business. RGA has operations in North America and has subsidiary companies, branch offices,
or representative offices in Australia, Barbados, Hong Kong, India, Ireland, Japan, Mexico, South Africa, South Korea, Spain, Taiwan and the United
Kingdom.

Net income increased by $8 million, or 10%, to $82 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $84 milllion for the comparable 2002 period.
The increase in eamings year over year is primarily attributable to new business growth, additional renewal premiums, as well as a large coinsurance
agreement with Alflanz Life insurance Company of North America (“Alflanz Life") under which BGA assumed 100% of Aliianz Life's U.S. traditional life
reinsurance business.

Total revenues, excluding net Investment gains and losses, increased by $721 milion, or 29%, to $3,190 million for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $2,469 million for the comparable 2002 period. This increase is primarily due to new premiums from facultative and automatic treaties and
renewal premiums on existing blocks of business, particularly In the U.S. and United Kingdom reinsurance operations. In addition, there was a
$252 milion increase in revenues due to the transaction with Allianz Life in late 2003.

Total expenses increased by $737 million, or 31%, to $3,081 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $2,344 million for the comparable
2002 period. This increase is consistent with the growth in revenues and is primarily attributable to policyholder benefits and claims and allowances paid
on assumed reinsurance, particularly on certain higher commission business in the United Kingdom. The aforementioned transaction with Allianz Life
contributed $242 million to this increase.

Asset Management
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Asset Management segment for the vears indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 %. Change
(Dellars in millions)

Revenues
Nt MV BNt INCOME . L . o o e e $66 B 59 12%
(@107 g 1Y = L O 143 166 {(14)%
Net Investment gains (I0888S) .« ...ttt 9 4) 325 %
TO TEVENUES . o et e e e e e e 218 221 (1)%
Other EXPeNSeS . ... 182 211 (14)%
Income before provision for INCOMEB 1AXES .« .. v e 36 10 260 %
POV oM fOr NGO TXES « ittt e e et e e e e 14 4 250 %
[N oo 1 17 O R $22 $ 6 267 %

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002—Asset Management

Asset Management, through SSRM Holdings, Inc. ("State Street Research”), provides a broad variety of asset management products and services
to Metlife, third-party institutions and individuals. State Street Research offers investment management services in all major investment disciglines
through multiple channels of distribution in both the retall and Institutional marketplaces.

Net income increased by $16 million, or 267%, to $22 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $6 million for the comparable 2002
period. The increase year over year is mainly due to expense reductions and an increase in net investment gains in 2003, These improvernents were
partially offset by lower revenues eamed as a result of a reduction in average assets under management.

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, decreased by $16 million, or 7%, to $209 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
from $225 million for the comparable 2002 pericd. This decrease is primarlly attributable to a decline in revenues eamed on lower average assets under
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management, despite an increase in ending assets undsr management of 7% to $47.5 billion for the year ended Decembber 31, 2003 from $44.6 billion
for the comparable 2002 period. In addition, performance fees of $10 million earned during 2003 on certain investment products, were fower than the
$14 million eamed during thie comparable 2002 period.

Other expenses decreased by $28 million, or 14%, to $182 milion for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $211 million for the comparable
2002 period. Compensation-related expenses declined $17 million primartly as a result of staff reductions undertaken in the third and fourth quarters of
2002. Additionally, variable expenses declined $6 million largely as a resuft of lower average assets under management. General and administrative
expenses declined $6 million due to lower spendmg

Corporate & Other

Year ended December 31, 2003 compared with the year ended December 31, 2002— Corporate & Other

Corporate & Other contains the excess capital not allocated to the business segments, as well as expenses associated with the resolution of
proceedings alleging race-conscious undenwriting practices, sales practices and asbestos related claims, and interest expense related to the majority of
the Company’s outstanding debt.

Income and loss from continuing operations ncreased oy $486 million, or 111%, t© $48 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from a loss
of $437 million for the comparable 2002 period. The 2003 period includes a $92 million after-tax benefit from a reduction of a previously established
liability related to the Company's race conscious underwriting setlement and a $36 million benefit from a revision of the estimate of income tax for 2002.
The 2002 period includes a $169 million after-tax charge to cover costs associated with asbestos-related claims, a $48 million after-tax charge to cover
costs associated with the resolution of a federal govemment investigation of General American Life Insurance Company's (“General American”) former
Medicare business, and a $30 million after-tax reduction of a previously established liability related to the Company’s sales practice class action
settlement in 1999. Excluding the impact of these items, the increase in earnings year over-year is mainly due to higher investment income. )

Total revenues, excluding net investment gains and losses, increased by $201 milion, or 1,117%, to $218 miliion for the year ended December 31,
2003 from $18 million for the comparable. 2002 pericd. This variance is mainly due to higher investment income resulting from the change in capital
allocation methodology, as well as increases in income from corporate joint ventures, equity-linked notes and securities lending.

Total expenses decreased by $421 million, or 58%, to $304 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $725 milion for the comparable
2002 period. The 2003 period includes a $144 million reduction of a previously established liability related 1o the Company's race-conscious underwriting
seftlement. The 2002 period includes a $266 milion charge to increase the Company's asbestos-related liability and expenses to cover costs associated
with the resolution of federal government investigations of General American's former Medicare business.

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001 —The Company
" The following table presents consclidated financiat information for the vears indicated: -

Year Ended December 31, -
- ) 2002 2001 % Change
. . ) . {Dollars in millions)

ﬁevenues .
PIBIMIUMIS ettt et e e e e e $19,077  $17.212 1%
Universal fife and investment-type product policy Tees ......... e D 2,147 1,889 14 %
Nt INVESIMENT INCOMIE . . . . e e e e 11,261 11,187 1%
BT TBVENUES . . oot e e e e e 1,332 1,507 (12)%
Net investment gains (1osses) (net of amounts allccable o other accounts of ($145) and

(B134), resPaCtiVENY) . oo I (751} (579) 30 %

Totalrevenues .............. ... PR e e 33,066 31,216 6%

‘Expenses ' ' ’
Policyholder benefits and claims (excludes amounts d!rect\y related to net mvestment gains

(losses) of (B150) and (B159), reSPECIVENY) .\ vt et e e 19,523 18,454 6%
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ........... e 2,950 3,084 (4)%
Policynolder dividends . ... o S 1,942 2,086 (%
Other expenses (exc\udes amounts directly related to net \nvesrment gams {losses) of 35 )

and $285, respectively) . e 7,016 7,022 0%

Ot B OIS ES o ot e P 31,430 30,646 3%

Income from continuing operations before prowswon for income taxes ...... . e 1,636 570 187 %
Provision foriincome taxes ................ PP e 502 204 146 %
Income from continuing operations .. ... . e 1,134 366 210%
Income from discontinued operations, net of incorne taxes P 471 107 340 %
Netincome ... e $1605 § 478 239%

Premiums increased by $1,865 milion, or 11%, to $19,077 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $17,212 million for the comparable
2001 period. This variance is primarily atiributable to incréases in the Institutional, Intemational and Reinsurance segments. A $957 milion increase in
Institutional is fargely due to sales growth in its group life, dental, disability and long-term care businesses, a sale of a significant retirement and savings
contract in the second quarter of 2002, as well as new sales throughout 2002 in this segment’s structured setflements and traditional annuity products.
The June 2002 acquisition of Hidalgo, the 2001 acquisitions in Chile and Brazil and the sale of an annuity cortract in the first quarter of 2002 o a
Ganadian trust company are the primary drivers of a $865 milion increase in International. A portion of the increase in International is aiso attributable to
business growth in South Korea, Mexico (excluding Hidalgo) and Taiwan.In addition, an increase in Canada due to the restructuring of a pension contract
from an investrment-type product 1o a long-term annuity contributed to this variance. New premiums from facultative and automatic treaties, and renawal
premiums on existing blocks of business contributed to a $243 mition increase in the Reinsurance segment,’
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Universal life and investment-type product policy fees increased by $258 million, or 14%, to $2,147 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
from $1,889 million for the comparable 2001 pericd. This variance is primarily atiributable to the Individual, International and Institutional segments. A
$119 miliion favorable variance in Individual Is due to an increase in policy fees from insurance products, primarily due to higher revenue from insurance
fees, which increase as the average separate account asset base supporting the underlying minimum death benefits declines. The average separate
account asset base has declined in 2002 in response to poor equity market performance. These increases are partially offset by lower policy fees from
annuity and investment-type products generally resultting from poor equity market performance despite growth In annuity deposits. A $106 million
increase in International is largely due to the acquisition of Hidalgo and the acquisitions in Chile, partially offset by the cessation of product lines offered
through a joint venture with Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A., (“Banco Santander”) in 2001. A $32 million increase in institutional is principally due
to a fee related to the renegotiation of a portion of a bank-owned life insurance contract, as well as growth in existing business in the group universal life
product.

Net investment income increased by $74 million, or 1%, to $11,261 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $11,187 million for the
comparable 2001 period, This variance is primarily attributable to increases of (ij $58 million, or 1%, in income from fixed maturities, (i) $62 milfion, or
15%, in iIncome from real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment, net of investment expenses and depreciation, (i) $35 million, or 2%, in
income on morigage loans on real estate, (v $7 milion, or 1%, in interest income on policy loans, and (v} lower investment expenses of $3 millior, or 4%.
These variances are partially offset by decreases of () $47 million, or 17%, in income on cash, cash equivalents and short-term invesiments,
(ily 39 million, or 17%, In income on other invested assets, and (i) $11 milion, or 10%, in income from equity securities and other limited partnership
interests,

The increase in income from fixed maturities to $8,076 million in 2002 from $8,018 milion in 2001 Is largely due to a higher asset base, primarily
resulting from increased cash flows from sales of insurance and the acquisitions in Mexico and Chile. In addition, securities lending income was higher
due to increased activity and a more favorable cost of funds. The increases in income from fixed maturities are partially offset by decreases resulting from
lower reinvestment rates and a decline in bond prepayment fees. The increase in income from real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-
investment to $477 million in 2002 from $415 milion in 2001 is primarily due to the transfer of the Company's One Madison Avenue, New York property
from a company use property to an investment property in 2002, The increase in income on mortgage loans on real estate to $1,883 million in 2002 from
$1,848 million in 2001 is due primarily to & higher asset base from new loan production, partially offset by lower mortgage rates. The increase in interest
income from policy loans to $543 miflion in 2002 from $536 million in 2001 is largely due to increased loans outstanding. The decrease in income from
cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments to $232 million in 2002 from $279 million in 2001 is due to declining interest rates coupled with a
decrease in the asset base. The decrease in net investment income from other invested assets to $186 milion in 2002 from $225 milion in 2001 is
largely due to lower derlvative income, partially offset by an increase in reinsurance contracts’ funds withheld at interest. The decline in income from equity
securities and other limitec partnership interests to $99 million in 2002 from $110 miillicn in 2001 primarily resulted from lower dividend income from
equity securities, partially offset by higher limited corporate partnership distributions.

The increase in net investment income is attributable to increases in the International, Individual and Reinsurance segments, partially offset by
decreases in Corporate & Other, and the Institutional and Auto & Home segments. A $194 million increase in Intermational is due to a higher asset base
resuiting from the acauisitions in Mexico and Chile. Individual increased by $79 million primarily due to higher income from securities lending and limited
corporate partnership distributions, partially offset by lower bond prepayment fee income. The Reinsurance segment increased $31 million largely
resulting from an increase in reinsurance contracts’ funds withheld at interest. The decrease in Corporate & Other of $146 million is due to a lower asset
base, resulting from funding Intemational's acquisitions in Mexico and Chile, as welt as the Company's common stock repurchases, partially offset by
higher income from securities lending. Institutional decreased $49 million predominantly as a result of decreased fimited partnership, equity-linked note
and bond prepayment fee income. Auto & Home decreased $23 million primarily due to lower reinvestment rates.

Other revenues decreased by $175 milion, or 12%, to $1,332 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $1,507 milion for the
comparable 2001 period. This variance is primartly attricutable to decreases in the Individual, Institutional, Asset Management segments and Corporate &
Cther. Individuat decreased by $77 million resulting from lower commission and fee income associated with decreased volume in the broker/dealer and
other subsidiaries as a result of the depressed equity markets, A $40 milion decrease in Institutional is primarily due to a $73 milion reduction in
administrative fees as a result of the Company's exit from the large market 401(k) business in late 2001, as well as lower fees eamed on investments in
separate accounts resulting generally from poor equity market performance. This reduction is partially offset by a $33 million increase in group insurance
due to growth in the administrative service businesses and a settlement received in 2002 related to the Company’s former medical business. A
$32 million decrease in Asset Management is primarity due to the sale of Conning in July 2001, In addition, Corporate & Other decreased by $29 milion
principally due to the remeasurement of the Company’s reinsurance recoverable associated with the sales practices reinsurance treaty in 2001, as well
as an increase in the elimination of intersegment activity. This was partially offset from a gain on the sale of a company-occupied building, and income
eamed on corporate-owned life insurance ("COU") purchased during 2002.

The Company’s investment gains and losses are net of related policyholder amounts. The amounts netted against investment gains and losses are
() amortization of DAC, to the extent that such amortization results from investment gains and losses, (i) adjustments to participating contractholder
accounts when amounts equal to such investment gains and losses are applied to the contractholder's accounts, and (ifi) adjustments to the policyholder
dividend obligation resulting from investment gains and losses. _

Net investment gains and losses increased by $172 million, or 30%, to $751 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $579 miilion for the
comparable 2001 period, This increase reflects total investment gains (losses), before offsets, of $896 million (including gross gains of $1,836 million,
goss losses of $1,091 milion, writedowns of $1,501 milion, and a net loss from derivatives of $140 milion which includes scheduled periodic
settlement payments on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting of $32 miilion), an increase of $183 million, or 26%, from $713 milion in
2001, Offsets include the amortization of DAC of ($5) million and {$25) million in 2002 and 2001, respectively, and changes in the policyholder dividend
obligation of $157 million and $159 milion in 2002 and 2001, respectively, and adjustments to participating contracts of ($7) million in 2002, Refer to
“—Investments” beginning on page 28 for a discussion of the Company's investment portfolio.

The Company believes its policy of netting related policyholder amounts against investrment gains and losses provides important information in
evaluating its performance. Investment gains and 10sses are often excluded by investors when evaluating the overal financial performance of insurers.
The Company believes its presentation enables readers 10 easlly exclude investment gains and losses and the related effects on the consolidated
staternents of income when evaluating its performance. The Company's presentation of investment gains and losses, net of policyholder amounts, may
be different from the presentation used by other insurance companies and, therefore, amounts in its consolidated statements of income may not be
comparable 1o amounts reported by other insurers.
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Policyholder benefits and claims increased by $1,069 million, or 6%, to $18,523 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $18,454 million
for the comparable 2001 period. This variance is attributable to increases in the Intemational, INstitutional and Reinsurance segments, partially offsst by a
decrease in the Auto & Home segment. A 3699 miliion increase in Intemational is primarily due to the acquisition of Hidalgo, the acquisitions in Chile and
Brazil, the aforementioned sale of an annuity contract, the restructuring of a Canadian pension contract and business growth in South Korea, Mexico
(excluding Hidalgo) and Taiwan, An increase in Institutional of $415 milion is commensurate with the growth in premiums as discussed above, largely
offset by the establishment of a liability in 2001 related to the September 11, 2001 tragedies and the 2001 fourth quarter busingss realignment initiatives.
An increase in Reinsurance of $70 milion is cornmensurate with the growth in premiums discussed above. These increases were partialy offset by &
decrease of $102 milion in the Auto & Home segment. The variance in Autc & Home is largely due to improved claim freguency resutting from milder
winter weather, lower catastrophe levels and fewer personal umbrella claims, partially offset by an increase in current year bodily injury and no-fault
severities and costs associated with the processing of the New York assigned risk business.

Interest credited to policyholder account balances decreased by $134 miltion, or 4%, to $2,950 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$3,084 million for the comparable 2001 period. This variance is attributable to decreases in the Individual and Institutional segments, partially offset by
increases in the International and Reinsurance segments. A $105 million decrease in Individual is primarily due to the establishment in 2001 of a
policyhalder liability with respect to certain group annuity contracts at New England Financial. Excluding this policyholder liability, interest credited expense
increased slightly in response to an increase in policyholder account balances, which is primarily attributable to sales growth despite declines in interest
crediting rates. An $81 million decrease in Institutiona! is primarily due to a decline in average crediting rates resulting from the current interest rate
environment, These variances are partially offset by a net increase of $28 milion in International. This increase is principally dug to the acquisition of
Hidalgo, partially offset by a reduction in the number of investment-type policies in-force in Argentina. In addition, a $24 milion increase in Reinsurance is
primarily due to several new annuity reinsurance agreements executed during 2002.

Policyholder dividends decreased by $144 million, or 7%, to $1,842 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $2,086 milion for the
comparable 2007 period. This variance is attributable to a decrease in the Institutional segment resulting from unfavorable mortality experience of several
large group clients. institutional policyholder deends vary from pericd to period based on participating contract experience, which is recorded in
policyholder benefits and claims.

Cther expenses decreased by $7 million, or less than 1%, to $7,015 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $7,022 milion for the
comparable 2001 period. Excluding the capitalization and amortization of DAC, which are discussed below, other expenses increased by $68 milion, or
1%, to $7,716 milion in 2002 from $7,648 milion in 2001, Excluding the capitalization and amortization of DAC and the change in accounting as
prescribed by Staternent of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 142, Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets, ('SFAS 142"}, which eliminates the
amortization of goodwill and certain other intangibles, other expenssas increased by $115 milllion. This variance is primarily attributable to increases in the
Reinsurance and International segments, as well as in Corporate & Other, partially offset by decreases in the Institutional, Individual and Assst
Management segments. A $209 million increase in Reinsurance is primarily attributable to increases in allowances paid, primarily driven by high-
allowance business in the United Kingdom along with strong growth in the U.S. and Asia/Pacific regions. An increase of $166 million in Intermnational
expenses is primarily due to the acquisition of Hidalgo, the acquisitions in Chile and Brazil, as well as business growth in South Korea, Mexico (excluding
Hidalgo), and Hong Kong. An increase in Corporate & Other of $85 million is primarily due to increases in legal and interest expenses. The 2002 period
includes a $266 million charge to increase the Company's asbestos-related liability, expenses to cover costs associated with the resolution of federal
government investigations of General American's former Medicare business and a reduction of a previously established liability related to the Company’s
sales practices class action settiement. The 2007 period includes a $250 million charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 10 cover costs associated
with the resolution of class action lawsuits and a regulatory inquiry pending against Metropolitan Life involving alleged race-conscious insurance
underwriting practices prior to 1973, The increase in interest expenses is primarily due to increases in long-term debt resutting from the issuance of
$1.25 bilien and $1 billion of senior debt in Novernber 2001 and December 2002, respectively, partially offset by a decrease in commercial paper in
2002. In addition, a decrease in the elimination of intersegment activity contributed to the variance. A decrease of $181 miliion in Institutional is due to
higher expenses resuiting from the business realrgnmemt initiatives accrual in the fourth guarter 2001 (primarily the Company's exit from the large market
401(K) business}, $30 million of which was released into income In the fourth quarter of 2002. This decrease is partially offset by an increase in 2002
operational expenses for dental and disabllity and group insurance’s non-deferrable expenses commensurate with the aforementioned premium growth,
as well as higher pension and postretirement benefit expenses. A decrease of $105 milion in Individual is due to continued expense management
initiatives, including reduced compensation-related expenses, a decline in business realignment expenses that were incurred in 2001 and reductions in
volume-related commission expenses in the broker/dealer and other subsidiaries. These declines are partially offset by higher pension and postretirement
benefit expenses and an inCrease in expenses stemming from sales growth in new annuity and investment-type products. in addition, a decrease of
$39 milion in Asset Management is primarily due to the sale of Conning in July 2001.

DAC is principally amortized in proportion to gross margins and profits, including investment gains or losses. The amortization is allocated to
investment gains and losses to provide consolidated statement of income information regarding the impact of investment gains and losses on the amount
of the amortization, and other expenses to provide amounts related to gross margins and profits originating from transactions other than investment gains
and losses.

Capitalization of DAC Increased by $301 milion, or 15%, to $2,340 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $2,039 mlHaon for the
comparable 2001 period, This variance is primarily due to increases in the Reinsurance, Individual, Intemational and Institutional segments. A $125 million
increase in Reinsurance is commensurate with the increase in allowances paid. A $111 milion increase in Individual is due to higher sales of annuity and
investment-type products, resulting in higher commissions and other deferrable expenses. A 351 million increase in Intermnational is primarily due to the
2002 acquisition of Hidalgo and overall business growth in South Korea; partially offset by a decrease in Argenting due to the reduction in business
caused by the overall economic environment. A $22 million increase in Institutional is primarily due to growth in sales commissions and fees for disabllity
products sold by Institutional. Total amortization of DAC increased by $206 million, or 14%, to $1,644 milion in 2002 from $1,438 million in 2001.
Amortization of DAC of $1,639 milion and $1,413 milion are allocated to other expenses in 2002 and 2001, respectively, while the remainder of the
amortization in each period is allocated to investment gains and losses. The increase in amortization allocated to other expenses is attributable to
Increases in the Individual, Intermational and Reinsurance segments. An increase of $111 million In Individual is due to the impact of the depressed equity
markets and changes in the estimates of future gross profits. In 2002, estimates of future dividend scales, future maintenance expenses, future rider
marging, and future reinsurance recoveries were revised. In 2001, estimates of future fixed account interest spreads, future gross marging and profits
related 1o separate accounts and future mortality marging were revised. An increase in Intemational of $64 million is primarily due to loss recognition in
Argentina as a result of the economic environment, primarily the devaluation of its curency. The remaining increase was dug 1o new business in South
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Korea, Taiwan, and the June 2002 acquisition of H\dalgo An increase in Reinsurance of $55 million is due to growth in the business, commensurate with
the growth in premiums described above.

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $502 million, or 31% of income from continuing operations before provision for
income taxes, compared with $204 million, or 36%, for the comparable 2001 perlod. The 2002 effective tax rate differs from the federal corporate tax rate
of 35% primarily due to the impact of non-taxable investment income. The 2001 effective tax rate differs from the federa\ corporate tax rate of 35%, due to
an increase in prior year inceme taxes on capital gains.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the fmpairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets ("SFAS 144" ) income related to the Company's
real estate which was identified as held-for-sale on or after January 1, 2002 is presented as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001. The income from discontinued operations is comprised of net investment income and nat investment gains related to 47 properties that
the Company began marketing for sale on or after January 1, 2002. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recognized $582 million of
net investment gains from discontinued operations due primarily to the sale of 36 properties.

Institutional ‘
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Institutional segment for the years indigated:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
{Dollars in millions}

Revenues . .
=002 P $ 8,245 7,288 183%
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees. ... .. I 624 592 5%
Net investment INCOME . ..ot e e 3,918 3,867 (1)%
OtNET TEVENUBS . . oot ettt e e e e e 609 849 6%
Net investment gains (osses) (net of amounts allocable from other accounts of $6 and ($105), :

TESPECHVEN) o o (494) (16) 2,988 %

O Bl BV ENUES . ottt e e e e e 12,902 12,480 3%

Expenses
Policyholder. benefits and c\alms (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains

(losses) of $6 and (B105), reSLaCHVEIY) . . .ot 9,339 8,924 5%
Interest credited to policyholder account balances. . ... ..o i 932 1,013 8%
Policynolder AVIAeNaS . ..o e e 118 259 (66)%
O8I BXPENSES ottt ettt e PR R 1,531 1,746 (12)%

TOtl BXDBNSES .« o ottt et 11817 11,942 0%

Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes. ... 885 538 83 %
Provision for inCOmMe taxes .. ..ot e P 347 177 96 %
Income from CONtINUING ODEraLIoNS .. oottt e e e 638 361 77 %
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes ............... e 121 21 476 %
[N = 1o .27 P DTS § 759 B 382 99 %

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001 —Institutional

Premiums increased by $857 million, or 13%, to $8,245 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $7,288 milion for the comparable
2001 period. Group insurance premiums increased by $496 million as a result of growth in this segment's group lifs, dental, disabllity and long-term care
businesses. Retirement and savings premiums increased by $461 million primarily due to the sale of a significant contract in the second guarter of 2002,
as well as new sales throughout 2002 from structured settiements and traditional annuity products. Retirement and savings premium levels are
significantly influenced by large transactions and, as a result, can fluctuate from period to period.

Universal life and investment-type product policy fees increased by $32 million, or 5%, to $624 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$592 million for the comparable 2001 period. This increase is primarily attributable 10 a fee resutting from the renegotiation of a portion of a bank-owned
life insurance contract, as well as growth in existing business in the group universal fife product line.

Other revenues decreased by $40 million, or 6%, to $609 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $649 million for the comparabte 2001
period. Retirement and savings other revenues decreased $73 million primarily due to a reduction in administrative fees as a result of the Company's exit
from the large market 401(K) business in late 2001, and lower fees eamed on investments in separate accounts resulting generally from poor equity
market performance. This decrease is partially offset by a $33 million increase in group Insurance due to growth in the administrative service businesses
and a settlement received in 2002 related 1o the Company's former medical business.

Policyholder benefits and claims increased by $415 million, or 5%, to $9,333 million for the year ended December ST 2002 from $8,924 million for
the comparable 2001 peried. This variance is attrbutable to increases of $238 million and $177 million in group insurance and retirement and savings,
respectively. Excluding $291 million of 2001 claims related to the September 11, 2001 tragedies,. group insurance policyholder benefits and claims
increased by $529 milion commensurate with the aforementioned premium growth in this segment’s group life, dental, disability, and long-term care
businesses. Excluding $215 milion of 2001 policyholder benefits related to the fourth quarter 2001 business realignment initiatives, retirement and
savings palicyholder benefits increased $392 milion, commensurate with the aforementioned premium growth.

Interest credited to policyholders decreased by $81 milion, or 8%, to $332 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $1 ,OW 3 million for
the comparable 2001 period. Decreases of $42 million and $39 milion In retirement and savings and group insurance, respectively, are primarfly
attributable to declines in the average crediting rates in 2002 as a result of the current low interest rate environment.

Policyholder dividends decreased by $144 milion, or 56%, to $115 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $259 milion for the
comparable 2001 period. This decling Is largely attributable to unfavorable mortality experience of several large group clients, Policyholder dividends vary
from period to pericd based on participating contract experience, which are generally recorded in policyholder benefits and. claims.
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OCther expenses decreased by $215 milion, or 12%, to $1,531 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $1,746 million in the
comparable 2001 period. Retirement and savings decreased by $293 million, primarily attributable to $184 million of accrued expenses related to
business realignment initiatives recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 (predominantly related to the Company's exit from the large market 401(k)
business}, $30 million of which was released into income In the fourth quarter of 2002. In addition, ongoing expenses for the defined contribution product
have steadily decreased throughout 2002, The net reduction in retirement and savings is partially offset by an increase in pension and postretirement
costs. Group insurance other expenses increased by $78 million. This increase is mainty attributable to growth in operational expenses for the dental and
disability products, as well as group insurance's non-deferrable expenses, including a certain portion of premium taxes and commissions. These
variances are commensurate with the aforementioned premium growth. In addition, an increase in pension and postretirement costs contributed to the
variance.

Individual
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the individual segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
Premiums ... S $ 4,507 $ 4,663 (1%
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees ... .o Lo 1,379 1,260 9%
Nt INVESIMENt INCOME . . e e e 6,244 6,165 1%
OB TBVENUES . . . oot e et et e e e e e 418 495 (16)%
Net investment gains (losses) (net of amounts allocable from other accounts of ($147) and

(B134), 18SPECHVEN) . . oo (144) 853 (117)%

Ot TBVENUES .t e e 12,404 13,336 (7%

Expenses
Policyhelder benefits and claims (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains :

(losses) of ($157) and ($159), respectively) . ... 5,220 5,233 0%
Interest credited to policyholder account balances ... oo i e 1,793 1,898 (6)%
Policynolder dividends . . ... o e 1,770 1,767 0%
Other expenses (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains {losses) of $10

and B25, reSPECIVEIY) . .ttt 2,629 2,747 (4)%

Ot BB S L o oot e e e 11,412 11,645 (2)%
Income from continuing operations before provision forincome taxes. . ... . . 992 1,681 (41)%
ProvisSion for INCOME 18XES . . .ttt e e e e 365 632 (42)%
Income from CoNtiNUING OPETIONS ...ttt e e e 827 1,059 41)%
Income from discontinued operations, net of incometaxes ......... ool 199 36 453 %
Netincome.......oooviiiiiiineinnns P $ 826 $ 109 (25)%

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001 —Individual

Prerniums decreased by $56 milion, or 1%, to $4,507 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $4,563 million for the comparable 2001
period. Premiums from insurance’ products decreased by $94 million, primarily resulting from a third quarter 2002 amendment of a reinsurance
agreement to increase the amount of insurance ceded from 50% to 100%. This amendment was effective January 1, 2002. The Company also beligves
the decline is the result of a continued shift in policyholders' preference from traditional policies to, annuity and investment-type products. These
decreases are partially offset by policyholders expanding their tradiitional life insurance coverage through the purchase of additional insurance with
dividend proceeds in 2002. Premiums from annuity products increased by $38 milion as a result of higher sales of fixed annuities and supplementary
contracts with fife contingencies.

Universal life and investment-type product policy fees increased by $112 million, or 9%, to $1,378 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002
from $1,260 million for the comparable 2001 period. Policy fees from insurance products increased by $144 million primarily due to higher revenue from
insurance fees, which increase as the average separate account asset base supporting the underlying minimum death benefit declines. The average
separate account asset base has declined in response to poor equity market performance. Additionally, this variance reflects the acceleration of the
recognition of unearned fees associated with future reinsurance recoveries. Policy fees from annuity and investment-type products decreased by
$25 million primarily due to declines in the average separate account asset base resulting generally from poor equity market performance, partially offset
by an increase in fees resulting from growth in annuity deposits. Policy fees from annuity and investment-type products are typically calculated as a
percentage of average separate account assets. Such assets can fluctuate depending on equity market performance.

Other revenues dacreased by $77 milion, or 16%, to $418 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $495 milion for the comparable
2001 period, largely due to lower commission and fee income associated with a volume decline in the broker/dealer and other subsidiaries which is
principally due 1o the depressed equity markets.

The Company's investment gains and losses are net of related policyholder amounts. The amounts netted against investment “gains and losses are
(i) amortization of DAC, to the extent that such amortization results from investment gains and losses, (i) adjustments to participating contractholder
accounts when amounts equal to such investment gains and losses are applfed to the contractholder's accounts, and (i) adjustments to the policyholder
dividend obhgat[on resulting from investment gains and losses.

The Company believes its policy of netting related policyholder amounts against investment gains and losses provides important information in
evaluating ts performance. Investment gains and losses are often excluded by Investors whnen evaluating the overall financial performance of insurers.
The Company believes its presentation enables readers to easily exclude investment gains and losses and the related effects on the consolidated
statements of income when evaluating its performance. The Company's presentation of investment gains and losses, net of policyholder amounts, may
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be different from the presentation used by other insurance companies and, therefore, amounts in its consolidated statements of income may naot be
comparable to amounts reported by other insurers.

Policynolder benefits and claims decreased by $13 milion, or less than 1%, to $5,220 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$5,233 million for the comparable 2001 period. Policynolder benefits and claims for insurance products decreased by $119 milion, primarily due to the
impact of the aforementioned reinsurance transaction and the establishment of liabllities for the September 11, 2001 tragediss in the previous year.
Policyholder benefits and claims for annuity and investment-type products increased by $106 milion primarily due to an increase in fixed and immediate
annuity liabilities, resulting from business growth and an increase. in the liability associated with guaranteed minimum death benefits on variable annuities.

Interest credited to policyholder account balances decreased by $105 million, or 6%, to $1,793 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared with $1,898 for the comparable 2001 period. This decrease was primartly due 1o the establishment of a $118 milion policyholder liability with
respect to certain group annuity contracts at New England Financial in 2001. Excluding this policyholder liability, interest credited increased slightly due to
an increase in policyholder account balances which Is primarily attributable to sales growth partially offset by declines in interest crediting rates.

Policyholder dividends increased by $3 million, or less than 1%, to $1,770 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $1,767 million for the
comparable 2001 period due to the increase in the invested assets supporting the policies associated with this segment’s large block of traditional life
insurance business. This increase is partially offset by the approval by the Company’s Board of Directors in the fourth quarter of 2002 of a reduction in the
dividend scale to reflect the impact of the current low interest rate environment on the asset portfalios supporting these policies.

Other expenses decreased by $118 miltion, or 4%, to $2,629 million for the year ended Dacsmber 31, 2002 milion from $2,747 for the comparable
2001 period. Excluding the caplitalization and amortization of DAC, which are discussed below, other expenses decreased by $118 million, or 4%, to
$2,922 million in 2002 from $3,040 mifion in 2001. Other expenses related to insurance products decreased by $129 milion, which is attributable to
continued expense management, reductions in volume-related commission expenses in the broker/dealer and other subsidiaries and a reduction of
$62 milion related to business realignment expensss incurred in 2001. These decreases are partially offset by increased pension and postretirement
benefit expenses over the comparable period. Other expenses related to annuity and investment-type products increased by $11 milion. This increase is
commensurate with the rise in sales of new annuity and investment-type products, as well as increased pension and postretirement benefit expenses.
This increase is partially offset by the reduction of $37 million of business realignment expenses incurred in 2001.

DAC is principally amortized In propaortion to gross margins or gross profits, including investment gains or losses. The amortization is allocated to
investment gains and losses to provide consolidated statement of income information regarding the impact of investment gains and losses on the amount
of the amortization, and other expenses to provide amounts related to gross marging er profits originating from transactions other than investment gains
and losses.

Capitalization of DAC increased by $111 milion, or 12%, to $1,037 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $926 milion for the
comparable 2001 period due to higher sales of annuity and investment-type products, resulting in higher commissions and other deferrable expenses.
Total amortization of DAC increased by $100 million, or 16%, to $754 milion in 2002 from $654 million in 2001, Amortization of DAC of $744 million and
$633 million is allocated to other expenses in 2002 and 2001, respectively, while the remainder of the amortization in each vear is allocated to investment
gains and losses. Increases in amortization of DAC allocated to other expenses of $84 million and $27 million related to insurance products and annuity
and investment-type products, respectively, are due to the impact of the depressed equity markets and changes in the estimates of future gross profits.
In 2002, estimates of future dividend scales, future maintenance expenses, future rider margins, and future reinsurance recoveries were revised. In 2001,
estimates of future fixed account interest spreads, future gross marging and profits related to separate accounts and future mortality margins were
revised., :

Auto & Home
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Auto & Home segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
(Dollars in millions)

Revenues
Premiums ........................................................................ $2,828 $2,755 3%
Net INMVESTMENt INCOME . e e e e e 177 200 C(12)%
O VNS L oottt 26 22 18%
Net INVESIMENT GaiNS (08888 .« oo v oottt e e (46) (17) 171%
JOtA TEVEMUES .« o o ettt et e e 2,985 2,960 1%
Expenses
Policyholder benefits and Claims .. ... .o 2,019 2,121 5)%
BT BXENSES + vttt ettt it e e e e e 793 800 (1)9%
oAl BX DSOS .« oo ettt 2,812 2,921 (4%
Income before provision (benefit) for INCome taxes. . ... . oo i 173 39 344%
Provision {oenefit) for INCOME 18XES .\ vttt et e e e e 41 @ 2,150%
Nt O oo e e $ 132 ¢ M 222%

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001 —Auto & Home

Premiums increased by $73 million, or 3%, to $2,828 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $2,755 million for the comparable 2001
perlod. Auto and property premiums increased by $66 million and $1 million, respectively, primarily due to increases in average premium eamed per
policy resulting from rate increases. The impact on premiums from rate increases was partially offset by an expected reduction in retention and a
reduction In new business sales. Premiums from other personal lines increased by $6 million.

Other revenues increased by $4 million, or 18%, to $26 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $22 million for the comparable 2001
period. This increase was primarily due to income eamed on a COL policy purchased in the second quarter of 2002, as well as higher fees on
installment payments. These increases were partially offset by an adjustment 1o a deferred gain related 1o the disposition of this segment’s reinsurance
business in 1990.
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Policyholder benefits and claims decreased by $102 million, or 5%, to $2,019 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $2,121 million for
the comparable 2001 period. Property policyhoider benefits and claims decreased by $120 million due to Improved claim frequency, underwriting and
agency management actions, and a $41 million reduction in catastrophe losses. Property catastrophes represented 7.4% of the property Ioss ratio in
2002 compared to 13.5% in 2001. Other policyholder benefits and claims decreased by $10 milion due to fewer personal umbrelia claims. Fluctuations
in these policyholder benefits and claims may not be commensurate with the change In premiums for a given period due to low premium volume and high
liability fimits. Auto policyholder benefits and claims increased by $28 million largely due to an increase in current year bodily injury and no-fault severities,
Costs associated with the processing of the New York assigned risk business also contributed to this increase. These increases were partially offset by
improved claim frequency resulting from milder winter weather, underwriting and agency management actions, as well as lower catastrophe losses.

Other expenses decreased by $7 milion, or 1%, 10 $793 miflion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $800 million for the comparable 2001
period. This decrease is primarily due to reduced employee head-count and reduced expenses associated with the consclidation of The St Paul
business acquired in 1998. These declines are partially offset by an increase in expenses related to the outsourced New York assigned risk business.

The effective income tax rates for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 differ from the federal corporate tax rate of 35% due to the impact
of non-taxable investment income.

International
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Intemational segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues .
Premiums.‘.4...‘.‘.........,......‘.‘.4..”: .................................... $1.511 § 846 79%
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees. . ... P PPN 144 38 279%
NET INVESIMENT INCOME . oo e e e e 461 267 73%
OHNBr TBYBNUES .« . o o oo 14 18 (13)%
INEt INVESTMENT GaINS (J0SSES) . oo e ©) (16) {44)%
Ot TEVENIUES - ettt e 232t 1181 84%
Expenses . '
Policyholder benefits and Claims . . ..o e 1,388 689 101%
Interest credited to policyholder account balances . .. ... e 79 51 55%
Policyholder dMIdeNas .. .o 35 36 (3%
T BXDBNSES . ot ettt ettt et e e 507 329 54%
TOW@I BXDBNSES .+ ..ttt e 2009 1,105 82%
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes . ................. 0., 112 46 143%
ProviSion fOr INCOME t8XES .« ot v e e e 28 32 (13)%
3= T $ 84 § 14 500%

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001 —International

Premiums increased by $665 milllion, or 79%, to $1,511 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $846 million for the comparable 2001
period. The June 2002 acquisition of Hidalgo and the 2001 acquisitions in Chile and Brazil increased premiums by $228 million, $102 milion and
$8 million, respectively. In addition, a portion of the increase in premiums s attributable to a $108 milion increase due to the sale of an annuity contract in
the first quarter of 2002 1o & Canadian trust company. South Korea's premiums increased by $91 million primartly due 1o a larger professional sales force
and improved agent productivity. Mexico's premiums (excluding Hidalgo), increased by $66 million, primarily due to increases in its group life, major
medical and individual life businesses. Excluding the aforementioned sale of an annuity confract, Canada’s premiums increased by $26 million due to the
restructuring of a pension cortract from an investment-type product 1o a fong-term annuity. Taiwan's premiums increased by $13 million due primarily t1©
continued growth in the individual life insurance business. Hong Kong's premiums increased $5 million primarily due 1o continued growth in the group life
and traditional life businesses. These increases are partially offset by a decrease in Argentina's premiums of $9 million due to the reduction in business
caused by the Argentine economic environment. The remainder of the variance Is attributable to minor fluctuations in other countries.

Universal life and investment type-product policy fees increased by $106 milion, or 278%, to $144 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
from $38 million for the comparable 2001 period. The acquisition of Hidalgo and the acquisitions in Chile resutted in increases of $102 milion and
$5 million, respectively. These increases were partially offset by a $3 milion decrease in Spain dug to a reduction in fees caused by a decline in assets
under management, as a result of the cessation of product lines offered through & joint venture with Banco Santander in 2001, The remainder of the
variance is attributable to minor fluctuations in several countries.

Other revenues decreased by $2 milion, or 13%, to $14 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $16 million for the comparable 2001
period. Canada's other revenues in 2001 included $1 million due primarily to the settlerment of two legal cases in 2001, The remainder of the variance is
attributable to minor fluctuations in several countries. The acquisition of Hidalgo and the acquisitions in Chile and Brazil had no material impact on this
variance. ;

Policyholder benefits and claims increased by $699 million, or 101%, to $1,388 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $689 million for
the comparable 2001 period. The acquisition of Hidalgo and the acquisitions in Chile increased policyholder benefits and claims by $224 milion and
$169 million, respectively. In addition, $108 milion of this increase in policyholder benefits and claims is attributable to the aforementioned sale of an
annuity contract in Canada. South Korea's, Mexico's (excluding Hidalgo), Taiwan's and Spain's policyholder benefits and claims increased by $89 milion,
$67 million, $18 million and $15 million, respectively, commensurate with the overall premium increases discussed above. Excluding the aforementioned
sale of an annuity contract, Canada’s policyholder benefits and claims increased by $32 milion primarily due to the restructuring of a pension contract
from an investment-type product o a long-term annuity. The remainder of the variance is attributable to minor fluctuations in several countries.

Interest credited to policyhcldsr account balances increased by $28 million, or 55%, to $79 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$51 milion for the comparable 2001 period. The acquisition of Hidalgo contributed $51 million. This increase was partially offset by a decrease of
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$17 milion in Argentina. This decrease Is primarily due to modifications to policy contracts as authorized by the Argentinean government and a reduction
of investment-type policies in-force. In addition, Spain's interest credited decreased by $7 million primarily due to a decrease in the assets under
management for life products with guarantees associated with the sale of a block of policies to Bance Santander in May 2001, The remainder of the
variance I8 attributable to minor fluctuations in several countries.

Policynolder dividends remained essentially unchanged at $35 million for the year ended Decernber 31, 2002 versus $36 million for the comparable
2001 period. The acquisition of Hidalgo and the acquisitions in Chile and Brazil had no material impact on this variance.

Other expenses increased by $178 milion, or 54%, to $507 million for the year ended Decernber 31, 2002 from $329 million for the comparable
2001 period. The acguisition of Hidalgo and the acquisitions in Chile and Brazil contributed $82 milion, $21 million and $5 million, respectively. South
Korea's, Mexico's (excluding Hidalgo), and Hong Kong's other expenses increased by $29 million, $18 milion and $7 million, respectively. These
increases are primarily due to increased non-deferable commissions from higher sales as discussed above, particularly in South Korea where fixed sales
compensation is paid to new sales management as part of the professional agency expansion. Argentina’s other expenses increased by $9 million due to
additional loss recognition in connection with ongoing ecenomic circumstances in the country. Poland's other expenses increased by $5 million primarily
due to costs incurred in the fourth quarter of 2002 associated with the closing of this operation. The remainder of the variance is attributable to minor
fluctuations in several countries.

Reinsurance
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Reinsurance segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
(Dofliars in millions}

Revenues
P B U IS & .\ e e e e e e e $2,005 $1,762 14 %
N VSNt INCOME . . et e e e e e e e e e e 421 390 8%
LA (=1 =10 << PP 43 42 2%
Net InveStMENT GaINS (I0SSES) .+« . v e e ettt e e e e e e e e e 2 6) 133 %
Ol TV . . . o e 2471 2188 183%
Expenses )
Policyholder benefits and Claims . .. o 1,554 1,484 5%
Interest credited to policyholder account DalanCes . . ..o i e 146 122 209%
Policynolder AIVIJBNGS .« . .« e e e e 22 24 8)%
OB BX BN S ettt et ettt et e 822 491 27 %
JOtal EXPENSES . oot 2,344 212t 1%
Income before provision forincometaxes .. ......... ... L. P 127 87 a0 %
PrOVISION fOr INCOIMIE 18X . o ittt e e e e e e 43 27 59 %
N O .« . e e e e $ 84 § 40 110%

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001—Reinsurance

Premiums increased by $243 milion, or 14%, to $2,005 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $1,762 milion for the comparable
2001 period. New premiums from facultative and automatic treaties and renewal premiums on existing blocks of business, particutarly in the U.S. and
United Kingdom reinsurance operations, all contributed to the premium growth. Premium levels are significantly influenced by large transactions and
reporting practices of ceding companies and, as a result, can fluctuate from period to period.

Cther revenues remained essentially unchanged at $43 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 versus $42 million for the comparable 2001
period.

Policyholder benefits and claims increased by $70 million, or 5%, to $1,554 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $1,484 milion for
the comparable 2001 period. Policyholder benefits and claims were 78% of premiums for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to 84% in the
comparable 2001 period. The decrease in policyholder benefits and claims as a percentage of premiums is primarily attributable to higher than expected
mortality in the U.S. reinsurance operations during the first and fourth quarters of 2001, favorable claims experience in 2002 and the 2001 impact of
claims associated with the September 11, 2001 tragedies. In addition, increases in the liabilities for future policyholder benefits and adverse results on the
reinsurance of Argentine pension business during 2001 contributed to the decrease. The level of claims may fluctuate from period to period, but exhibits
less volatility over the long term.

Interest credited to policyholder account balances increased by $24 million, or 20%, to $146 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from
$122 million for the comparable 2001 period. Contributing to this growth were several new annuity reinsurance agreements executed during 2002, The
crediting rate on certain blocks of annuities is based on the performance of the underlying assets.

Policyholder dividends were essentially unchanged at $22 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, versus $24 million for the 2001
comparable period.

Other expenses increased by $131 milllion, or 27%, to $622 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $431 million for the comparable
2001 period. The increase in other expenses is primarily attributable to an increase in reinsurance business in the United Kingdom, which is characterized
by higher initial reinsurance allowances than those historically experienced in the segment. These expenses fluctuate depending on the mix of the
underlying insurance products being reinsured as allowances paid and the related capitalization and amortization can vary significantly based on the type
of business and the reinsurance treaty.
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Asset Management
The following table presents consolidated financial information for the Asset Management segment for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 % Change
{Dollars in millions)

Revenues
NEt VB SIMEN NGO .« L it et e e e e e e $520 $7 (17Y%
O NI TBVENIUBS . ottt et et e e e 166 198 (18)%
Net Invesiment gains (0SSES) .. ...ttt e e (4) 25 (116)%
Ol TEVENUBS . o oottt et e e 221 294 {25)%
Other EXPeNSeS . .. .. o e e 211 252 (16)%
Income before provision for INCOMB 1AXES . ... .o it e 10 42 ‘(76)%
PRSI O MM eSS . . e 4 15 (73)%
Nt NGO e e e $ 6 27 (78)%

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001 —Asset Management

Other revenues, which primarily consist of management and advisory fees from third parties, decreased by $32 million, or 16%, to $166 milion for
the year ended December 31, 2002 from $198 million for the comparable 2001 period. The most significant factor contributing to this decline is &
$31 million decrease resulting from the sale of Conning, which occurred in July 2001, Excluding the impact of this transaction, other revenues remained
essentially unchanged at $166 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to $167 million for the vear ended December 31, 2001,
Despite lower average assets under management, revenues remained constant due 1o performance and incentive fees earmed on certain real estate and
hedge fund products. The lower assets under management are primarily due to institutional client withdrawals, and the downturn in the equity market. In
addition, fourth quarter 2002 product closings and business exits also contributed to this decline.

Other expenses decreased by $41 million, or 16%, o $211 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $252 million for the comparable
2001 period. Excluding the impact of the sale of Conning, other expenses decreased by $6 milion, or 3%, to $211 million in 2002 from $217 milion in
2001. This decrease is due to reductions in marketing-related expenses and expenses related to fund reimbursements. In addition, a decrease in
amortization of deferred sales commissions resulted from a reduction in sales. These decreases were partially offset by a $5 million increase in employee
compensation attributable to severance-related expenses resulting from third and fourth quarter 2002 staff reductions.

Corporate & Other

Year ended December 31, 2002 compared with the year ended December 31, 2001—Corporate & Other

Cer revenues decreased by $28 million, or 34%, 10 $56 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $85 million for the comparable 2001
period, This is primarily attributable to the remeasurement of the Company’s reinsurance recoverable associated with the sales practices reinsurance
treaty in 2001, as well as an increase In the elimination of intersegment activity, This is partially offset from a gain on the sale of a company-occupied
building, and income eamed on COU purchased during 2002,

Other expenses increased by $65 million, or 10%, to $722 milion for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $657 million for the comparable
2001 period, primarily due to increases in legai and Interest expenses. The 2002 period Includes a $266 milion charge to increase the Company's
asbestos-related liability, expenses to cover costs associated with the resolution of federal government investigations of General American's former
Medicare business and a reduction of a previously established liability related to the Company’s sales practices class action settiement. The 2001 period
includes a $250 milion charge recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001 fo cover costs associated with the resolution of class action lawsuits and a
regulatory inquiry pending against Metropolitan Life, involving alleged race-conscious insurance underwriting practices prior to 1873. The increase in
interest expenses is primarfly due to increases in fong-term delbt resulting from the issuance of $1.25 billion and $1 billion of senior debt in November
2001 and December 2002, respectively, partially offset by a decrease in commercial paper in 2002. In addition, a decrease in the elimination of
intersegment activity contributed to the variance.

Business Realignment Initiatives

During the fourth gquarter of 2001, the Company implemented saveral business realignment inttiatives, which resulted from a strategic review of
operations and an ongoing commitment {0 reduce expenses. The impact of these actions on a segment basis were charges of $389 mifion in
Institutional, $97 million in Individual and $3 million in Auto & Home. The liabliity at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was $27 million and $40 million, in the
Institutional segment and $9 million and $18 milion, in the Inclividual segment, respectively. The remaining liability is due to certain contractual obligations.

September 11, 2001 Tragedies

On September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks occurred in New York, Washington, D.C. and Pennsylvania {the "tragedies”) triggering a signficant loss of
life and property, which had an adverse impact on certain of the Company's businesses. The Company's original estimate of the total insurance losses
related 10 the tragedies, which was recorded in the third quarter of 2001, was $208 million, net of income taxes of $117 milion. As of Decernber 31,
2003 and 2002, the Company's remaining liability for unpald and future claims associated with the tragedies was $9 million and $47 milion, respectively,
principally related to disability coverages. This estimate has been and will continue to be subject to revision in subsequent periods, as claims are received
from insureds and processed. Any revision to the estimate of losses in subsequent periods will affect net income in such periods.

MetLife Capital Trust | ,

In connection with MetLife, Inc.'s, initial public offering in April 2000, the Holding Company and MetLife Capital Trust | {the "Trust”) issued equity
security units (the “units”). Each unit originally consisted of () a contract to purchase, for $50, shares of the Holding Company's common stock (the
“purchase contracts”) on May 15, 2003; and (i) a capital security of the Trust, with a stated liquidation amount of $50,

In accordance with the terms of the units, the Trust was dissolved on February 5, 2003, and $1,006 milion aggregate principal amount of 8.00%
debentures of the Holding Company (the “MetLife debentures”), the scle assets of the Trust, were distributed to the owners of the Trust's capital
securities in exchange for their capital securities. The MetLife debentures were remarketed on benalf of the debenture owners on February 12, 2003 and
the interest rate on the Metlife debentures was reset as of February 15, 2003 to 3.811% per annum for a yield to maturity of 2.876%. As a result of the
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remarketing, the debenture owners received $21 million ($0.03 per diuted common share) in excess of the camying value of the capital securities. This
excess was recorded by the Company as a charge to additional paid-in capital and, for the purpose of calculating eamings per share, is subtracted from
net income to arrive at net income available to common shareholders.

On May 15, 2003, the purchase contracts associated with the units were settled. In exchange for $1,006 milion, the Company issued 2.97 shares
of MetLife, Inc. common stock per purchase contract, or approximately 59.8 million shares of treasury stock. The excess of the Company's cost of the
treasury stock ($1,882 million) over the contract price of the stock issued to the purchase contract holders ($1,006 million) was $656 million, which was
recorded as a direct reduction to retained eamings.

Interest expense on the capital securities Is included in other expenses and was $10 milion, $81 million and $81 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Holding Company

Capital

Restrictions and Limitations on Bank Holding Companies and Financial Holding Companies — Capital.  MetLife, Inc. and its insured depository
institution subsidiary, Metlife Bank, N.A. (“MetlLife Bank”}, a national bank, are subject to risk-based and leverage capital guidelines issued by the federal
banking regulatory agencies for banks and financial holding companies. The federal banking regulatory agencies are required by law to take specific
prompt corrective actions with respect to institutions that do not mest minimum capital standards. At December 31, 2003, MetLife, Inc. and MetLife Bank
were in compliance with the aforementioned guidalines. ’

The following table contains the RBC ratios as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the regulatory requirements for Metlife Inc., as a bank holding

company, and MetLife Bank:
MetLife, Inc.
RBC Ratios — Bank Holding Company

As of December 31,

Regulatory Regulatory
Requirements Requirements
2003 2002 Minimum “Well Capitalized”
Total RBC Ratio . ............................................... 11.19% 9.75% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier 1 RBC RO ..o e 918%  7.93% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Leverage Ralio . ... o 6.12% 5.59% 4.00% 5.00%

MetLife Bank
RBC Ratios — Bank

As of December 31,

Regulatory Regulatory
Requirements Requirements
2003 2002 Minimum “Well Capitalized”
Total RBC RatiO ..o 13.92%  25.75% 8.00% 10.00%
Tier TRBC Ratio . ..o 12.850%  25.39% 4.00% 6.00%
Tier 1 Leverage Ratlo ...t e 881% 18.33% 4.00% 5.00%

Liquidity

Liquidity refers to a company's ability to generate adeguate amounts of cash to meet its needs. It is managed to preserve stable, reliable and cost-
effective sources of cash to meet all current and future financial obligations and is provided by a variety of sources, including a portfolio of liquid assets, a
diversified mix of short and long-term funding sources from the wholesale financial markets and the ability to borrow through committed credit facilities,
The Holding Company is an active participant in the global financial markets through which it obtains a significant amount of funding, These markets,
which serve as cost-effective sources of funds, are critical components of the Holding Company's liquidity management. Decisions to access these
markets are based upon relative costs, prospective views of balance sheet growth, and a targeted liquidity profile. A disruption in the financial markets
could fimit the Holding Company's access 1o liguidity.

The Holding Company's ability to maintain regular access to competitively priced wholesale funds is fostered by its current debt ratings from the
major credit rating agencies. Management views its capital ratios, credit quality, stable and diverse eamings streams, diversity of liguidity sources and its
liquidity monitoring procedures as critical to retaining high credit ratings.

Liquidity is monitored through the use of internal liquidity risk metrics, including the composition and level of the liquid asset portfolio, timing
differences in short-term cash flow obligations, access to the financial markets for capital and term-debt transactions, and exposure to contingent draws
on the Holding Company's liquidity.

Liguidity Sources

Dividends.  The primary source of the Holding Company's liquidity is dividends it receives from Metropolitan Life. Under the New York Insurance
taw, Metropolitan Life is permitted, without prior insurance regulatory clearance, to pay a cash dividend to the Holding Company as long as the
aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the lesser of (i) 10% of its statutory surplus as of the immediately preceding
calendar year; and (i) its statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year (excluding realized capital gains). Metropolitan Life
will be permitted to pay a cash dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the lesser of such two amounts only if it files notice of its intention to declare
such a dividend and the amount thereof with the New York Superintendent of Insurance {the "Superintendent”) and the Superintendent does not
disapprove the distribution. Under the New York insurance Law, the Superintendent has broad discretion in determining whether the financial condition of
a stock life insurance company would support the payment of such dividends to its stockholders. The New York Insurance Department {the
“Department”} has established informal guidelines for such determinations. The guidelines, among other things, focus on the insurer's overalt financial
condition and profitability under statutory accounting practices. Management of the Halding Company cannot provide assurance that Metropclitan Life
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will have statutory eamings to support payment of dividends to the Holding Company in an amount sufficient to fund its cash requirements and pay cash
dividends or that the Superintendent will not disapprove any dividends that Metropolitan Life must submit for the Superintendent’s consideration. In
addition, the Holding Company receives dividends from its other subsidiaries. The Holding Company's other insurance subsidiaries are also subject to
similar restrictions on the payment of dividends to their respective parent companies.

The dividend fimitation is based on statutory financial results. Statutory accounting practices, as prescribed by insurance regulators of various states
in which the Company conducts business, differ in certain respects from accounting principles used in financial statements prepared in conformity with
GAAP. The significant differences relate to the treatment of DAC, certain deferred income taxes, required investment reserves, reserve calculation
assumptions, goodwill and surplus notes.

As of December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be paid to the Holding Company by Metropolitan Life, Metropolitan
Property and Casualty Insurance Company and Metropolitan Insurance and Annuity Company in 2004, without prior regulatory approval, is $788 million,
$200 milion and $185 million, respectively.

Liquid Assets.  An integral part of the Holding Company's liquidity management is the amount of liguid assets that it holds. Liquid assets include
cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments and marketable fixed maturity and equity securities. Liquid assets exclude assets relating to securities
lending and dollar roll activities, At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Holding Company had $1,320 million and $846 mifion In liquid assets,
respectively.

Global Funding Sources.  Liquidity is also provided by a variety of both short and fong-term instruments, including repurchase agreements,
commercial paper, medium and long-term debt, capital securities and stockhaolders' equity. The diversification of the Holding Company's funding sources
enhances funding flexibility and limits dependence on any one source of funds, and generally lowers the cost of funds.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Holding Company had $106 milion and $248 milion of short-term debt outstanding, and $3.96 bilion and
$3.27 bifion in long-term debt outstanding, respectively.

The Holding Company filed 2 $5.0 bilion shelf registration statement with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("*SEC™), which became
effective on March 4, 2004 The shelf registration will permit the registration and issuance of a wide range of debt and equity securities, including
preferred securities of a subsidiary trust guaranteed by MetLife Inc., as described more fully therein. Approximately $44 million of registered but unissued
securities remaining from the Company's 2001 $4.0 billion shelf registration statement has been carried over 1o this shelf registration.

The Holding Company issued and remarketed senior debt and debentures in the amount of $3.96 bilion under the 2001 $4.0 billion shelf
registration statement. The following table summarizes the Holding Company's senior debt issuances:

' interest
{ssue Date Principal Rate Maturity
{Dollars in millions)
November 2003, ... i P U $500 5.00% 2013
NOVEMIDEr 2003, L oo $200 5.88% 2033
DECBMIEr 2002 ..t $400 538% 2012
DBCEMEr 2002 .ttt $600 6.50% 2032
NOVEMBEr 200 . o e $500 5.25% 2006
NOVBMBEr 200 . $750 6.13% 2011

In addition, in February 2003, the Holding Company remarketed $1,006 million aggregate principal amount of debentures previously issued in
connection with the issuance of equity security units. See - Metlife Capital Trust |.”

Other sources of the Holding Company's liquidity include programs for short and long-term borrowing, as needed, arranged through Metropolitan
Life.

Credit Facilities.  The Holding Company maintains a committed and unsecured credit facility, which expires in 2008, for approximately $1.25 billion
which it shares with Metropolitan Life and MetLife Funding, Inc. {"MetLife Funding™). In April 2003, Metropolitan Life and Metlife Funding replaced an
expiring $1 billion five-year credit facility with a $1 billion 364-day credit facility and the Holding Company was added as a borrower. Drawdowns under
these facilities bear interest at varying rates stated in the agreements. These facilities are primarily used for general corporate purposes and as back-up
lines of credit for the borrowers' commercial paper programs. At.December 31, 2003, neither the Holding Company, Metropclitan Life nor MetlLife
Funding had drawn against these credit facilities.

Liquidity Uses

The primary uses of liquidity of the Holding Company include cash dividends on common stock, service on debt, capital contributions to
subsidiaries, payment of general operating expenses and the repurchase of the Holding Company's common stock.

Dividends,  On Cctober 21, 2003, the Holding Company's Board of Directors approved an annual dividend for 2003 of $0.23 per share. The
dividend was paid on December 15, 20083 to shareholders of record on November 7, 2003. The 2003 dividend represents an increase of $0.02 per
share from the 2002 annual dividend of $0.21 per share. Future dividend decisions will be determined by the Holding Company’s Board of Directors after
taking into consideration factors such as the Holding Company's current eamings, expected medium and long-term eamings, financial condition,
regulatory capital position, and applicable govemmental regulations and policies.

Capital Contributions to Subsidiaries.  During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Holding Company contributed an aggregate of
$239 milion and $500 milion to various subsidiaries, respectively.

Share Repurchase.  On February 19, 2002, the Holding Company's Board of Directors éuthorlzed a $1 billion common stock repurchase program.
This program began after the completion Qf the March 28, 2001 and June 27, 2000 repurchase programs, each of which autharized the repurchase of
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31 bilion of common stock. Under these authorizations, the Holding Company may purchase its common stock from the MetlLife Policyholder Trust, in
the open market and in privately negotiated transactions. The following table summarizes the 2003, 2002 and 2001 repurchase activity:

December 31,

2003 2002 2001

{Dollars in millions)
Shares Repurchased. . .. ov o 2,997,200 16,244,492 45,242,966
[ S O PPN $ 97 8 471 8 1,321

At December 31, 2003, the Holding Company had approximately $709 milion remaining on its existing share repurchase program.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, RGA offered to the public 12,075,000 shares of its common stock at $36.65 per share. Metlife and its affiliates
purchased 3,000,000 shares of the common stock being offered by RGA. As a result of this offering, Metlife's ownership percentage of outstanding
shares of RGA common stock was reduced from approximately 58% at December 31, 2002 to approximately 52% at December 31, 2003,

Support Agreements.  In 2002, the Holding Company entered into a net worth maintenance agresment with three of its insurance subsidiaries,
Metlife Investors Insurance Company, First MetLife Investors Insurance Company and Metlife Investors Insurance Company of California. Under the
agreements, the Holding Company agreed, without imitation as to the amount, to cause each of these subsidiaries to have a minimum capital and
surplus of $10 million (or, with respect to MetLife Investors Insurance Company of California, $6 million), total adiusted capital at a level not less than
150% of the company action level RBC, as defined Dy state insurance statutes, and liquidity necessary to enable it to meet its current obligations on a
timely basls, At December 31, 2003, the capital and surplus of each of these subsidiaries was in excess of the minimum capital and surplus amounts
referenced above, and their total adjusted capital was in excess of the most recent referenced RBC-based amount calculated at December 31, 2003.

Based on management's analysis and comparison of its current and future cash inflows from the dividends 1t receives from subsidiaries, including
Metropolitan Life, that are permitted to be paid without prior insurance regulatory approval and its portfolio of liquid assets and other anticipated cash
flows, management believes there will be sufficient liquidity to enable the Holding Company to make payments on debt, make cash dividend payments
on its common stock, contribute capital to its subsidiaries, pay all operating expenses and meet its other obligations.

The Company
Capital

RBC. Section 1322 of the New York Insurance Law requires that New York domestic life insurers report their RBC based on a formula calculated
by applying factors to various asset, premium and statutory reserve items; similar rules apply to each of the Company’s domestic insurance subsidiaries.
The formula takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate risk and business risk, Section 1322
gives the Superintendent explicit regulatory authority 1o require various actions by, or to take various actions against, insurers whose total adjusted capital
does not exceed certain RBC levels. At December 31, 2003, Metropolitan Life’s and each of the Holding Company's domestic insurance subsidiaries’
total adjusted capital was in excess of each of the RBC levels required by each state of domicile.

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC") adopted Codification of Statutory Accounting Principles (“Cedification”), which is
intended to standardize reguiatory accounting and reporting to state insurance departments and became effective January 1, 2001, However, statutory
accounting principles continue to be established by individual state laws and permitted practices. The Department required adoption of Codification with
certain medifications for the preparation of statutory financial statements of insurance companies domiciled in New York effective January 1, 2007.
Effective December 31, 2002, the Department adopted a moedification to its regulations to be consistent with Codification with respect to the admissibility
of deferred income taxes by New York insurers, subject to certain limitations. The adoption of Codification, as modified by the Department, did not
adversely affect Metropolitan Life's statutory capital and surplus. Further modifications by state insurance departments may impact the effect of
Codification on the statutory capital and surplus of Metropolitan Life and the Holding Company's other insurance subsidiaries.

Liquidity Sources

Cash Flow from Operations.  The Company’s principal cash inflows from its insurance activities come from insurance premiums, annuity considera-
tions and depostt funds. A primary liquidity concern with respect to these cash inflows is the risk of early contractholder and policyholder withdrawal. The
Company seeks to include provisions limiting withdrawal rights on many of its products, including general account institutional pension products
(generally group annuities, including guarantesd interest contracts and certain deposit fund liabilities) sold to employee benefit plan sponsors.

The Company's principal casht inflows from its investment activities come from repayments of principal, proceeds from maturities and sales of
invested assets and investment income. The prirmary liquidity concemns with respect to these cash inflows are the risk of default by debtors and market
volatiliies. The Company closely monitors and manages these risks through its Credit risk management process.

Liquid Assets.  An integral part of the Company's liquidity management is the amount of liquid assets it holds. Liguid assets include cash, cash
equivalents, short-term investments and marketable fixed maturity and equity securities. Liquid assets exclude assets relating to securities lending and
doftar roll activities. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had $125 bilion and $108 bilion in liquid assets, respectively.

Global Funding Sources.  Liquidity is also provided by a variety of both short and long-term instruments, including repurchase agreements,
commercial paper, medium and long-term debt, capital securities and stockholders’ equity. The diversification of the Company's funding sources
enhances funding flexibility, limits dependence on any one source of funds and generally lowers the cost of funds.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Compary had $3,642 milion and $71,161 milion in short-term debt outstanding, and $5,708 million and
34,425 milion in long-term debt outstanding, respectively. On November 1, 2003, the Comipany redeemed the $300 million of 7.45% Surplus Notes
outstanding scheduled to mature on November 1, 2023 at a redemption price of $311 milion. See “— The Holding Company — Global Funding
Sources.”

MetlLife Funding serves as a centralized finance unit for Metropolitan Life. Pursuant to a support agreement, Metropolitan Life has agreed to cause
MetLife Funding to have a tangible net worth of at least one dollar. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, MetLife Funding had a tangible net worth of
$10.8 million and $10.7 million, respectively. MetLife Funding raises funds from various funding sources and uses the proceeds to extend loans, through
MetlLife Credit Corp., a subsidiary of Metropolitan Life, to the Holding Company, Metropolitan Life and other affiiates. Metlife Funding manages its
funding sources to enhance the financial fliexibility and liguidity of Metropolitan Life and other affiliated companies. At December 31, 2003 and 2002,
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Metlife Funding had total outstanding liabilities, including accrued interest payable, of $1,042 million and $400 million, respectively, consisting primarily of
commercial paper. . '

Credit Facilties.  Tne Company maintains committed and unsecured credit facilities aggregating $2.5 billion ($1 billion expiring in 2004, $1.3 billion
expiring in 2005 and $175 million expiring in 2008). If these facilities were drawn upon, they would bear interest at varying rates in accordance with the
respective agreaments. The facilities can be used for general corporate purposes and also as back-up lines of credit for the Company's commercial
paper programs. At December 31, 20083, the Company had drawn approximately $49 milion under the facllities expiring in 2005 at interest rates ranging
from 4.08% 10 5.48% and approximately $50 million under a facility expiring in 2006 at an interest rate of 1.69%. In April 2003, the Company replaced an
expiring $71 bilion five-year credit facility with a $1 billion 364-day credit facility. In May 2003, the Company replaced an expiring $140 milion three-year
credit faclity with a $175 milion three-year credit faciity, which expires in 2008.

Liquidity Uses

Insurance Liabiities.  The Company's principal cash outfiows primarlly relate to the liabilities associated with its various life insurance, property and
casualty, annuity and group pension products, operating expenses and income taxes, as well as principal and interest on its outstanding debt
ohligations. Labilities arising from its insurance activities primarily relate to benefit payments under the aforementioned products, as well as payments for
policy surrenders, withdrawals and loans.

Investment and Other,  Additional cash outflows include those related to obligations of securities lending and doliar roll activities, investments in real
estate, limited partnerships and joint ventures, as well as litigation-related liabilities.
The following table summarizes the Company’s major contractual obligations as of December 31, 2003:

Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
o {Doilars in millions)
Cther long-term liabifities{1). . ... i $87,086  $4391  $3,812 $3,475 $3,763 $2,934 §68,711
Longterm debt(2) .. ... 5,646 126 1,413 853 28 32 3,394
Parinership investments(3) .................. e 1,380 1,380 — - — — —
Operating Ieases . ... 1,545 210 192 168 145 113 717
Mortgage commitments . ... 679 679 - - — — —
Shares subject to mandatory redemption(2)................ 350 - - — — — 350
Capltal 16838S. . ... o 74 8 9 10 11 12 24
Ot . $96,760 $6,794 35,426 $4,306 $3,947 $3,091  $73,196

(1) Other long-term liabilities include guaranteed: interest contracts, structured settlements, pension closeouts and certain annuity policies.
(2) Amounts differ from the balances presentad on the consolidated balance sheets. The amounts above do not include related premiums and discounts
or capital leases which are presented separately. ’
(8} The Company anticipates that these amounts could be invested in these partnerships any time over the next five years, but are presented in the
current period, as the timing of the fulfliment of the obligation cannot be predicted.
As of December 31, 2003, the Company had no material, individually or in the aggregate, purchase obligations and pension and other
postretirement benefit obligations.
On April 11, 2003, an affliate of the Company elected not to make future payments reguired by the terms of a non-recourse loan obligation. The
book value of this loan was $15 milion at December 31, 2003. The Company's exposure under the terms of the applicable loan agresment is limited
solely 1o its investment in certain securities held by an affiliate.

Letters of Credit. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company had outstanding approximately $828 million and $625 million, respectively, in
letters of credit from various banks, all of which expire within one year. Since commitments associated with letters of credit and financing arrangements
may expire unused, these amounts do not necessarily reflect the actual future cash funding requirements.

Support Agreernents.  In addition to the support agreements described above, Metropolitan Life entered into a net worth maintenance agreement
with New England Life insurance Company {(“NELICQO") at the time Metropolitan Life merged with New England Mutual Life Insurance Company. Under
the agreement, Metropolitan Life agreed, without limitation as to the amount, to cause NELICQO to have a minimum capital and surplus of $10 million, total
adjusted capttal at a level not less than the company action level RBC, as defined by state insurance statutes, and liquidity necessary to enable it to meet
its current oblfigations on a timely basis. At December 31, 2003, the capital and surplus of NELICO was in excess of the minimum capital and surplus
amount referenced above, and its total adjusted capital was in excess of the most recent referenced RBC-based amount calculated at December 31,
2008.

in connection with the Company’s acquisition of GenAmerica, Metropolitan Life entered into a net worth maintenance agreement with General
American, Under the agreement, Metropolitan Life agreed, without limitation as to amount, 1o cause General American to have a minimum capital and
surplus of $10 milion, total adiusted capital at a level not less than 180% of the company action level RBC, as defined by state insurance statutes, and
liquidity necessary to enable it to meet its current obligations on a timely basis. The agreement was subsequently amended to provide that, for the five
year period from 2003 through 2007, total adjusted capital must be maintained at a level not less than 200% of the company action level RBC, as
defined by state insurance statutes. At December 31, 2003, the capital and surplus of General American was in excess of the minimum capital and
surplus amount referenced above, and its total adjusted capital was in excess of the most recent referenced RBC-based amount calculated at
December 31, 2003.

Metropolitan Life has also entered into arrangements for the benefit of some of its other subsidiaries and affiiates to assist such subsidiaries and
affiliates in meeting various jurisdictions’ regulatory requirements regarding capital and surplus and security deposits. In addition, Metropolitan Life has
entered into a support arrangement with respect to a subsidiary under which Metropolitan Life may become responsible, in the event that the subsidiary
becomes the subject of insolvency proceedings, for the payment of certain reinsurance recoverables due from the subsidiary to one or more of its
cedents in accordance with the terms and conditions of the applicable reinsurance agreements.
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General American has agreed to guarantee the obligations of its subsidiary, Paragon Life Insurance Company, and certain obligations of its former
subsidiaries, MetLife Investors Insurance Company {"MetLife Investors"), First MetlLife Investors Insurance Company and Metlife Investors Insurance
Company of Califomia. In addition, General American has entered into a contingent reinsurance agreement with MetLife Investors. Under this agreement,
in the event that MetLife Investors' statutory capital and surplus is less than $10 milion or total adjusted capftal falls below 150% of the company action
level RBC, as defined by state insurance statutes, General American would assume as assumption reinsurance, subject to regulatory approvals and
reguired consents, all of Metl.ife Investors' life insurance policies and annuity contract liabilities. At December 31, 2003, the capitat and surplus of MetLife
Investors was in excess of the minimum capital and surplus amount referenced above, and its total adjusted capitat was in excess of the most recent
referenced RBC-based amount calculated at December 31, 2003.

Management does not anticipate that these arangements will place any significant demands' upon the Company's liguidity resources.

Litigation.  Various litigation claims and assessments against the Company have arisen in the course of the Company's business, inciuding, but not
limited to, in connection with its activities as an insurer, employer, investor, investrment adviscr and taxpayer. Further, state insurance regulatory authorities
and other federal and state authorities regularly make mqumes and conduct investigations conceming the Company's compliance with applicable
insurance and other laws and regulations.

It is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or provide reasonable ranges of
potential losses except with respect to certain matters. In some of the matters, very large and/or indeterminate amounts, including punttive and treble
damages, are sought. Although In light of these considerations, it is possible that an adverse outcome in certain cases could have a material adverse
effect upon the Company's consclidated financial position, based on information currently known by the Company's management, in its opinion, the
outcomes of such pending investigations and legal proceedings are not likely to have such an effect. However, given the large and/or indeterminate
amounts sought in certain of these matters and the inherent unpredictability of litigation, it is possible that an adverse outcome in certain matters could,
from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated net income or cash flows in particular quarterly or annual periods.

Based on management's analysis of its expected cash inflows from operating activities, the dividends it receives from subsidiaries, including
Metropolitan Life, that are permitted to be paid without prior insurance regulatory approval and its portfolio of liguid assets and other anticipated cash
flows, management believes there will be sufficient fiquidity to enable the Company to make payments on debt, make cash dividend payments on its
common stock, pay all operating expenses and meet its other obligations, The nature of the Company's diverse product portfolio and customer base
lessen the likelinood that normal operations will result in any significant strain on liguidity.

Consolidated cash flows.  Net cash provided by operating activities was $7,363 million and $4,168 milion for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The $3,195 million increase in operating cash flow in 2003 over the comparable 2002 period is primarily attributable to sales
growth in the group'life, dental, disability and long-term care businesses, as well as higher sales in retirement and savings’ structured settlement
products. The acguisttion of Jonn Hancock's group business also contributed to sales growth in the 2003 period. In addition, growth in MetLife Bank's
customer deposits, accelerated prepayments of mortgage-backed securities that have been previously purchased at a premium, and an increase in
funds withheld related to reinsurance activity contributed to the increase in operating cash flows. These items were partially offset by the Company's
contribution to its qualified defined benefit plans in December 2003,

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4,168 million and $4,258 million for the vears ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The $90 million decrease in operating cash flow in 2002 over the 2001 comparable period is primarily due to a contribution by the Company to its defined
benefit pension plans and a decrease in recoverables due from reinsurance in December 2002. This was partially offset by sales growth in the group life,
dertal, disability and long-term care businesses, the sale of a significant retirement and savings contract in the second quarter of 2002, as well as
additional sales of structured seftlements and traditional annuity products.

Net cash used in investing activities was $17,688 million and $16,213 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
$1,475 milion increase in net cash used in investing activities in 2003 over the comparable 2002 period is primarily attributable to an increase in the
purchase of fixed maturities and commercial mortgage loan origination, as well as an increase in the amount of securities lending cash collateral invested,
which resulted from an expansion of the program. In addition, the Company invested income generated from operations and cash raised through the
issuance of guaranteed investment contracts. These ftems were partially offset by lower income resulting from lower market rates and the June 2002
acquisition of Hidalgo. In addition, the 2003 period had less proceeds from sales of equity securities and real estate to use in investing activities. The
2002 period included proceeds from a significant sale of equity securities and cash generated by the Company's real estate sales program.

Net cash used in investing activities was $16,213 million and $2,970 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Net
cash used in investing activities increased $13,243 milion in 2002 over the comparable 2001 period, primarily due to an increase in the amount of
securlties lending cash collateral invested in connection with the program. In addition, the Company invested income generated from operations, cash
raised through the issuance of guaranteed investment contracts and cash generated by the Company's real estate sales program in various financial
instruments, including fixed maturities and mortgage lcans on real estate. At December 31, 2001, the Company held cash equivalents that were
subsequently invested in bonds and U.S. treasury notes in the first quarter of 2002. Additionally, certain contractholders transferred investments from the
separate account 1o the general account. Net cash used in investing activities also increased due to the acquisition of Hidalgo.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $11,735 million and $8,895 million for-the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The $4,840 million increase in net cash provided by financing activities in 2003 over the comparable 2002 period is due to an increase in policyholder
account balances primarily from sales of annuity products, as well as additional short-term debt issued related to dollar roll activity. In 2003, the Company
received $1,006 million on the settlement of common stock purchase contracts (see “— The Holding Company -— Liquidity Sources — Global Funding
Sources”), issued $700 million of senior notes and had a decrease in cash used in the stock repurchase program as compared to 2002. These cash
flows were partially offset by additional repayments of long-term debt and a 10% increase in cash dividends per share in 2003 as compared to 2002.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $6,895 milion and $2,751 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The $4,144 milion increase in financing activities in 2002 over the comparable 2001 period was due to an increase in policyholder account balances
primarlly from sales of annuity products and the issuance of short-term debt. In addition, the Company had a decrease in cash used in the stock
repurchase program for 2002 as compared to 2001. These cash flows were partially offset by a decrease in long-term debt issued.

Insolvency Assessments
Most of the jurisdictions in which the Company is admitted 10 transact business require life insurers doing business within the jurisdiction to
participate in guaranty associations, which are organized to pay contractual benefits owed pursuant to insurance policles issued by impaired, insclvent or
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failed iife insurers. These associations levy assessments, up to prescribed limits, on all member insurers in & particular state on the basis of the
proportionate share of the premiums written by member insurers in the lines of business in which the impaired, insotvent or failed insurer engaged. Some
states permit member insurers to recover assessments paid through full or partial premium tax offsets. Assessments levied against the Company from
January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2003 aggregated $7 milllion. The Company maintained & liability of $70 milion at December 31, 2003 for future
assessments in respeact of currently impaired, insolvent or falled insurers:

In the past five years, none of the aggregate assessments levied against Metlife's insurance subsidiaries has been material. The Company has
established liabilities for guaranty fund assessments that it considers adequate for assegsments with respect to insurers that are currently subject t©
insolvency proceedings.

Effects of Inflation

The Company does not beueve that inflation has had a material effect on its consolidated results of operations, except insofar as lnﬂanon may affect
interest rates.

Appllcatlon of Recent Accounting Standards

Effective December 31, 2003, the Company adopted Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary
Impairment and fts Application to Certain Investments, ("EITE 03-1"). EITF 03-1 provides guidance on the disclosure requirements for other-than-
temporary impairments of debt and marketable equity investments that are accounted for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investrments in Debt and Equity Securities. The adoption of BITF 03-1 requires the Company to include certain
quaniitative and.qualitative disclosures for debt and marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity under SFAS 115 that
are impaired at the balance sheet date but for which an other-than-temporary impairment has not bean recognized. The initial adoption of EITF 03-1,
which onty required additional disclosures, did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In December, 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) revised SFAS No. 132, Empiloyers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits — an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 and 106 ("SFAS 132(n)"). SFAS 132(1) retaing most of the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 132 and requires additionat disclosure about assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit
pension plans and other.defined postretirement plans. SFAS 132(r) is primarily effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003; however, certain
disclosures about foreign plans and estimated future benefit payments are effective for fiscal years ending after June 18, 2004. The Company's adoption
of SFAS 132(r) on December 31, 2003 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements since it only revises disclosure
requirements. In January 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP") No. 108-1, Accounting and Disclosure Requiremments Related to the
Medicare Frescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 ("FSP 108-1"), which permits a sponsor of a postretirement health.care plan
that provides a prescription drug benefit 1o make a one-time election to defer accounting for the effects of the new legislation. Tre Company has elected
10 defer the accounting until further guidance s issued by the FASB. The measurements of the Company’s postretirement accumulated benefit plan
obligation and net periodic benefit cost do not reflect the effects of the new legislation. The guidance, when issued, could require the Company to
change previously reported information.

In July 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Pasition
03-1, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts (“'SOP 03-1").
SOP 03-1 provides guidance on (i) the classification and valuation of long-duration contract liabilities, (i) the accounting for sales inducements, and
(i} separate account presentation and valuation, SOP 03-1 15 effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003. As of January 1, 2004, the
Company increased future policyholder benefits for various guaranteed minimum death and income benefits net of DAC -and uneamed revenue liability
offsets under certain variable annuity and universal life contracts of approximately $40 million, net of income tax, which will be reported as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting. Industry standards and practices continue to evolve relating to the valuation of liabilities relating to these types of
benefits, which may result in further adjustments to the Company’s measurement of liabllities associated with such benefits in subsequent accounting
pericds. Effective with the adoption of SOP 03-1, costs associated with enhanced or bonus crediting rates to contractholders will be deferred and
amortized over the life of the related contract using assumptions consistent with the amortization of DAC. Prior to adoption of SOP 03-1, the costs
associated with these sales inducements have been deferred and amortized over the contingent sales inducement period. This provision of SOP 03-1
will be applied prospectively to contracts. Effective January 1, 2004, the Company reclassified $115 milion of ownership in its own separate accounts
from other assets to fixed maturities available-for-sale and equity securities. This reclassification will have no effect on net income or ather comprehensive
income. In accordance with SOP 03-1's revised definition of a separate account, effective January 1, 2004, the Company also reclassified $1.678 million
of separate account assets to general account investments and $1,678 million of separate account liabilties to future policy benefits and policyholder
account balances. The net cumulative effect of this reclassfification was insignificant.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity
("SFAS 150"). SFAS 150 clarifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity and requires that those
instruments be classified as a liability or, in certain circumstances, an asset. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after
May 31, 2003 and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 150, as of
July 1, 2008, required the Company to reclassify $277 milion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts from
mezzaning equity to liabilities.

in April 2003, the FASB cleared Statement 133 Imp\ementatron Issue No. B36, Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and
Debt Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partiafly Related to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor under Those
Instrurments (“Issue B36"). issue B36 concluded that (i) a company's funds withheld payable and/or receivable under certain reinsurance arangemeants,
and (iy a dett instrument that incorporates credit risk exposures that are unrelated or only partiaty related to the creditworthiness of the obligor include an
embedded derivative feature that is not cClearly and closely related 1o the host contract. Therefore, the embedded derivative feature must be measured at
fair value on the balance sheet and changes in fair value reported in income. Issue B36 became effective on October 1, 2003 and required the Company
to increase po]icyholder account balances by $40 million, to decrease other invested assets by $1 milion and to increase DAC by $2 million. These
amounts, net of income tax of $13 million, were recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting. As a result of the adoption of Issue 838, the
Company recognized investment gains of $9 milion, net of income tax, for the three month period ended December 31, 2003.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Amendment of Statement 133-on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 149”).
SFAS 149 amends and clarffies the accounting and reparting for derlvative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities. Except for certain implementation guidance that is incorporated in SFAS 149 and afready effective, SFAS 149 is
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effective for contracts entered into or modifled after June 30, 2003. The Company’s adoption of SFAS 148 on July 1, 2003 did not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements. .

During 2003, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46 Consolidation of Variable interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARBE No. &1
{("FIN 46") and its December 2003 revision {(“FIN 46(1)"). Certain of the Company's asset-backed securitizations, collateralized debt obligations, structured
investment transactions, and investments in real estate joint veniures and other imited partnership interests mest the definition of a variable interest entity
("VIE") and must be consolidated, in accordance with the transition rules and effective dates, f the Company is deemed 10 be the primary bengficiary. A
VIE is defined as (i) any entity in which the equity investments at risk in such entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest, or
(i) any entity that does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities witheut additional subordinated support from other parties. Effective
February 1, 20083, the Company adopted FIN 46 for VIEs created or acquired on or after February 1, 2008 and, effective December 31, 2003, the
Company adopted FIN 468{) with respect to interests in entities formerly considered special purpose entities ("SPES”), including interests in asset-backed
securities and collateralized debt obligations. In accordance with the provisions of FIN 46(r), the Company has elected to defer untit March 31, 2004 the
consolidation of interests'in VIEs for non SPEs acquired prior to February 1, 2003 for which it is the primary beneficiary. The adoption of FIN 46 as of
February 1, 2003 did not have a sigrificant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements, The adoption of the provisions of FIN 46() at
December 31, 2003 did not require the Company to consolidate any additional VIEs that were not previously consclidated.

During 2003, the Company adopted or applied the following accounting standards and/or interpretations: (i} FASB Interpretation {"FIN") No. 45,
Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others; (i) SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Cormpensation — Transition and Disclosure, (i) SFAS No. 148, Accountting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities, and (iv) SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements Nc: 4, 44, and 84, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.
None of the accounting standards and/or interpretations described in this paragraph had a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial
statements. ‘ '

During 2002, the Company adopted or applied the following accounting standards: (i) SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations ("SFAS 1417,
iy SFAS No. 142, and (i) SFAS No. 144. In accordance with SFAS 141, the elimination of $5 million of negative goodwill was reported in net income in
the first quarter of 2002 as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting. On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 142. Amortization of
geodwill prior to the acloption of SFAS 142 was $47 milion for the year ended December 31, 2001. Amortization of other intangible assets was not
material for the years December 31, 2008, 2002 and 2001. The Company completed the required impaiment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets in the third guarter of 2002 and recorded a $5 million charge 10 eamings relating to the impairment of certain goodwill assets as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting. There was no Impairment of identffied intangible assets or significant reclassifications between goodwill and
other intangible assets at January 1, 2002, Adoption of SFAS 144 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements
other than the presentation as discontinued: operations of net investment income and net investrent gains related to operations of real estate on which
the Company inftiated disposition activities subsegquent to January 1, 2002 and the classification of such real estate as held-for-sale on the consolidated
balance sheets. '

Investments

The Company had total cash and invested assets at Decembear 31, 2003 and 2002 of $221.8 billion and $190.7 billion, respectively. In addition, the
Company had $75.8 bilion and $59.7 bilion held in its separate accounts, for which the Company generally doss not bear investment risk, as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. ’

The Company's primary investment objective is to maximize net investment iIncome consistent with acceptable risk parameters. The Company is
exposed to three primary sources of investment risk: ' '

* credit risk, relating to the uncertainty associated with the continued abiity of a given obligor to make timely payments of principal and interest;

* interest rate risk, relating to the market price and cash flow variability associated with changes in market interest rates; and

* market vaiuation risk. . .

The Company manages risk through in-house fundamental analysis of the underlying obligors, issuers, transaction structures and real estate
properties. The Company also manages credit risk and market valuation risk through industry and issuer diversification and asset aflocation. For real
estate and agricultural assets, the Company manages credit risk and valuation risk through geographic, property type, and product type diversification
and asset allocation. The Company manages interest rate risk as part of its asset and liability management strategies, product design, such as the use of
market vaiue adjustment features and surrender charges, and proactive monitoring and management of certain non-guaranteed elements of its products,
such as the resetting of credited interest and dividend rates for policies that permit such adjustments.

The following table summarizes the Company's cash and invested assets at:
December 31,

2003 : 2002
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Total Value Total

. ) (Doltars in millions)

Fixed maturities available-for-sale, at fairvalue .................. T $167,752 75.6% $140,288 73.6%
Mortgage loans On real EStatE . . . ... o 26,249 11.8 25,086 13.2
POl Y 0BMS oot e 8749 . 40 8,680 4.5
Cash and Cash BQUIVAIBNTS . . . oo e 3,733 1.7 2,323 1.2
Real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment .. ... .. e 4,714 2.1 3,926 2.1
Other invested assets ... oo i e P, P 4,645 2.1 3,727 1.9
Equity securities, at fair value and other limited partnership interests ... 4,075 1.8 4,008 2.1
SO VeSS . ot e 1,826 08 . 1,921 1.0
Real estate held-for-sale .................. AT N P 89 o1 798 0.4

Total cash and invested assets................. e $221,8332  100.0% $190,658 100.0%
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Investment Results

Net Investment income, including net investment income from .discontinued operations and scheduled periodic settlemeant payments on derivative
instruments that do not qualify- for hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended
{("SFAS 133", on general account cash and invested assets totaled $11,772 million, $11,453 milion and $11,380 milion for the years ended
Decsmber 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The-annualized yields on general account cash and invested assets, including net investrment
income from discontinued operations and scheduled periodic settlement payments on derivative instruments that do not qualify for nedge accounting
under SFAS No. 133, and excluding all net investment gains and losses, were 6.67%, 7.20% and 7.56% for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. The decline in annualized yields is due primarlly to the decline in interest rates during these years.

The following table ilustrates the net investment income and annualized vields on average assets for each of the components of the Company's

investment portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 }
: 2002 2001

Yieid(1) Amount Yield(1) Amount Yield(1) Amount
(Dollars in millions)

Fixed Maturities:(2)

IMVESIMENT INCOME ...  BBY% $ 8502 746% $ 8076 7.89% 3 8018
Net investment gains (10SSeS). . ..o (398) ©17) (645)
Ot e $ 8104 $ 7,159 $ 7,373
ENAiNg @SSEIS « .ot $167,752 $140,288 $115,150
Mortgage Loans on Real Estate:(3) ‘
IWVESIMENT INCOME .ottt e e .. 7.48% % 1,903 7.84% 3 1,883 8.17% $ 1,848
Net investment gaing (l0SSes). . ... (56) 22) ©1)
TOtal . $ 1847 $ 1,867 $ 1,757
ENAiNg @SS8I8 n it $ 26,249 $ 25,086 $ 23,621
Policy Loans: ‘
VESIMENT INCOME .. oottt i 6.40% 3 554 6.49% $ 543 B8.56% I 538
ENding @SSetS . oo viv i $ 8749 $ 8,580 $ 8272
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments:
INVESIMENE INCOME ..t e e e e 2.73% % 165 417% 3% 232 554% & 279
Net investment gaing (08888). .. ... v 1 — 5)
TOE e [N or $ 166 I 232 3 274
Endingassets ...........co il LT 3 5559 8 4244 $ 8,676
Real Estate and Reat Estate Joint Ventures:{4)
lnvestment income, net of expenses. ...t 10.78% % 518 11.41% 3 637 1058% $ 584
Net investment gains {losses) . ........ooo it RO : 440 576 (4)
B Lot P $ 928 3 1,213 $ 580
ENAING @SSEIS vttt e $ 4,803 $ 4725 $ 5730
Equity Securities and Other Limited Partnership Interests:
INVESHMENE INCOME ettt e e et e e e e enan s 266% $ 106 2.47% $ 99 256% & 110
Net investment gaing (0S8} . - v« ot vr it (43) 222 (96)
Total o P - 3 63 $ 321 $ 14
BNdiNg 8SSETS + o\ v $ 4,075 3 4,008 $ 4,048
Other Invested Assets:(5) .
INVEStMENt INCOME .+ ..o vv e iarea s e 6.84% $ 290 6.42% & 218 760% $ 249
Net investment gaing (0S5eS) . - . .. oot e (180) (206) 79
TOtEl e e $ 110 $ 12 $ 328
Ending aSsets ..ot : $ 4,645 $ 3727 $ 3,208
Total Investments:
Investment income before expenses and fees.................. 6882% $ 12,038 735% $ 11,688 7.72% $ 11,624
Investment expenses and fees ... .o 0.15)% (266) 0.15)% (235) {0.16)% (244}
Net investment income . ...... e e B67% $ 11,772 720% $ 11,453 756% $ 11,380
Net.investment gains (losses). . ... . . e S (236} 347) (762)
Adjustments to investment gains:(losses)(8) . Lo 215 145 134
Gaing from sales of subsidiaries ... = - )
Total ..... T e $ 11,751 . $ 11,251 $ 10,777

(1) Yields are based on quarterly average asset camying values, excluding recognized and unrealized gains and losses, and for vield calculation
purposes, average assets exclude collateral associated with the Company's securities lending program.

(2) Included in fixed maturities are equity-linked notes of $880 million, $834 million, and $1,004 million at December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively,
whjch include an equity-like component as part of the notes’ retum. Investment income for fixed maturities includes prepayment fees and income from the
securities lending program. Fixed maturity investment income has been reduced by rebates paid under the securities lending program.

(3) Investment income from mortgage loans on real estate includes prepayment fees,

(4) Real estate and real estate joint venture income is. shown net of depreciation of $183 milllion, $227 miflion and $220 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Real estate and real estate joint venture income includes amounts classified as discontinued
operations of $52 milion, $160 milion and $163 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These amounts are
net of depreciation of $15 milion, $66 milicn and $93 million for the vears ended Decemiver 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Net investment
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gains and losses include $421 milion and $582 million of gains classified as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. There were no net investment gains and losses classified as discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2001.
{5) Investment income from other invested assets includes scheduled periodic seftlement payments on derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting under SFAS 133 of $84 milion, $32 milion and $24 millon for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Thase amounts are excluded from net investment gains and losses from-other invested assets.
(6) Adjustments to investment.gains and losses include amortization of DAC, charges and credits to participating contracts and adjustments to the
policyholder dividend obligation resulting from investment gains and-losses. -

Fixed Maturities '

Fixed maturities consist principally of publicly traded and privately placed debt securities, and represented 75.6% and 73.6% of total cash and
invested assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Based on estimated fair value, public fixed maturities represented $147,489 million, or
87.9%, and $121,191 million, or 86.4%, of total fixed maturities at December 31, 2008 and 2002, respectively. Based on estimated fair value, private
fixed maturties représented $20,263 million, or 12.1%, and $18,097 milion, or 13.6%, of total fixed maturities at December 31, 20038 and 2002,
respectively. The Company invests in privately placed fixed maturities to (i) obtain higher vields than can ordinarily be obtained with comparable public
market securities; (i) provide the Company with protective covenants, call protection features and, where applicable, a higher level of collateral; and
(i) increase diversification. However, the Company may not fresly trade its privately placed fixed maturities because of restrictions imposed by federal and
state securities laws and iliquid markets, '

In cases where guoted market prices are not available, fair values ars estimated using present value or valuation technigues. The fair value estimates
are made at a specific point in time, based on available market information and judgments about the financial instruments, including estimates of the
timing and amounts of expected future cash flows and the credit standing of the issuer or counter-party. Factors considersd in estimating fair value
include: coupon rate, maturity, estimated duration, call provisions, sinking fund requirements, credit rating, Industry sector of the issuer and quoted
market prices of comparable securities.

The Securities Valuation Office of the NAIC evaluates the fixed maturity investments of insurers for regulatory reporting purposes and assigns
securities to one of six investment categories called "NAIC designations.” The NAIC ratings are similar to the rating agency designations of the Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations for marketable bonds. NAIC ratings 1 and 2 include bonds generally considered investment grade (rated
“Baa3" or higher by Moody's Investors Services ("Moody's"), or rated "BBB-" or higher by Standard & Poor’s {'S&P")) by such rating organizations. NAIC
ratings 3 through 6 Include bonds generally considerad below investment grade (rated “Ba1” or lower by Moody's, or rated "BB+" or lower by S&F).

The following table presents the Company's total fixed maturities by Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations designation and the
equivalent ratings of the NAIC, as well as the percentage, based on estimated fair value, that each designation comprises at:

. December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
NAIC Rating Agency Amortized Estimated % of . Amortized Estimated % of
Rating Designation{1} Cost Fair Value Total Cost Fair Value Total
{Dollars in millions) R

1 ABB/AB/A . $106,779  $112,333 B67.0% $ 88201 § 94,225 67.2%
2 Baa . 39,008 42,057 250 32,093 33,997 24.2
3 Ba .o e 7,388 8,011 48 7519 7,437 5.3
A B 3,578 3,814 2.3 3,636 3,408 2.4
B Caaand lower ... 630 629 0.4 404 2905 03
[5) Inorneardefault ... . 347 371 0.2 482 479 0.3
Subtotal. ... 167,722 167,215 © Q9.7 132,335 139,841 99.7
Redeemable preferred stock. oo 811 537 0.3 564 447 0.3

Total fixed maturities. .. ... o $188,333 167,752  100.0% 3$132,809 $140,288  100.0%

(1) Amounts presented are based on rating agency designations. Comparisons betweaen NAIC ratings and rating agency designations are published by
the NAIC. The rating agency designations are based on the availability and the lower of the applicable ratings between Moody's and S&F. The current
period ratings are now presented so that the consolidated rating will be equal to the Moody's or S&P rating, whichever is more conservative. If no
rating is avallable from a rating agency, then the MeitLife rating will be used. Prior period ratings have been restated to conform with this presentation.

Based on estimated fair values, investment grade fixed maturities comprised 82.0% and 91.4% of total fixed maturities in the general account at

December 31, 2003 and 2002, respeactively.

The following table shows the amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturities, by contractual maturity dates {excluding scheduled sinking
funds) at: :

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
{Dollars in millions)

Due in one year or 18Ss .. ... A PP $ 5381 § 55642 $ 4592 § 4662
Due after one year through five years . .. ..o T 30,893 32,431 26,200 27,354
- Due after five years through en vears ... 29,342 31.830 23,297 24,987
Due affer ten years .« .o e e [ 39,011 43,084 35,507 38,482
Subtotal .o S | 104,627 112,867 189,506 05,455
Mortgagevbacked and other asset-backed securities ... .. .. Ceee P 53,005 54,348 42739 44,386
SUBIOIEL © v e e e 157722 . 167,215 132,335 139,841
Redeemable preferred stock ... oo e .61 537 564 447

Total fixed MatUties .. ... i . $158,333 $167,752 $1382,890 $140,288

30 ' MetlLife, Inc.




Bonds not due at a single maturty date have been included in the above table in the year of final maturity. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturities due to the exercise of prepayment options.

The fixed maturities portfolio is diversified across a broad range of asset sectors, and the asset mix did not change significantly in 2003. The
following tables set forth the amortized cost, gross unrealized gain and loss, and estimated fair value of the Company's fixed maturities by sector, as well
as the percentage of the total fixed maturities holdings that each sector is comprised of at:

December 31, 2003
Gross Unrealized

Amortized —_ e Estimated % of
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value Total
{Doliars in millions)
U.S, COorate SBOUMIES . ...ttt oo e e e $ 56,757 3 38856 $252 F 60,391 36.0%
Mortgage-backed SeCUMIBS . . ... L. 30,836 720 102 31,454 18.8
Foreign Corporate SECUMIES . . ..ottt e et e e e e 21,727 2,194 79 23,842 14,2
U.S Ireasuries/agenCies ..o r e e 14,707 1,264 26 15,945 9.5
Asset-bDacked SECUNMTBS ... 11,736 187 80 11,863 7.1
Commercial mortgage-backed SeCurties . ... i 10,623 530 22 11,031 6.6
FOreign GoVemMENT SECUMTIES . .. ..t e e 7,789 1,003 28 8,764 52
State and palitical SUDAIVISIONS .. ... 3,185 208 18 3,349 2.0
Other fixed income assets . .................ooee PP 492 167 83 576 0.3
e oo P 167,722 10,160 6867 167,215 897
Redeemable praferred SIOCKS ..o 611 2 76 537 0.3
Total fixed MAEtUMHIES . ..o e e e $158,333 $10,162 $743 167,752  100.0%
December 31, 2002
Amortized ~ _GrossUnrealized — pounapeq % of
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value Total
{Dollars in millions)
U.S. corporate SECUMIES . . ...t e . $ 47,021 $3183 $ 957 P 48,257 35.1%
Mortgage-Dacked SECUMIES .. .ot e 26,966 1,076 16 28,026 20.0
FOreign corporate SECUNtIBS . ... oot e 18,001 1,435 207 19,229 137
U S U S BRI . vttt 14,373 1,565 4 18,834 11.4
Asset-backed SECUMIES .. .ot e 9,483 228 208 8,503 8.8
Cornmercial mortgage-backed securities. . ... ... o 6,290 573 6 6,857 4.9
Foreign govermnment SeCUMIES .. ..ot e 7,012 636 52 7,696 54
State and political subdivisions .. ... 2,680 182 20 2,742 1.9
Other ixed INCOME BSSEIS ..ottt e e 600 197 103 697 0.5
oAl DONS .ttt e 132,335 9,072 1,573 139,841 98,7
Redeemable preferred stockS . .. oo 564 — 117 447 0.3
Total fixed MAIUMIES . .. ... $132,809  $9,079  $1,620 $140,288 100.0%

Fotential Froblem, Problem and Restructured Fixed Maturities.  The Company monitors fixed maturities to identify investments that management
considers o be potential problems or problems. The Company also monitors investments that have been restructured.

The Company defines potential problem securities in the fixed maturity category as securities of an issuer deemegd to be experiencing significant
operating problems or difficult industry conditions. The Company uses various criteria, inciuding the following, to identify potential problem securities:

* debt service coverage or cash flow falling below certain thresholds which vary according 1o the issuer's industry and other relevant factors;

* significant declines In revenues or margins;

* violation of financial covenants;

* public securities trading at & substantial discount as a result of specific credit concems; and

» other subjective factors.

The Company defines problem securities in the fixed maturities category as securities with principal or interest payments in default, securities to be
restructured pursuant to commenced negotiations, or securities issued by a debtor that has entered into bankruptcy.

The Company defines restructured securities in the fixed maturities category as securities to which the Company has granted a concession that it
would not have otherwise considered but for the financial difficulties of the obligor. The Company enters into a restructuring when it believes it will realize a
greater economic value under the new terms rather than through liguidation or disposition. The terms of the restructuring may involve some or all of the
following characteristics: a reduction in the interest rate, an extension of the maturity date, an exchange of debt for equity or a partial forgiveness of
principal or interest.
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The following table presents the estimated fair value of the Company's total fixed maturities classified as performing, potential problem, problem and
restructured at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Estimated % of Estimated % of
Fair Value Total Fair Value Total
{Dollars in millions)
P OImMING o e $167,125 99.6% $139,452 99.4%
Potential problem .. 282 0.2 450 0.3
£} 2 T D 264 0.2 358 0.3
RSt Ut . e e 81 0.0 28 0.0
1165 $167,752 100.0% $140,288 100.0%

Fixed Maturity Impairment.  The Company classifies al of its fixed maturities as available-for-sale and marks them to market through other
comprehensive income. All securities with gross unrealized losses at the consolidated balance shest date are subjected to the Company’s process for
identifying other-than-temparary impairments. The Company writes down 1o falr value securities that it deems to be other-than-temporarily impaired in the
period the securities are deemed 1o be so Impaired. The assessment of whether such impairment has occured is based on management's case-by-
case evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline In fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors, as described below, about the
security Issuer and uses its best judgment in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the security and in assessing the prospects
for near-term recovery. Inherent in management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the issuer and its
future earnings potential.

Considerations used by the Company in the impairment evalugtion process include, but are not limited to, the following:

« length of ime and the extent to which the market value has been below amortized cost;

+ potential for impairments of securities when the issuer is experiencing significant financial difficulties, including a review of all securities of the

issuer, including its known subsidiaries and affiliates, regardless of the form of the Company’s ownership;

* potential for impairments in an entire industry sector or sub-sector,

« potential for impairments in certain economically depressed geographic focations;

« potential for impairments of securities where the issuer, series of issuers or industry has suffered a catastrophic type of loss or has exhausted

natural resources; and

 other subjective factors, including concentrations and information obtained from regulators and rating agencies.

The Company's review of its fixed maturities for impairments includes an analysis of the total gross unrealized losses by three categories of
securities: (i) securties where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below amortized cost by less than 20%; (i) securities where the
estimated falr value had declined and remained below amortized cost by 20% or more for less than six months; and (i) securities where the estimated
value had declined and remained below amortized cost by 20% or mare for six months or greater. The first two categories have generally been adversely
impacted by the downturn in the financial markets and overall economic conditions. While all of these securities are monitored for potential impairment,
the Company’s experience indicates that the first two categories do not present as great a risk of impairment, and often, fair values recover over time as
the factors that caused the declines improve.

The Company records writedowns as investment losses and adjusts the cost basis of the fixed maturities accordingly. The Company does not
change the revised cost basis for subsequent recoveries in value. Writedowns of fixed maturities were $338 miflion and $1,264 million for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company's three largest writedowns totaled $125 million and $352 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, The circumstances that gave rise to these impairments were either financial restructurings or bankruptcy
filings. During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company sold fixed maturities with a fair vaiue of 330,714 milion and £14,597 million
at a loss of $486 million and $894 million, respectively.

The fallowing table presents the total gross unrealized losses for fixed maturities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below
amortized cost by:

December 31, 2003
“Gross

Unrealized % of
Losses Total
(Dollars in millions)
LeSS than 200 . ..o 3677 91.1%
20% or MOore fOr 1888 TNaAN Sl MO L o L vttt e et e e e 22 3.0
20% or MOore for SiX MOMNG OF GrEaAIET ..ottt e e e 44 58
Ot o 3743 100.0%

The gross unrealized loss related to the Company's fixed maturities at December 31, 2003 was $743 milion. These fixed maturites mature as
follows: 1% due in one year or less; 23% due in greater than one vear 1o five years; 18% due in greater than five vears 10 ten years; and 58% due in
greater than ten years {calculated as a percentage of amortized cost). Additionally, such securities are concentrated by sector in U.S., corporates (34%),
mortgage-backed (17%) and foreign corporates (11%); and are concentrated by industry in mortgage-backed (13%), utilities (12%) and finance (8%)
(calculated as a percentage of gross unrealized loss). Non-investment grade securities represent 6% of the $30,881 million fair value and 20% of the
$743 million gross unrealized loss on fixed maturities,
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The following table presents the amortized cost, gross unrealized losses and number of securities for fixed maturities where the estimated fair value
had declined and remained below amortized cost by less than 20%, or 20% or more for:

December 31, 2003
Gross Unrealized

Amortized Cost Losses Number of Securities

Less than 20% or Less than 20% or Less than 20% or
20% more 20% more 20% more

(Dollars in millions)

Less than S MOMtNS . .ot e $24926 & 67 $449 $o2 1,331 18
Six months or greater but less than ninemonths ... .. ...l 3217 19 84 4 264 2
Nine months or greater but less than twelve months. ...t 266 17 7 4 45 3
Twelve months or greater ....... O 2,999 113 137 36 311 19
Ot $31,408  $216 3677 366 1,857 42

The category of fixed maturity securities where the estimated fair value has declined and remained below amortized cost by less than 20% is
comprised of 1,951 securities with an amortized cost of $31,408 million and a gross unrealized loss of $677 million at December 31, 2003. These fixed
maturities mature as follows: 19% due in one year or less; 23% due in greater than one vear 1o five years; 18% due in greater than five years to ten years;
and 58% due in greater than ten years (calculated as a percentage of amortized cost). Additionally, such securities are concentrated by sector in U.S.
corporates (33%) and morigage-backed (18%); and are concentrated by industry in mortgage-backed (14%), utllities (13%) and finance (7%} (calculated
as a percentage of gross unrealized loss). Nor-investment grade securities represent 5% of the $30,731 milion fair valug and 15% of the $677 milion
gross urrealized loss. :

The category of fixed maturity securities where the estimated fair value has declined and remained below amoartized cost by 20% or more for less
than six months is comprised of 18 securities with an amortized cost of $67 million and a gross unrealized loss of $22 milion at December 31, 20083,
These fixed maturiies mature as follows: 1% due in greater than one year to five years; 64% due in greater than five years to ten years; and 35% due in
greater than ten years (calculated as a percentage of amortized cost). Additionally, such securities are concentrated by sector in foreign governments
{41%) and asset-backed (35%); and are concentrated by industry in asset-backed (35%) and finance (23%) (calculated as a percentage of gross
unrealized loss). Non-investment grade securities represent 83% of the $45 million fair value and 82% of the $22 million gross unrealized loss.

The total of fixed maturity securities where the estimated fair value has declined and remained below amortized cost by 20% or more for six months
or greater is comprised of 24 securities with an amortized cost of $148 million and a gross unrealized loss of $44 million at December 31, 2003, These
fixed maturities mature as folldws: 27% due in greater than five years to ten years; and 73% due in greater than ten years (calculated as a percentage of
amortized cost). Additionally, such securities are concentrated by security type In U.S. corporates (57%) and asset-backed {18%); and are concentrated
by industry in fransportation (53%), finance (24%) and asset-backed (18%) (calculated as a percentage of gross unrealized loss). Non-investment grade
securities represent 48% of the $105 million fair value and 60% of the $44 milion gross unrealized loss.

The Company held two fixed maturity securities each with a gross unreslized loss at December 31, 2003 greater than $10 million. One of these
securities represents 25% of the gross unrealized loss on fixed maturities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below amortized cost
by 20% or more for six months or greater. The security is in the U.S. corporate sector, and the estimated fair value and gross unrealized loss at
Decernber 31, 2003 was $14 milion and $11 million, respectively, The Company analyzed this fixed maturity security as of December 31, 2003 to
determine whether this security was other-than-temporarily impaired. The Company believes that the estimated falr value of this security, which is in the
transportation industry, was depressed as a result of generally difficutt economic and market conditions. The Company believes that the analysis of the
security indicated that the financial strength, liquidity, leverage, future outlook and/or recent management actions supports the view that the security was
not other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2003.

Corporate Fixed Maturtties.  The table below shows the major industry types that comprise the corporate bond holdings at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Estimated % of Estimated % of
Fair Value Total Fair Value Total
{Dollars in millions)
UG . o e $34,474 40.9% $29,077 42.5%
Y o e 9,855 11.8 7,219 10.5
7 01 P 14,287 17.0 12,596 18.4
YA O I ) o et e 23,842 28.3 19,229 281
BT o 1,675 2.0 365 0.5
TOWL .+ e $34,233  100.0% $68,486  100.0%

(1) Includes publicly traded, U.S. dollar-denominated debt obligations of foreign obiigors, known as Yankee bonds, and other foreign investments.

The Company maintains a diversified corporate bond portfolio across industries and issuers. The portfolio does not have exposure 10 any single
issuer in excess of 1% of the total invested assets of the portfolio. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company's combined holdings in the ten
issuers to which it had the greatest exposure totaled $4,683 milion and $2,973 milllion, respectively, which was less than 3% and 2%, respectively, of the
Company's total invested assets at such date. The exposure 1o the largest single issuer of corporate bonds held at December 31, 2003 and 2002 was
$618 milion and $385 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, investments of $16,572 milion and $14,778 milion, respectively, or 69.5% and 76.9%, respectively, of the
Yankee/Foreign sector, represented exposure o traditional Yankee bonds. This exposure was U.S. dollar-denominated and was concentrated by
security type in industrial and financial institutions. The Company diversifies the Yankee/Foreign portiolio by country and issuer.

The Company has hedged all of its materlal exposure to foreign curency risk in its invested assets. In the Company's intermational insurance
operations, both its assets and liabllities are generally denominated in local currencies. Foreign currency denominated securities supporting U.S. dollar
lighilities are generally swappesd back into U.S. doliars.
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Mortgage-Backed Securities.  The following table shows the types of mortgage-backed securities the Company held at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Estimated % of Estimated % of
Fair Value Total Fair Value Total
(Doliars in millions)
PasS-TrOUGgN SECUMIES L . oottt $15,427 36.3% $12,515 35.9%
Collateralized mortgage ODIGaLIONS . . .. o o o 16,027 37.7 15,511 44.5
Total mortgage-backed S8CUMHES ... .ot 31,454 74.0 28,026 8C.4
Commercial mortgage-backed SECUMHES . . ... oo ot e 11,031 26.0 6,857 19.6
T8l e e e $42,485 100.0% $34,883  100.0%

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, pass-through and collateralized mortgage obligations totaled $31,454 million and $28,026 million, respectively,
or 74.0% and 80.4%, respectively, of total mortgage-backed securities, and a majority of these amounts represented agency-issued pass-through and
collateralized mortgage obligations guaranteed or otherwise supported by the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation or the Government National Mortgage Association. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, approximately $6,992 million and $3,598 milion,
respectively, or 63.4% and 52.5%, respectively, of the commercial mortgage-backed securities, and $31,210 million and $27,530 milion, respectively,
or 89.2% and 98.4%, respectively, of the pass-through securities and collateralized mortgage cbligations, were rated Aaa/AAA by Moody's or S&P.

The principal risks inherent in holding residential mortgage-backed securities are prepayment and extension risks, which will affect the timing of when
cash will be received and are dependent on the leve! of mortgage interest rates. Prepayment risk is the unexpected increase in principal payments
primarily as a result of homeowner refinancing. Extension risk relates to the unexpected slowdown in principal payments. The Comparny’s active
monitoring of its residential mortgage-backed securities mitigates exposure to the cash flow uncertainties associated with these risks.

The principal risks in owning commiercial mortgage-backed securities are related to structural, credit and capital market risks. Structural risks include
the security's priority in the issuer's capital structure and the adeguacy of and ability tc realize proceeds from the underlying real estate collateral. Credit
risk results from potential defaults on the underlying commercial mortgages. Capital market risks include the general level of interest rates and the liquidity
for these securities in the marketplace.

Asset-Backed Securities.  Asset-backed securities, which include home equity loans, credit card receivables, collateralized debt obligations and
automobile receivables, are purchased both to diversify the overall risks of the Company's fixed maturity assets and to provide income. The Company’s
asset-backed securities are diversified both by sector and by issuer. Credit card and home equity loan securitizations, each accounting for about 29% of
the total holdings, constitute the largest exposures in the Company's asset-backed securities portfolio. Asset-backed securities generally have limited
sensitivity to changes in interest rates. Approximately $7,528 milion and $4,812 million, or 83.5% and 51.7%, of total asset-backed securities were rated
Aaa/AAA by Moody's or S&P at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The principal rigks in holding asset-backed securities are related to structural, credit and capital market risks. Structural risks include the security’s
priority in the issuer's capital structure, the adequacy of and ability to realize proceeds from the collateral and the potential for prepayments. Credit risks
include consumer or corporate credits, such as credit card holders, equipment lessees, and corporate obligors. Capital market risks include the general
level of interest rates and the fiquidity for these securtties in the marketplace.

Structured Investment Transactions.  The Company participates In structured investment transactions, primarlly asset securitizations and structured
notes. These transactions enhance the Company's total retun of the investment portfolio principally by generating management fee income on asset
securitizations and by providing equity-based retums on debt securities through structured notes and similar instruments.

The Company sponsors financlal asset securitizations of high vield debt securities, investment grade bonds and struciured finance securities and
also is the collateral manager and a beneficial interest holder in such transactions. As the collateral manager, the Company eams management fees on
the outstanding securitized asset balance, which are recorded In iIncome as earned. When the Company transfers assets to a bankruptcy-remote SPE
and surrenders control over the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a sale. Gains or losses on securitizations are determined with
reference 10 the carrying amount of the financial assets transferred, which is allccated to the assets sold and the beneficial interests retained based on
relative fair values at the date of transfer. Beneficial interests in securitizations are carried at fair value in fixed maturities. Income on these beneficial
interests is recognized using the prospective method in accordance with EITF issue No. 99-20, Recognition of Interest income and impairment on Certain
Investments ("EITF 89-20"). The SPEs used to securitize assets are not consolidated by the Company because the Company has determined that it is
not the primary beneficiary of these entities based on the framework provided in FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised December 31, 2003), Consofidation
of Variable Interest Entities, An interpretation of ARB No. 51 (“FIN 46(r)"). Prior to the adoption of FIN 46(), such SPEs were not consolidated because
they did not meet the criteria for consolidation under previous accounting guidance.

The Company purchases or receives beneficial interests in SPEs, which generally acquire financial assets, including corporate equities, debt
securities and purchased options. The Company has not guaranteed the performance, liquidity or obligations of the SPEs and the Company's exposure
to loss s limited to its camying value of the beneficial interests in the SPEs, The Company uses the beneficial interests as part of its risk management
strategy, including asset-liability management. These SPEs are not consolidated by the Company because the Company has determined that it is not the
primary beneficiary of these entities based on the framework provided in FIN 48(r). Prior to the adoption of FIN 46(r), such SPEs were not consolidated
because they did not meet the criteria for consolidation under previous accounting guidance. These beneficial interests are generally structured notes, as
defined by EITF Issue No. 96-12, Recognition of Interest Income and Balance Sheet Classification of Structured Notes, which are included in fixed
maturities, and thelr income is recognized using the retrospective interest method or the level yield method, as appropriate. Impaiments of these
beneficial interests are included in et investment gains and losses.
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Mortgage Loans on Real Estate

The Company's morigage loans on real estate are collateralized by commercial, agricultural and residential properties. Mortgage loans on real estate
comprised 11.8% and 13.2% of the Company's total cash and invested assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The carrying value of
mortgage loans on real estate is stated at original cost net of repayments, amortization of premiums, accretion of discounts and valuation allowances. The
following table shows the carrying value of the Company’s mortgages loans on real estate by type at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Total Value Total

(Dollars in miilions)

COMMEICIAl . . $20,300 77.3% $19,852 78.0%

AGHCUIIAL . L 5,327 203 5,146 208

Residential . . ... . 622 2.4 388 1.5
Tota $26,249  100.0% 325086 100.0%

Commercial Mortgage Loans. The Company diversifies its commercial mortgage lcans by both geographic region and property type, and
manages these investments through a network of regional offices overseen by its investment department. The following table presents the distribution
across geographic regions and property types for commercial mortgage loans at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Total Value Totail

(Dollars in millions)

Region v
SO AN o e $ 4,678 245% § 5078 26.0%
o S S 5,005 24,7 4,180 21.4
Middle Atlantic . ... O 3,455 170 3,441 17.6
East North Central . .............. PR 1,821 9.0 2,147 11.0
West SOUth Cantral . . 1,370 6.8 1,097 586
NEW ENGIaNd © .o 1,278 6.3 1,323 6.8
IMtEmat ONal . 336 4.1 632 3.2
MOUNTIN . L o i 740 36 833 4.2
West North Central « . . e 619 3.0 645 3.3
East South Central ... 198 1.0 178 0.9
1= $20,300 100.0% $19,552 100.0%
Property Type
Ofice ...t e e $ 9,170 452% $ 9,340 47.8%
Retail .. ..o e 5,008 247 4,320 221
ADEMMEBNIS L - ettt 2,832 139 2,793 14.3
MU .« .o 1,811 9.4 1,910 9.7
Hotel o A 1,032 51 942 4.8
1= PP 349 1.7 247 1.3
oAl e $20,300 1000% $19,552 100.0%
The following table presents the scheduled maturities for the Company's commercial mortgage loans at:
December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Carrying % of Carrying % of
Value Total Value Total
(Dollars in millions)
Dugsinoneyear orless ..o, P § 708 35% % 713 3.6%
Due after ong year through two YEArS . ... .. oo i i 1,065 52 1,204 8.2
Due after two years through three years . .. ..ot e e 2,020 10.0 1,839 9.9
Due after three years through four Years. .. ..o e e e e 2,362 11.6 2,048 10.5
Due after four years through five years .. .. ..o oo 3,157 156 2,443 12.5
Due after Ve YEaIS ..o i e 10,988 541 11,205 57.3
Ol o $20,300 100.0% 319,552 100.0%

Potential Problem, Problem and Restructured Mortgage Loans.  The Company monitors its mortgage loan investments on an ongeing basis.
Through this monitoring process, the Company reviews loans that are restructured, delinguent or under foreclosure and identifies those that management
considers to be potentially delinquent. These loan classifications are consistent with those used in industry practice.

The Company defines potentially delinguent loans as loans that, in management’s opinion, have a high probability of becoming delinguent. The
Company defines delinguent mortgage loans, consistent with industry practice, as loans in which two or more interest or principal payments are past
due. The Company defines mortgage loans under foreclosure as loans in which foreclosure proceedings have formally commenced. The Company
defines restructured mortgage loans as loans in which the Company, for economic or legal reasons related to the debtor's financial difficulties, grants a
concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider. .

The Company reviews all mortgage loans on an ongeing basis, These reviews may include an analysis of the property financial statements and rent
roll, lease rollover analysis, property inspections, market analysis and tenant creditworthiness. The Company also reviews loan-to-value ratios and debt
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coverage ratios for restructured loans, delinquent loans, loans under foreclosure, potentially delinguent loans, loans with an existing valuation allowance,
loans maturing within two years and loans with a loan-to-value ratio greater than 0% as determined in the prior year.

The principal risks in holding commercial mortgage loans are property specific, supply and demand, financial and capital market risks. Property
speclfic risks inciude the geographic location of the property, the physical condition of the property, the diversification of tenants and the roilover of their
leases and the ability of the property manager to attract tenants and manage expenses. Supply and demand risks include changes in the supply and/or
demand for rental space, which cause changes in vacancy rates and/or rental rates. Financial risks include the overall level of debt on the property and
the amount of principal repaid during the loan term. Capital market risks include the general level of interest rates, the fiquidity for these securities in the
marketplace and the capital available for loan refinancing.

The Company establishes valuation allowances for loans that it deems impaired, as determined through its mortgage review process. The
Company's valuation allowarice is established both on a loan specific basis for those loans where a property or market specific risk has been identified
that could likely result in a future default, as well as for pools of ioans with similar high risk characteristics where a property specific or market risk has not
been identified. Loans that are individually reviewed are evaluated based on the definition of impaired loans consistent with SFAS No. 114, Accounting by
Creditors for Impairments of a Loan ("SFAS 114"}, as loans on which It probably will not collect all amounts due according to applicable contractual terms
of the agreement. The Company bases valuation allowances upon the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's original
effective interest rate or the value of the loan’s collateral. The Company records valuation allowances as investment losses. The Company records
subsequent adjustments 1o allowances as investiment gains or losses. The allowance for loan loss for pools of other loans with similar characteristics is
established in accordance with SFAS No. &, Accounting for Contingencies (“SFAS &), when a loss contingency exists. A loss contingency exists when
the likelihood that a future event will occur is probable based on past events, SFAS 6 works in conjunction with, but does not overlap with, SFAS 114,
The Company applies SFAS 5 to groups of loans with similar characteristics based on property types and loan to value risk factors. The Company
records adjustments to its loan loss allowance as investment losses.

The following table presents the amortized cost and valuation allowance for commercial mortgage foans distributed by loan classification at;

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

% of % of
Amortized % of Valuation Amorgzed Amortized % of Valuation Amorgzed

Cost{1) Total Allowance O Cost{1) Total Allowance Cost

(Dollars in miltions)

Performing . ... $20,315 99.5% $ 95 0.5% $19,343 98.3% 3 60, 0.3%
Restructured ... ..o 77 0.4 23 29.9% 246 1.3 49 19.9%
Delinquent or under foreclosure .. ... oL - 0.0 —_ 0.0% 14 0.1 — 0.0%
Potentially delinguent ... ... oo 30 0.1 4 13.3% 68 0.3 10 14.7%
Total o $20,422  100.0% $122 0.6% $19,671 100.0% $119 0.6%

(1} Amortized cost is equal to carmying value before valuation allowances.

The following table presents the changes in valuation allowances for commercial mertgage loans for the:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in millions)
Balance, Deginning Of YBar .. ... ittt 5119 $134 $ 76
AL ONS .« e e e e 51 38 84
DU ONS o o et e e e (48) 53) (26)
Balance, end Of Year .. ... e $122 $119 $134

Agricultural Mortgage Loans.  The Company diversifies its agricultural mortgage loans by both ‘geographic region and product type. The Company
manages these investments through a network of regional offices and fleld professionals overseen by its investment department.

Approximately 67% of the $56,327 miliion of agricultural mortgage loans outstanding at December 31, 2003 were subject to rate resets prior to
maturity. A substantial portion of these loans generally is successfully renegotiated and remains outstanding to maturity. The process and policies for
monitoring the agricultural mortgage loans and classifying them by performance status are generally the same as those for the commercial loans.

The following table presents the amortized cost and valuation allowances for agricuttural mortgage loans distributed by loan classffication at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002

% of % of
Amortized % of Valuation Amon?zed Amortized % of Valuation Amorgzed

Cost(1} Total Allowance Cost Cost(1) Total Allowance Cost

(Dollars in millions})

Performing ... 55,162 9%7% $— 0.0% $4,980 9B.7% $-— 0.0%
Restructured .. ..o 1171 2.1 1 0.9% 140 2.7 5 3.6%
Delinquent or under foreclosure ... ..o oo 36 07 2 5.6% 14 0.3 — 0.0%
Potentially delinguent ... o 24 05 _ 3 12.5% 18 0.3 1 56%
Total o $5333 1000% $ 6 0.1% $5,152  1000% $ 6 0.1%

|
u

(1) Amortized cost is equal to carrying value before valuation allowances.
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The foliowing table presents the changes in valuation allowances for agricuttural mortgage loans for the:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in millions)
Balance, Deginning Of YBar . .. ot $6 39 &7
Additions .. ... e e 1 3 21
DedUClONS o S P o ® _(19)
Balance, nd Of Vaar .« ..o $6 $6 $ 9

The principal risks in holding agricultural mortgage loans are property specific, supply and demand, financial and capital market rigks. Property
specific risks include the geographic location of the property, soil types, weather conditions and the other factors that may impact the borrower's
guaranty. Supply and demand risks include the supply and demand for the commodities produced on the specific property and the related price for
those commodities. Financlal risks include the overall leve! of debt on the property and the amount of principal repaid during the loan term. Capital market
risks include the general level of interest rates, the liquidity for these securities in the marketplace and the capital available for loan refinancing.

Real Estate and Real Estate Joint Ventures

The Company's real estate and real estate joint venture investments congist of commercial, residential and agricuttural properties located primarily
throughout the U.S. The Company manages these investments through a network of regional offices overseen by its investment department. At
December 31, 2003 and 2002, the carrying value of the Company's real estate, real estate joint ventures and real estate held-for-sale was $4,803 milion
and $4,725 million, respectively, or 2.2%, and 2.5% of total cash and invested assets, respectively. The camying value of real estate is stated at
depreciated cost net of impairments and valuation aliowances. The carrying value of real estate joint ventures is stated at the Company's equity in the real
estate joint ventures net of impairments and valuation allowances. The following table presents the carrying value of the Company's real estate, real estate
joint ventures, real estate held-for-sale and real estate acquired upon foreclosure at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Carrying % ot Carrying % of
w Value Total Value Total
{Dollars in millions)

Real estate held-for-Investment . ... . $4,274 82.0% $3,546 75.0%
Real estate joint ventures held-for-investment ... o 438 a1 377 8.0
Foreclosed real estate held-for-INvestment . ... .o 2 0.1 3 0.1
4,714 98.2 3,026 83.1
Real estate Neld-Tor-Sale . .. ... oo e T 88 1.8 792 16.8
Foreclosed real estate held-for-sale. . ... ... o 1 0.0 7 0.1
89 1.8 799 16.9

Total real estate, real estate joint ventures and real estate held-for-sale ...................... $4,803 100.0% 34,725 100.0%

Office properties represent 58% of the Company’s equity real estate portfolio at both December 31, 2003 and 2002. The average occupancy level
of office properties was 89% and 92% at December 31, 2008 and 2002, respectively.

Ongeing management of these investments includes quarterly valuations, as well as an annual market update and review of each property's budget,
financial retumns, lease rollover status and the Company's exit strategy.

The Company adjusts the camying value of real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment for impairments whenaver events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the property may not be recoverable. The Company writes down impaired real estate to
estimated fair value, when the carrying value of the real estate exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flow expected to result from the use and
eventual disposition of the real estate. The Company records writedowns as investment losses and reduces the cost basis of the properties accordingly.
The Company does not change the revised cost basis for subsequent.recoveries in value.

The Company's real estate equity portfolio at December 31, 2003 was mainly comprised of a core portfafio of multi-tenanted office buildings with
high tenant credit quality, net leased properties and apartments. The objective is to maximize eamings by building upon and strengthening the core
portfolio through selective acquisitions and dispositions. The Company took advantage of a significant demand for Class A, institutional grade properties
and sold certain real estate holdings in its portfolio mostly during the fourth quarter of 2002. This sales program did not represent any fundamental
change in the Company’s investment strategy.

Cnce the Company identifies a property that is expected to e sold within one year and commences a firm plan for marketing the property, in
accordance with SFAS 144, the Company, if applicable, classifies the property as held-for-sale and reports the related net investment income and any
resulting investment gains and losses as discontinued operations. Further, the Company establishes and periodically revises, if necessary, a valuation
allowance to adjust the carrying value of the property to its expected sales value, less associated selling costs, if it is lower than the property's carrying
value. The Company records valuation aliowances as investment losses and subseguent adjustments as investment gains or losses, If circumstances
arise that were previously considered unlikely and, as a result, the property Is expected to be on the market longer than anticipated, a held-for-sale
property is generally reclassified to held-for-investment and measured as such.

The Cormpany's carrying value of real estate held-for-sale, including real estate acquired upon foreclosure of commerciat and agricultural morigage
foans, in the amounts of $89 million and $799 million at December 31, 2008 and 2002, respectively, are net of valuation allowances of $12 milion and
$11 million, respectively. There were no impairments at December 31, 2003; however, the December 31, 2002 amount included a net impairment of
$5 miilion. :

The Company records real estate acquired upon foreclosure of commercial and agricultural mortgage loans at the lower of estimated fair value or the
carrying value of the mortgage loan at the date of foreclosure.

Certain of the Company’s. investments in real estate joint ventures meet the: definition of a VIE under FIN 48(). See “- Variable Interest Entities.”

On August 28, 2003, the Company (through one of its subsidiaries) acquired the Sears Tower building through the acquisition of a controling
interest in a partnership holding title to the building. Subseguent to December 31, 2003, MetLife entered inic a marketing agreement to sell one of its real
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estate investments, the Sears Tower, and reclassified the property from Real Estate — Held-for Investments to Real Estate — Held-for Sale. The carrying
value of the property as of December 31, 2003 is approximately $700 million.

Equity Securities and Other Limited Partnership Interests

The Company's carying value of equity securities, which primarlly consist of investments in common and preferred stocks and mutual fund
interests, was $1,598 million and $1,813 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, Substantially all of the common stock is publicly traded
on major securities exchanges. The carmying value of the other fimited partnership interests (which primarily represent ownership interests in pooled
investment funds that make private equity investments in companies in the U.S. and overseas) was $2,477 million and $2,395 million at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company classifies its investments in common stocks as available-for-sale and marks them to market, except for non-
marketable private equities, which are generally carried at cost. The Company uses the equity method of accounting for investments in limited partnership
interests in which it has more than a minor interest, has influence over the partnership’s operating and financial policies and does not have a controling
interest, The Company uses the cost methad for minor interest investments and when it has virtuaily no influence over the partnership's operating and
financial policies. The Company's investments In equity securities excluding partnerships represented 0.7% and 0.8% of cash and invested asssts at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Equity securities include private equity securities with an estimated fair value of $432 million and $443 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The Company may not freely trade its private equity securities because of restrictions imposed by federal and state securities laws and
liquid markets.

The Company makes commitments 1o fund partnership investments in the normal course of business. The amounts of these unfunded commit-
ments were $1,380 million and $1,667 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company anticipates that these amounts could be
invested in these partnerships any time over the next five years.

Some of the Company's investments in other limited parinership interests meet the definition of a VIE under FIN 46(r), See " — Variable Interest
Entities.”

The following tables set forth the cost, gross unrealized gain or loss and estimated fair value of the Company's equity securities, as well as the
percentage of the total equity securities at:

December 31, 2003

Gross
‘ Unrealized — pgimated % of
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value Total

{Dollars in millions)

Equity Securities:

COMMON SIOCKS .o ittt ettt $ 620 $334 2 $ 952 59.6%
Nonredeemable preferad StOCKS . ..o 602 8 4 646 40.4
Total equity SECUMHES ... LOB1222 3382 36 $1,508  100.0%
December 31, 2002
Gross
Unrealized

- Estimated % of
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value Total

{Dollars in millions}

Equity Securties:

COMIMON SIOCKS .+ e vt et ettt et et et e et e e e e e e $ 877 %115 $79 3 913 56.6%
Nonredeemabie prefermred SOCKS . . ..t e e e 679 25 4 700 43.4
Total eqUItY SECUMIES ..ot $1,656 $140 $83 $1.613  100.0%

Fotential Problem and Problem Equity Securities and Other Limited Fartnership Interests.  The Company monitors its equity securities and other
limited partnership interests on a continual basis. Through this monitoring process, the Company identifies investments that management considers to be
problems or potential probiems.

Potential problem equity securities and other Imited partnership interests are defined as securities issued by a company that is experiencing
significant operating problems or difficult industry conditions. Criteria generally indicative of these problems or conditions are (f) cash flows faling below
varying thresholds established for the industry and other relevant factors; (i) significant declines in revenues and/or margins; (ili) public securities trading at
a substantial discount compared to original cost as a result of specific credit concems; and (iv) other information that becomes available.

Problem equity securities and other limited partnership interests are defined as securities () in which significant declines in revenues and/or margins
threaten the ability of the issuer to continue operating; or (i) where the issuer has entered into bankruptey.

Equity Secunty Impafrment.  The Company classifies all of its equity securities as avallable-for-sale and marks them to market through other
comprehensive income. All securities with gross unrealized losses at the consalidated balance sheet date are subjected to the Company’s process for
identifying other-than-temporary impaimments. The Company writes down to fair value securities that it deems to be other-than-temporarlly impaired in the
period the securities are deemed 10 be so impaired. The assessment of whether such impairment has occurred is based on management's case-by-
case evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors, as described below, about the
security Issuer and uses its best judgment in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the security and in assessing the prospects
for near-term recovery. Inherent In management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the issuer and ifs
future earnings potential.

Considerations used by the Company in the impairment evaluation process include, but are not limited to, the following:

* length of time and the extent to which the market value has been below cost;

* potential for impairments of securities when the issuer is experiencing significant financial difficutties, including a review of all securities of the

issuer, including its known subsidiaries and affillates, regardless of the form of the Company's ownership;

* potential for impairments in an entire industry sector or sub-sector;

* potential for impairments in certain economically depressed geographic locations;
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» potential for impairments of securtties where the issuer, serles of issuers or industry has suffered a catastrophic type of loss or has exhausted

natural resources; and

« other subjective factors, including concentrations and information obtained from regulators and rating agencies.

Equity securities .or other limited partnership interests which are deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired are written down to fair value. The
Company records writedowns as investment losses and adjusts the cost basis of the equity securities accordingly. The Company does not change the
revised cost basis for subsequent recoveries in value. Writedowns of equity securities and other limited partnership interests were $108 milion and
$191 million years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company sold equity
securities with an estimated fair value of $62 milion and $216 million, at a loss of $13 million and $85 million, respectively.

The gross unrealized loss related to the Company’s equity securities at December 31, 2003 was $6 milion. Such securities are concentrated by
security type in comman stock (36%) and preferred stock (63%); and are concentrated by industry in financial (579%) and domestic broad market mutual
funds (7%) (calculated as a percentage of gross unrealized 10ss). .

The following table presents the cost, gross unrealized losses and number of securities for eguity securities where the estimated fair value had
declined and remained below cost by less than 20%, or 20% or more for:

December 31, 2003

Gross Unrealized Number of’
Cost Losses Securities
Less than 20% or Less than 20% or Less than 20% or
20% more 20% more 20% more
. (Dollars in millions)
Lessthan Sk MONtNS . ..o e 358 1 36 $— 19 1
Six months or greater but less thannine months . .......... ... ... - — = - - —
Nine months or greater but less than twelve months . ... ... ..ol —_ - s— - -_ 2
Twelve months Or Qreater ..o e 22 = = - 14 =
Total . §§Q $1 §§ @: 33 3

The Company's review of its equity security exposure includes the analysis of total gross unrealized losses by three categories of securities:
(i} securities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained below cost by less than 20%; (i) securities where the estimated fair value had
declined and remained below cost by 20% or more for less than six months; and (i) securities where the estimated fair value had declined and remained
below cost by 20% or more for six months or greater. While all of these securities are monitored for potential impairment, the Company’s experience
indicates that the first two categories do not present as great a risk of impairment, and often, fair values recover over time as the factors that caused the
declines improve.

The following table presents the total gross unrealized losses for equity securities at December 31, 2003 where the estimated fair value had declined
and remained below cost by:

December 31, 2003

Gross Unrealized % of
Losses - Total
{Dollars in millions)
lessthan 20% .......... D A I %6 $100%

20% or more forless than six Months .. ... e PN — -
20% or more for SiX MOMINS OF GrEaIET. . . ... . e — C—

TOM oo e SRR URUPRPRIO ST $6 100.0%

The category of equity securities where the estimated fair value has declined and remained below cost by less than 20% is comprised of 33 equity
securities with a cost of $80 million and a gross unrealized loss of $8 milion. These securities are concentrated by security type in common stock (33%)
and preferred stock (65%); and concentrated by industry in financial (59%) and communications (3%) (calculated as a percentage of gross unrealized
loss). The significant factors considered at December 31, 2003 in the review of equity securities for other-than-temporary impairment were as a result of
generally difficult economic and market conditions.

The Company did not hold any equity securities with a gross unrealized loss at December 31, 2003 greater than $5 million.

Other Invested Assets

The Company's other invested assets consist principally of leveraged leases and funds withheld at interest of $3.9 billion and $3.1 bilion at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The leveraged leases are recorded net of non-recourse debt. The Company participates in lease
transactions, which are diversified by industry, asset type and gecgraphic area. The Company regularly reviews residual values and writes down residuals
0 expected values as needed. Funds withheld represent amounts contractually withheld by ceding companies in ‘accordance with reinsurance
agreements. For agreements written on a modified coinsurance basis and certain agreements written on a coinsurance basis, assets supporting the
reinsured policies equal to the net statutory reserves are withheld and continue to be legally owned by the ceding company. Other invested assets also
include the fair value of embedded derivatives related to funds withheld and modified coinsurance contracts. Interest accruas 0 these funds withheld at
rates defined by the treaty terms and may be contractually specified or directly related to the investment portfolio. The Company's other invested assets
represented 2.1% and 1.9% of cash and invested assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative Instruments to manage risk through one of five principal risk management strategies: the hedging of (i) liabilities;
{il} invested assets; (i) portfolios of assets or liabilties; (v} net investment in certain foreign operations; and (v} firm commitments and forecasted
transactions. Additionally, the Company enters into income generation and replication derivative transactions as permitted by its insurance subsidiaries’
Derivatives Use Plans approved by the applicable state insurance departments. The Company's derivative hedging strategy employs a variety of
instruments, including financial futures, financial forwards, interest rate, credit default and foreign currency swaps, foreign currency forwards and options,
including caps and floors.
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The table below provides a summary of the notional amount and fair value of derivative financial instruments held at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Current Market Current Market
Notional or Fair Value " Notional or Fair Value

Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities
{Dollars in millions)

Financial FUtUreS ..o e $ 1348 § 8 $ 30 $ 4 5 - $ —
INEIESt ralE SWEADS . . et 9,944 188 36 3,866 196 126
FIoOrs . 325 5 — . 325 9 —
Caps ....... e SO 9,345 29 — 8,040 — —
Financial forwards . ... 1,310 2 3 1,945 - 12
FOrEigN CUITENCY SWEDS .+« v vttt et e ettt ee v e en e 4,710 9 796 2,371 92 181
O ONS e e 6,065 7 - 6,472 9 —
Foreign curmency forwardS ... . 695 5 32 54 - 1
Credit default swaps ....... e 615 __ 2 _1 376 2 —

Total contractual commitments . ...t $34,357  $256 $898 $23,453  $308 $320

Variable Interest Entities .
The Company has adopted the provisions of FIN 46 and FIN 48(). See "— Recent Accounting Standards.” At December 31, 2003, FIN 46(r) did
not reguire the Company to consolidate any additional VIEs that were not previously consolidated.

The following table presents the total assets of and maximum exposure to loss relating to VIES for which the Company has concluded that () it is the
primary beneficiary and which will be consolidated in the Company's financial statements beginning March 31, 2004, and (i) it holds significant valuable
interests but it is not the primary beneficiary and which will not be consolidated:

December 31, 2003

Primary Not Primary
Beneficiary(1) Beneficiary
Maximum Maximum

Total Exposure Total Exposure
Assets(2) to Loss{3) Assets(2) to Loss(3)

{Dollars in millions)

SPEs:

Asset-backed securitizations and Collateralized debt obligations . ...........c. oo, $ - $ —  $2400 320

Non-SPEs: -

Real estate Joint VENIUIBS(4) . .. oo e e e 617 238 42 59

Other fimited partnerships(S). . ... ..o o 29 27 459 10
Total ..o e e e e e e e e e e $646 3265  $2,901 $89

(1) Had the Company consolidated these VIEs at December 31, 2003, the transition adjustments would have been $10 million, net of income tax.

(2) The assets of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obiigations are reflected at fair value as of December 31, 2003. The'asssts of
the real estate joint ventures and other limited partnerships are reflected at the carrying amounts at which such assets would have been reflected on
the Company’s balance shest had the Company consolidated the VIE from the date of its initial investment in the entity.

(3} The maximum exposure to loss of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations is egual to the carrying amounts of retained
interests. In addition, the Company provides collateral management services for certain of these structures for which it collects a management fee,
The maximum exposure to loss refating to real estate joint ventures and other limited partnerships is equal to the camying amounts plus any unfunded
commitments, reduced by amounts guaranteed by other partners.

(4) Real estate joint ventures include partnerships and other ventures, which engage in the acquisition, development, management and disposal of real
estate investments.

(5) Other limited partnerships include partnerships established for the purpose of investing in public and private debt and equity securities, as well as
limited partnerships established for the purpose of investing in low-income housing that qualifies for federal tax credits,

Securities Lending

The Company participates in a securities lending program whereby blocks of securities, which are included in investments, are loaned fo third
parties, primarily major brokerage firms. The Company reguires a minimum of 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities to be separately maintained
as collateral for the loans. Securities with a cost or amortized cost of $25,121 milion and $16,196 milion and an estimated fair value of $26,387 million
and $17,625 milion were on loan under the program at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company was liable for cash collateral under
its control of $27,083 million and $17,862 million at Decembper 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Security collateral on deposit from custorners may not
be sold or repledged and is not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Separate Account Assets

The Company manages each separate account's assets in accordance with the prescribed investment policy that applies to that specific separate
account. The Company establishes separate accounts on a single client and multi-client commingled basis in conformity with insurance laws. Generally,
separate accounts are not chargeable with liabilities that arise from any other business of the Company. Separate account assets are subject 1o the
Company’s general account claims only to the extent that the value of such assets exceeds the separate account liabilities, as defined by the account's
contract. The Company reports separately as assets and liapilties investments held in separate accounts and liabllities of the separate accounts. The
Company reports substantially all separate account assets at their fair market value. Investment income and gains or losses on the investments of
separate accounts accrue directly to contractholders, and, accordingly, the Company does not reflect them In its consolidated statements of income and
cash flows. The Company reflects in its revenues fees charged to the separate accounts by the Company, including mortality charges, risk charges,
policy administration fees, investment management fees and surrender charges. Effective January 1, 2004, in accordance with new accounting
guidance, approximately $1,678 million of separate account assets will be transferred to investments with a corresponding transfer of separate account
liabilities to future policy berefits and policyholder accourt balances.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The Company must effectively manage, measure and monitor the market risk associated with its invested assets and interest rate sensitive
insurance contracts. It has developed an integrated process for managing risk, which It conducts through its Corporate Risk Management Department,
several asset/liability cornmittees and additional specialists-at the business segment levei: The Company has established and implemented comprehen-
sive policies and procedures at both the corporate and business segment level t6 minimize the effects of potential market volatility.

Market Risk Exposures
The Company has exposure 1o market risk through its insurance operations and investmant activities. For purposes of this disclosure, “market risk”
is defined as the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, equity prices and foreign curency exchange rates.

Interest rates.  The Company's expasure to interest rate changes results from its significant holdings of fixed maturities, as wel as its interest rate
sensitive ligbilities. The fixed maturities include U.S. and foreign government bonds, securities issued by government agencies, corporate bonds and
morigage-backed securities, all of which are mainly exposed to changes in medium and long-term treasury rates. The interest rate sensitive liabilities for
purposes of this disclosure include guaranteed interest contracts and fixed annuities, which have the same interest rate exposure (medium- and long-
term treasury rates) ds the fixed maturiies. The Company employs product dasign, pricing and asset/liability management strategies to reduce the
adverse effects of interest rate volatility. Product design and pricing strategies include the use of surrender charges or restrictions on withdrawais in some
products. Asset/liability management strategies include. the use of derivatives, the purchase of securities structured to protect against prepayments,
prepayment restrictions and related fees on mortgage loans and consistent monitoring of the pricing of the Company's products in or rder to befter match
the dur duon of the assets and the liabilities they support.

Equity prices.  The Company's inivestments in equity securities expose it to changes in equity prices. It manages this risk on an integrated basis
with other risks through its asset/liability management strategies. The vompany also manages equity price risk through industry and issuer diversification
and asset allocation technigues.

Foreign currency exchange rates.  The Company's exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates against the U.S. dollar results from
its holdings in non-U.S. dollar denominated fixed faturity securiies and equity sécurities and through #s investments in foreign subsidiaries, The principal
currencles which create foreign currency exchange rate risk in the Comparny's investment portfolios are Canadian dollars, Mexican pesos, Chilean pesos
and British pounds. The Company mitigates the majority of Its fixed maturities’ foreign currency exchange rate risk through the utilization of foreign
currency swaps arid forward contracts. Through its investments inforeign subsidiaries, the Company is primarily exposed to the Mexican peso and South
Korean won. The Company has denominated substantially all assets and liabilities of its foreign subs»d\anes in their respective local currencies, thereby
minimizing its risk to foreign currency nxchange rate fluctuations.

Risk Management
Corporate risk management. Metlife has established several financial and non-financial senicr management committees as part of its risk
management process. These committees manage capital and risk positions, approve asset/liability management strategies and establish appropriate
corporate business standards.
MetLife aiso has a separate Corporate Risk Management Department which Is responsidle for risk throughout MétLife and reports to MetLife's Chief
Financial Officer. The Corporate Risk Management Department's primary responsicilities consist of:
* implementing a board of directors-approved corporate risk framewaork, which outiines the Company’s approach for managing risk on an
enterprise-wide basls;
* developing policies and procedures for managing, measurmg and momtor ng Ihose risks identified in the corporate risk framewaork;
* establishing appropriate corporate risk tolerance levels,.
* deploying capital on an economic capital basis; and
* reporting on a periodic basis to the Govemnance Commiittee of the Holding Company's Board of Dirgctors and varicus financial and non-financial
senior management commitiees. '

Assat/iabilty management. At MetLife, asset/liability management is the responsiaiity of the General Account Portfolio Management Department
{(“GAPM"), the operating business segments and various GAPM boards. The GAPM boards are comprised of senior officers from the investment
department, senior managers from each business segment and the Executive Vice-President in charge of risk management at MetLife. The GAPM
boards’ duties include setting broad asset/liability management policy and strategy, reviewing and approving target portfolios, establishing investrent
guidelines and limits, and providing oversight of the portfolio management process.

The portfolio managers and asset sector specialists, who have responsibility on a day-to-day basis for risk management of their respectave investing
activities, implement the goals and objectives established by the GAPM boards. The goals of the investment process are to optimize after-tax, risk-
adjusted investment income and after-tax, risk-adjusted total retum while ensuring that the assets and liabilities are managed on a cash flow and duration
basis. The risk management objectives established by the GAPM boards stress quality, diversification, asset/liability matching, liquidity and investment
return.

Each of Metlife's business segments has an assel/liability officer who works with pom‘oho maﬂagers in the investment department to moritor
nvestment, product pricing, hedge strategy and liabifity management issues. MetLife estabilishes target asset portfolios for each major insurance product,
which represent the investment strategies used to profitably fund its liabilities within acceptable levels of risk. These strategies include objectives for
effective duration, vield curve sensitivity, convexity, liquidity, asset sector concentration and crecit quality.

To manage interest rate risk, the Company performs pericdic projections, of asset and fiabifity cash flows to evaluate the potential sensitivity of its
securities investments and liabilities to interest rate movements. These projections involve evaiuating the potential gain or loss on most of the Company's
in-force business under various Increasing and decreasing interest rate environmeants. The Company has developed models of its in-force business that
reflect specific product characteristics and include assumptions based on current and anticipated experience regarding lapse, mortality and interest
crediting rates. In addition, these models inciude assst cash flow projections reflecting interest payments, sinking. fund payments, principal payments,

MetLife, Inc. 41




bond calls, mortgage prepayments and defaults, New York Insurance Department regulations require that MetLife perform some of these analyses
annually as part of the annual proof of the sufficiency of its regulatory reserves to meet adverse interest rate scenarios.

Hedging activities.  MetLife’s risk management strategies incorporate the use of various interest rate derivatives that are used to adjust the overall
duration and cash flow profile of its invested asset portfolios 10 better match the duration and cash flow profile of its liabifities to reduce interest rate risk.
Such instruments include financlal futures, financial forwards, interest rate and credit default swaps, floors, options, written covered calls and caps.
MetLife also uses foreign currency swaps and foreign currency forwards to hedge its foreign currency denominated fixed income investments.

Economic Capital.  Beginning in 2003, the Company changed its methodology of allocating capital to its business segmenis from RBC to
Economic Capital. Prior to 2003, the Company’s business segments' allocated equity was primarily based on RBC, an internally developed formula
based on applying a multiple to the NAIC Statutory Risk-Based Capital and includes certain GAAP accounting adjustments. Economic Capital is an
internally developed risk capital model, the purpose of which is to measure the risk in the business and to provide a basis upon which capital is deployed.
The Economic Capital model accounts for the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent In MetLife's businesses. This is in contrast to the
standardized regulatory RBC formula, which is not as refined in its risk calculations with respect to the nuances of the Company's businesses.

This change in methodalogy is being apphed prospectively. This change has and will continue 1o impact the level of net investment income and net
income of each of the Company's business segments. A portion of net mvestment income is credited to the segments based on the level of allocated
equity. This change in methodology of allocating equity does not impact the Company's consolidated net investment income or net income.

Risk Measurement; Sensitivity Analysis

The Company measures market risk related to its holdings of invested assets and other financlal instruments, including certain market risk sensitive
insurance contracts (“other financial instruments”), based on changes in interest rates, equity prices and cumency exchange rates, ulilizing a sensitivity
analysis. This analysis estimates the potential changes in fair value, cash flows and eamings based on a hypothetical 10% change (increase or decrease)
in interest rates, equity prices and currency exchange rates. The Company believes that a 10% change (increase or decrease) in these market rates and
prices is reasonably possible in the near-term. In performing this analysis, the Company used market rates at December 31, 2003 to re-price its invested
assets and other financlal instruments. The sensitivity analysis separately calculated each of Metlife's market risk exposures (interest rate, equity price
and foreign currency exchange rate) related 1o its non-trading invested assets and other financial instruments. The Company does not maintain a trading
portfolio.

The sensitivity analysis performed included the market risk sensitive ho\dmgs described above. The Company modeled the impact of changes in
market rates and prices on the fair vaiues of its invested assets, earnings and cash flows as follows:

Fair values.  The Company bases its potential change in fair values on an immediate change (increase or decrease) in:

« the net present values of its interest rate sensitive exposures resulting from a 10% change. (increase or decrease) In interest rates;

« the U.S. dollar equivalent balances of the Company’s currency exposures due to a 10% change (ncrease or decrease) in currency exchamge

rates; and ] ‘
« the market value of its equity positions due to a 10% change (increase or decrease) in equity prices.

Eamings and cash flows.  Metlife calculates the potential change in eamings and cash flows on the change in its eamings and cash flows over a
one-year period based on an immediate 10% change (increase or decrease) in market rates and equ\ty prices. The following faotors were mcorporated
into the earnings and cash flows sensitivity amalyses

* the reinvestment of fixed maturity securities;

» the reinvestment of payments and prepayments of principal related to mortgage-backed securities;

* the re-estimation of prepayment rates on mortgage-backed securities for each 10% change (increase or decrease) in the interest rates; and

» the expected tumover (sales) of fixed maturities and equity securities, including the reinvestment of the resulting proceeds.

The sensitivity analysis is an estimate and should not be viewed as predictive of the Company's future financial performance. The Company cannot
assure that its actual losses in any particular year will not exceed the amounts indicated in the table below. Limitations related 1o this sensitivity analysis
include:

* the market risk information is limited by the assumpt\ons and parameters established in creating the related sensitivity analysis, including the

impact of prepayment rates on mortgages,;

« the analysis excludes other significant real estate holdings and fiabilities pursuant to insurance contracts; and

¢ the model assumes that the composition of assets and liabilites remains unchanged throughout the year.

Accordingly, the Company uses such models as tocls and not substitutes for the expenenoe and judgment of its corporate risk and assetliability
management personnel. )

Based on its analysis of the impact of a 10% changé (increase or decrease) In market rates and prices, MetLife has determined that such a change
could have a material adverse effect on the fair value of its interest rate sensitive invested assets. The equity and foreign currency portfolios do not expose
the Company to material market risk.

The table below ilustrates the potential loss in fair value of the Oompanys interest rate sensitive financial instruments at December 31, 2003 and
2002. In addition, the potential loss with respect to the fair value of currency exchange rates and the Company’s equity price sensitive positions at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 is set forth in the table below.

The potential loss in fair value for each market risk exposure of the Company’s portfolio, all of which is non-trading, for the periods indicated was:

December 31,

2003 2002
i {Dollars in millions)
Interestraterisk .. ... e $3,617 32,710
EQUIYY PrICE MK « .o e FE DS $ 155 $ 120
Foreign currency exchange rate Sk oo S O P $ 619 $ 529

The change in potential loss in fair value related to market risk exposure between December 31, 2003 and 2002 was primarily atiributable to a shift
in the vield curve.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
The Board of Directors and Shareho\ders of Metlife, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanyung consohdated balance sheets of MetLife, Inc. and subsidiaries (the ”Company”) as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended
December 31, 2003. Trese financiat statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Cur responsibility s 1o express an opinion on the
financial statements based on our audits. '

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the consolidated financial position of Metlife, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, the Company changed its method of accounting for embedded derivatives in certain insurance products as required by new
accounting guidance which became effective on October 1, 2003, and recorded the impact as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

DELOIMTE & TOUCHE e

New York, New York
March 5, 2004
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003 AND 2002

{Dollars in millions, except share and per share data)

ASSETS

Investrments;
Fixed maturities avallable-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost: $158,333 and $132,899, respectively) ...............
Equity securities, at fair valug (cost: $1,222 and $1,556, reSPECHVEIY) .. ...ttt
Mortgage loans onrealestate. . ... oo P
03110V o=
Real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment .. ... ... e
Real estate Neld-for-Sale . .
Other Imited PamNEr S eSS . . .\t ettt et e et e e e et e s e e e e e
Short-term investments ............ e e
(0107 g N o B £ AP

Total investments ......... ... ... PP
Cash and Cash BQUIVAIENES . .. .o
AU INVE S BN MO .. ot it e e e e e
Premiums and Other reCEIVaDIES . .« . e e e e e
Deferred poliCy 8COUISHION COSIS - . ..ottt e e e
(00T g T T O AP UPU PP TUP P
Separate account assets. .. ....... A

Ol BT . . o o it e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities:
FUtUre POICY DN . e
POl YN OIder BCCOUNT DAl ANCES . o it e e e
Other POICYN O UNGS o e e e e e
Policynolder AVIdends payable . ... o
Policyholder dividend obligation. ..................... . S
SO GBIt . e
[0 T = T L= o S

wohares subject 10 MaNdatory rEAEmMIDION ... e e
Cument INCOME TaxXe8 PAYADIE. . . .. ... e e
Deferred INCOME 1aXES DAYADIE . . . ..t e e
Payables under securties I0aned tranSaCloNS .. .. o o e e
O A S . . oo e e e e e
Separate aCCoUNt HaDIHES . . . ..o e

Ot BB . . v v oot e e e e e e e
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary frusts. .. ...

Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; 200,000,000 shares authorized, noneissued ... oot
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share; 3,000,000,000 shares authorized; 786,766,664 shares issued at
December 31, 2003 and 2002; 757,186,137 shares outstanding at December 31, 2008 and 700,278,412 shares
outstanding at December 871, 2002 . . ...
Additional PaId-IN CADIAl .. .. e e e e
REEINEd BAMINGS . . . e e e
Treasury stock, at cost; 29,580,527 shares at December 31, 2003 and 86,488,252 shares at December 31, 2002. ..
Accurmulated other COMDIENaNSIVE MO0 . . .. ottt et e e e e e e e
Total SIOCKNOIIEI S By . oo o st e e e e e e e e

Total fiabilities and StOCKNOIAEIS' EQUILY .. ..o e s

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,

Metlife, Inc.

2003 2002
$167,752 $140,288
1,508 1,813
26,249 25,086
8,749 8,580
4,714 3,926 -
89 799
2,477 2,395
1,826 1,927
4,645 3,727
218,099 188,335
3,733 2,323
2,180 2,088
-7.047 6,445
12,943 11,727
7,077 6,815
75,756 52,693
$326,841 $277,426
$ 94,148 $ 89,815
75,901 66,830
6,343 5,685
1,049 1,080
2,130 1,882
3,642 1,161
5,703 4,425
277 -
652 769
2,398 1,625
27,083 17,862
10,600 7,999
75,756 59,693
305,692 258,776
- 1,265
8 8
14,991 14,068
4,193 2,807
{835) (2,405
2,792 2,007
21,149 17,385
$326,841 277,426
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

2003 2002 2001

REVENUES
(101 0 $20,673  $19,077  $17.212
Universal life and investment-type product poliCy fe8S .. ... e e 2,496 2,147 1,889
S Tt [0t 10727 D 11,636 11,261 11,187
BT TEVENUES .\ e et e e e 1,342 1,332 1,507
Net investment gains (losses) (net of amounts allocable from other accounts of ($215), ($145) and ($134),

Sy @A 11V Y (358) (751) (579)

Ol TEVUES o vttt e e e e e 35,789 33,066 31,218

EXPENSES
Policyholder benefits and claims (excludes amounts directly related to net investment geins (losses) of ($184),

B150) and (B159), r8SPECHVEIY) o o ottt 20,848 19,5623 18,454
Interest credited to policyholder account balances . . ... ..o e O 3,035 2,950 3,084
POllCyholder QVIENaS . . 1,975 1,942 2,086
Cther expenses (excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains (losses) of ($31), $5 and $25,

B DO IV L o o ot it e e 7,301 7,015 7,022

TOtal EXPBNSES & .ttt e e 33,159 31,430 30,646
Income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes . ... ... i 2,630 1,636 570
T OVISION fOr N0 ARG . . oottt e e e e e e 687 502 204
INCome from CoNtiNUING ODBIETIONS . . . . o vttt e e e e e e e 1,043 1,134 366
Income from discontinued operations, Net Of INCOME 18XES. . . .ot e e e e e e 300 471 107
Income before cumulative effect of change IN aCCOUNtING . . ..ot vt e 2,243 1,605 473
Cumulative effect of change In accounting, Net of INCOME TAXES .. .. ittt e (26) — —
N O Lottt e S $2217 $1605 $ 473
Income from continuing operations avallable to common shareholders per share

B .« o $ 260 $ 161 3 049

I3 0T $ 257 $ 156 & 048
Net Income avallable to common shareholders per share )

BaSI T vt $ 298 % 228 $ 064

BT o $ 294 $ 220 & Q62
Cash AIVIGENAS PBI SNAIE . ettt e e $ 023 3 021 & 020

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
{Dollars in millions)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive income (Loss)

Net Foreign Minimum
Additional Treasury Unrealized Currency Pension
Common Paid-in Retained Stock investment Translation Liability
Stock Capital Earnings at Cost  Gains (Losses) Adjustment Adjustment Total
Balance at December 31,2000 . ... oL %8 $14,926 $1,021 $ 13 $1,175 $(100) $ 28 $16,389
Treasury stock transactions, net ... oL (1,321) (1,321)
Dividends on common Stock. ..o (145) (145)
Issuance of warrants — by subsidiary .......... ... L 40 40
Comprehensive income:
NEtinCOME ... e 473 473
Other comprehensive income:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for
derivatives, net of income taxes ................ 22 22
Unrealized gains on derivative instruments, net of
MCOMEBIAXES ., . v et 24 24
Unrealized investment gains, net of related offsets,
reclassification adjustments and income taxes . ... 658 658
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........... (50)] (80)
Minimum pension ligbllity adjustment .............. (18 (18)
Other comprehensive incCome ..., ... 626
Comprenensive INCOME . .o _ 1,099
Batance at December 31, 2001 ... .. ... L. 8 14,966 1,349  (1,934) 1,879 (180) (46) 16,062
Treasury stock transactions, net ... 2 471) : (409)
Dividends on common Stock. .. ..o (147} (147)
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ... 1,605 1,605
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments, net of
NCOME taXES . o e e (60) (60)
Unrealized investment gains, net of related offsets, ‘
reclassification adjustments and income taxes . ... 4863 463
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........... (69) (69)
Other comprehensive INCOME .. ..o e e, 334
Comprehensive iNCOMe ... ..ot . 1,939
Balance at December 31,2002 .........cooiv it 8 14,968 2,807  (2,405) 2,282 (229) (46) 17,385
Treasury stock transactions, net ............ e 20 (92) (72)
Issuance of shares — by subsidiary . .................. 24 24
Dividends on common Stock. .. ... (175) (75)
Settlement of common stock purchase contracts ....... ©6356) 1,662 1,008
Premium on conversion of company-obligated mandatorily
redeemable securities of a subsidiary trust ........... 21) 21
Comprehensive income:
Net income .. ... S 2,217 2,217
Cther comprehensive income:
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments, net of
NCOME TEXES . oo vt oot (250) (250)
Unrealized investment gains, net of related offsets,
reclassification adjustments and income taxes . ... 940 840
Foreign currency tranglation adjustments . .......... : 177 177
Minimum pension liability adjustment . ... ... .. 82) 82)
Other comprehensive Income . ... ..o 785
Comprehensive iINComMe ... ...t _ 3,002
Balance at December 31,2003 ...................... $8 $14,981 $4,193 $ (835  $2,972 $ (52 $(128)  $21,149

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(Dollars in millions)

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from operating activities
T Two) 211 O $ 2217 $ 1805 $ 473
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreclation and amortization EXPENSES . . ... oot 478 498 481
Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts associated with investments, net. .. .............. (180) 619 (575)
(Gains) losses from sales of investments and businesses, net ... . 152 317 713
Interest credited 10 other poficyholder account DalanCes . ... 3,035 2,950 3,084
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees ... .o e (2,498) (2,147) (1,889)
Change in premiums and other reCeivabIEs . . . ... o e (334) (473) 476
Change in deferred policy acquisition COSES, MEt . . ..o (1,332) (741) 563)
Change in insurance-related labilities ... .. i e 4,687 3,104 2,508
Change i INCOME t8XES PaYADIE .. ..o e e e 241 479 477
Change in bank CUSIOMEr JeR0SIHS .« ..ttt e e e 897 208 81
Change In other IaGIHES .. ... vt e e 560 (117) (40)
BT, Ml oo e e e (562) (997) (968)
Net cash provided by operating aCtivities . .. oo 7,363 4,168 4,258
Cash flows from investing activities
Sales, maturities and repayments of:
Fixed MatUMtiES . oot e 76,200 64,602 52,426
U SECUMIES L o oo 612 2,703 2,125
Mortgage 10ans On real EStale . .. .. ot 3,483 2,638 1,993
Real estate and real estate JoINt VentUres . . .. oo e 889 835 344
Other limited pamnership MIBIESTS . .. v et et e e e e e e 308 209 396
Purchases of:
FIXed MU S .o (101,577) ~ (85,155)  (51,865)
EQUIY SOCUMES L . L e e e e e e (187) (1,260) (3,354)
Mortgage 10ans On real ESIalE . . ... e (4.975) (3,208) (3,494)
Real estate and real estate jOINt VANTUIES . ... (344) (208) (769)
Other Imited DarNersnD IMBrES S L . o e e e (588) (458) (424)
Net change in Short-Term INVESIMENTS . ... ..o e e 98 (477) 74
Purchases of businesses, net of Cash reCaived ... i e e e e 18 879 (276)
Proceeds rom Sales Of DUSINESSES . ... ot e e e e 5 — 81
Net change in payable under securities 10aned transactions . ...t e 9,221 5,201 360
AN, Mt . ettt e e e e e 851) (760) (587)
Net cash used N INVESHING ACTVILIES . . .. e e e e $ (17.688) $(16,213) $ (2,970

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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METLIFE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001
(Dollars in millions)

2003 2002 2001
Cash flows from financing activities
Policyholder account balances:
[101=] o1 S T $ 37023 $31,061  $31.421
VN BWEAIS L oo (28,674) (25,151 (27,899
Net change in Shomt-tem debl. ..o 2,481 806 (730)
LoNg-tarm Aebt ISSUB . . o o e e 934 1,008 1,600
Long-term debt repald . ... e (783) (211} 372)
Treasury STOCK BCOUITET . . ..o ottt e 97) 471 (1,327
Settlement of COMMON SIOCK PUIChASE COMTACTS . .. . oo v oo e e e e 1,006 — -
Net proceeds from issuance of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trust .. - — 197
DIVIJENAS 0N COMIMON SI0CK .« .t ot ettt et e et e e e e e e e e e e (175) (147) (145)
Net cash provided by financing activiies ... ... oo i e 11,735 6,895 2,751
Change in cash and €ash eqUIVAIBNTS .. ...ttt e e 1,410 (5,150) 4,039
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning Of YBar . .. ... i e 2,323 7,473 3,434
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ... ... .. ... ... e $ 3,733 B 2,323 § 7,473
Supplemenital disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid (refunded) during the year:
013= =1 e $ 505 § 424 0§ 349
NCOME TXES .« v e o ettt e e e e e $ 702 % 193 B (262
Non-cash transactions during the year:
BUSINESS ACOUISIIONS — 88 . . 1 oottt e et e 3 126 % 28630 B 1,336
Business acquiSitions — HablitiesS . . ...t 3 144 $ 1,751 $ 1,080
BUSINESS QISD0SIIONS — BSSEIS . . oottt ettt 3 g 9 — $ 102
Business dispositions — labilities. .. ... e $ 4 3 - % 44
Purchase money mortgage onreal estate Sal2 . ..o 3 196 § 954 % —
MetLife Capital TIUST I rANSACHONS . .ottt ettt e e e e e $ 1037 % - § —
Real estate acquired in satisfaction of dabt . .. ... . e 3 14 3 30 5 30
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Accounting Policies

Business
“Metlife” or the “Company” refers to MetLife, Inc., a Delaware carporation (the "Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries, including Metropclitan Life
insurance Company (“Metropolitan Life”} is a teading provider of insurance and other financial services to a broad spectrum of individual and institutional
customers. The Company offers life insurance, annuities, automobile and homeowners insurance and mutual funds to individuals, as well as group
insurance, reinsurance and retirement and savings products and services to corporations and other institutions.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of (i) the Holding Company and its subsidiaries: (i) partnerships and joint
ventures in which the Company has a majority voting interest; and (il) variable interest entities ("VIES") created or acquired on or after February 1, 2003 of
which the Company is deemed to be the primary beneficiary. Closed block assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are combined on a line by line basis
with the assets, fiabilities, revenues and expenses outside the closed block based on the nature of the particular item. See Note 6. Intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

The Company uses the equity method of accounting for investments in real estate joint ventures and other limited partnership interests in which it
has more than a minor equity interest or more than minor influence over the partnership’'s operations, but does not have a controlling interest. The
Company uses the cost method of accounting for Interests in which it has a minor equity investrment and virtually no influence over the partnership’s
operations.

Minority interest related to consolidated entities included in other liabilites was $950 milion and $491 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. This increase was the direct result of the change in MetUife's ownership of RGA to approximately 52% in 2003 compared to 58% in 2002,

Certain amounts in the prior years' consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the 2003 presentation.

Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to adopt accounting policies and make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements, The critical accounting policies, estimates ard related judgments
underlying the Company’s consolidated financial statements are summarized below. In applying these policies, management makes subjective and
complex judgrents that frequently require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain. Many of these policies, estimates and related judgments
are common in the insurance and financial services industries; others are specific to the Company’s businesses and operations.

Investments

The Company’s principal investments are in fixed maturities, mortgage loans and real estate, all of which are exposed to three primary sources of
investment risk: credit, interest rate and market valuation. The financial statement risks are those associated with the recognition of impairments and
income, as wel as the determination of fair values. The assessment of whether impaimments have occurred is based on management's case-by-case
evaluation of the underlying reasons for the decline in fair value. Management considers a wide range of factors about the security issuer and uses its
best judgment in evaluating the cause of the decline in the estimated fair value of the security and in assessing the prospects for near-term recovery.
Inherent in management's evaluation of the security are assumptions and estimates about the operations of the Issuer and its future eamings potential.
Considerations used by the Company in the impairment evaluation process include, but are not limited to: () the length of time and the extent to which the
market value has been below cost; (i) the potential for impairments of securities when the issuer is experiencing significant financial difficulties; (i) the
potential for impairments in an entire Industry sector or sub-sector; (iv) the potential for impairments in certain econcmically depressed geographic
locations; (v} the potential for impairments of securities where the issuer, series of issuers or industry has suffered a catastrophic type of loss or has
exhausted natural resources; (Vi) unfavorable changes in forecasted cash flows on asset-backed securities; and (vil) other subjective factors, including
concentrations and information obtained from reguiators and rating agencies. In addition, the eamings on certain investments are dependant upon market
conditions, which could resuilt in prepayments and changes in amounts to be eamed due to changing interest rates or equity markets. The determination
of fair values In the absence of quoted market values is based on: (i) valuation methodolagies; (i) securities the Company deems ta be comparable; and
(i) assumptions deemed appropriate given the circumstances. The use of different methodologies and assumptions may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts. In addition, the Company enters into certain structured investment transactions, real estate joint ventures and limited
partnerships for which the Company may be deemed to be the primary beneficiary and, therefore, may be required to consolidate such investments. The
accounting rules for the determination of the primary benéficiary are complex and require evaluation of the contractual rights and obligations assoclated
with each party involved in the entity, an estimate of the entity's expected losses and expected residual retums and the allocation of such estimates to
each party.

Derivatives

The Company enters into freestanding derivative transactions primarily to manage the risk associated with variability in cash flows or changes in fair
values related to the Company's financial assets and liabilities or to changing falr values. The Company also uses derivative instruments to hedge its
currency exposure associated with net investments in certain foreign operations. The Company also purchases investment securities, issues certain
insurance poficies and engages in certain reinsurance contracts that embed derivatives. The associated financial statement risk is the volatiiity in net
income which can result from (i) changes in fair value of derivatives not qualifying as accounting hedges,; (i) ineffectiveness of designated hedges; and
(i) counterparty default. In addition, there is a risk that embedded derivatives requiring bifurcation are not identified and reported at fair value in the
consolidated financial statements. Accounting for derivatives is complex, as evidenced by significant authoritative interpretations of the primary
accounting standards which continue to evolve, as well as the significant judgments and estimates involved in determining fair value in the absence of
quoted market values. These estimates are based on valuation methodologies and assumptions deemed appropriate in the circumstances. Such
assumptions include estimated volatiiity and interest rates used in the determination of fair value where guoted market values are not avallabie. The use of
different assumptions may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.
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METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The Company incurs significant costs in connection with acquiring new and renewal insurance business. These costs, which vary with and are
primarily related to the production of that business, are deferred. The recovery of such costs is dependent upon the future profitability of the related
business. The amount of future profit is dependent principally on investment retumns in excess of the amounts credited to policyholders, mortality,
morbidity, persistency, interest crediting rates, expenses to administer the business, creditworthiness of reinsurance counterparties and certain economic
variables, such as infiation. Of these factors, the Company anticipates that investment retumns are most likely to impact the rate of amortization of such
costs. The aforementioned factors enter into management's estimates of gross margins and profits, which generally are used to amortize such costs.
Revisions to estimates result in changes to the amounts expensed in the reporting period in which the revisions are made and could result in the
impairment of the asset and a charge o income if estimated future gross marging and profits are less than amounts deferred. In addition, the Company
utilizes the reversion to the mean assumption, a standard industry practice, in its determination of the amortization of deferred policy acquisition cost
("DAC", including value of business acquired {“VOBA”). This practice assumes that the expectation for long-term appreciation in equity markets is not
changed by minor short-term market fiuctuations, but that it does change when large interim deviations have occurred.

Future Policy Benefits

The Company establishes fiabiliies for-amounts payable under insurance policies, including traditional life insurance, annuities and disability
insurance. Generally, amourts are payable over an extended period of time and liabilities are established based on methods and underlying assumptions
in accordance with GAAP and applicable actuarial standards. Principal assumptions used in the establishment of liabilities for future oolicy benefits are
maortality, marbidity, expenses, persistency, investment retums and inflation,

The Company also establishes liabilities for unpaid claims and claims expenses for property and casualty insurance. Liabilities for property and
casualty insurance are dependent on estimates of amounts payable for claims reported but not settled and claims incurred but not reported. These
estimates are influenced by historical experience and actuarial assumptions with respect to current developments, anticipated trends and rigk
management strategies.

Differences between the actual experience and assumptions used in pricing these policies and in the establishment of liabilities result in variances in
profit and could result in 10sses.

Reinsurance

The Company enters into reinsurance trar{sact‘soms_as both a provider and a purchaser of reinsurance. Accounting for reinsurance requires extensive
use of assumptions and estimates, particularly related to the future performance af the underlying business and the potential impact of counterparty credit
risks, The Company pericdically reviews actual and anticipated experience compared to the aforementioned assumptions used to establish assets and
liabilitles refating to ceded and assumed relnsurance and evaluates the financial sirength of counterparties 1o its reinsurance agreements using criteria
similar to that evaluated in the security impairment process discussed previously. Additionally, for each of its reinsurance contracts, the Company must
determine if the contract provides indemnification against loss or liability relating to insurance risk, in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
Tne Company must review all contractual features, particularly those that may fimit the amount of insurance risk 1o which the reinsurer is subject or
features that delay the timely reimbursement of claims. If the Company determines that a reinsurance contract does not expose the reinsurer to a
reasonable possibility of a significant foss from insurance risk, the Company records the contract using the deposit method of accounting.

Litigation

The Company is a party to a number of legal actions. Given the inherent unpredictability of fitigation, it is difficult to estimate the impact of fitigation on
the Company's consolidated financial position. Liabilities are established when it is probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can
be reasonably estimated. Liabilities related to certain lawsits, including the Company's asbestos-related liability, are especially difficult to estimate due to
the limitation of available data and uncertainty regarding numerous variables used to determine amounts recorded. The data and variables that impact the
assumption used 1o estimate the Company’s asbestos-related liability include the number of future claims, the cost to resolve claims, the disease mix
and severity of disease, the jurisdiction of claims filed, tort reform efforts and the impact of any possible future adverse verdicts and their amounts. It is
possible that an adverse outcome in certain of the Company's litigation, including asbestos-related cases, or the use of different assumptions in the
determination of amounts recorded could have a material effect upon the Company's consolidated net income or cash flows in particular quarterly or
annual periods.

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors pension and other retirement plans in various forms covering employees who meet specified eligibility requirements. The
reported expense and liability associated with these plans requires an extensive use of assumptions which include the discount rate, expected return on
plan assets and rate of future compensation increases as determined by the Company. Management determines these assumptions based upon
currently available market and industry data, historical performance of the plan and its assets, and consultation with an independent consulting actuarial
firmi to aid it in selecting appropriate. assumptions and valuing its related fiabilities. The actuarial assumptions used in the calculation of the Company's
aggregate projected benefit obligation may vary and include an expectation of fong-term market appreciation in equity markets which is not changed by
minor short-term market fluctuations, but does change when large interim deviations occur, These assumptions used by the Company may differ
materially from actual results due 1o changing market and economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawal rates or longer or shorter life spans of the
participants. These differences may have a significant effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements and liquidity.

Significant Accounting Policies
Investrents

The Company's fixed maturity and equity securities are classified as avallable-for-sale and are reported at their estimated fair vaiue. Unrealized
investment gains and losses on securities are recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive income or loss, net of policyholder related
amounts and deferred income taxes. The cost of fixed maturity and equity securities is adjusted for impairments in value deemed to be other-than-
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temporary. These adjustments are recorded as investment losses. Investment gains and losses on sales of securities are determined on a specific
identification basis. Al security transactions are recorded on a trade date basis.

Mortgage loans on real estate are stated at amortized cost, net of vaiuation allowances, Valuation allowances are established for the excess carrying
value of the mortgage loan over-its estimated fair value when it is probable that, based upon current information and events, the Company will be unable
1o collect all amounts due under the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Such valuation allowances are based upon the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate or the collateral value if the loan is collateral dependent. The Company also
establishes allowances for loan 10ss when a loss contingency exists for pools of loans with similar characteristics based on property types and loan 1o
vaiue risk factors. A loss contingency exists when the likelihood that a future event will occur is probable based on past events, Changes in valuation
allowances are included in net investment gains and losses. Interest income earned on impaired loans is accrued on the principal amount of the loan
based on the loan's contractual interest rate. However, interest ceases 1o be accrued for loans on which interest is generally more than 60 days past due
and/or where the collection of interest Is not considered probable., Cash receipts on impaired loans are recorded as a reduction of the recorded
investment.

Reai estate held-for-investment, Including related improvements, is stated at cost less accumuiated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-fine basis over the estimated useful life of the asset (typically 20 to 40 years). Once the Company identifies a property that is expected to be sold
within one year and commences a firm plan for marketing the property, in accordance with SFAS 144, the Company, if applicable, classifies the property
as held-for-sale and reports the related net investment income and any resulting investment gains and osses as discontinued operations. Real estate
held-for-sale is stated at the lower of depreciated cost or fair value less expected disposition costs. Real estate is not depreciated while it is classified as
held-for-saile. Cost of real estate held-for-investment is adjusted for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances indicate the carrying
amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Impaired real estate is wiitten down o estimated fair value with the impairment loss being included in net
investment gains and losses. Impaiment losses are based upon the estimated fair value of real estate, which is generally computed using the present
value of expscted future cash flows from the real estate discounted at a rate commensurate with the underlying risks. Real estate acquired upon
foreclosure of commercial and agricultural mortgage lcans is recorded at the lower of estimated fair value or the carrying value of the mortgage loan at the
date of foreclosure. '

Policy loans are stated at unpaid principal balances.

Short-term investments are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

Other invested assets consist principaliy of leveraged leases and funds withheld at interest, The leveraged leases are recorded net of non-recourse
debt, The Company participates in lease fransactions which are diversified by industry, asset type and geographic area. The Company regularly reviews
residual values and impairs residuals to expected values as needed. Funds withheld represent amounts contractually withheld by ceding companies in
accordance with reinsurance agreements. For agresments written on a modified coinsurance basis and certain agreements written on a coinsurance
basis, assets supporting the reinsured policies and equal to the net statutory reserves are withheld and continue to be legally owned by the ceding
companies. Other invested assets also includes the fair value of embedded derivatives related to funds withheld and modified coinsurance contracts.
The Company recognizes interest on funds withheld in accordance with the treaty terms as investment income is eamed on the assets supporting the
reinsured policies.

Structured Investment Transactions

The Company participates in structured investment transactions, primarily asset securitizations and structured notes. These transactions enhance
the Company's total return of the investment portfolic principally by generating management fee income on asset securitizations and by providing equity-
based returns on debt securities through struciured notes and similar instruments.

The Company sponsors financial asset securitizations of high vield debt securtties, investment grade bonds and structured finance securities and
aiso Is the collateral manager and a beneficial interest holder in such transactions. As the collateral manager, the Company eams management fees on
the outstanding securitized asset balance, which are recorded in income as eamed. When the Company transfers assets to a bankruptcy-remote special
purpose entity ("SPE”) and surrenders control aver the transferred assets, the transaction is accounted for as a sale. Gains or losses on securitizations
are determined with reference to the carrying amount of the financial assets transferred, which is allocated to the assets sold and the baneficial interests
retained based on relative fair values at the date of transfer. Beneficial interests in securitizations are carried at fair value In fixed maturities. income on
these beneficial interests is recognized using the prospective method in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") Issue No. 99-20,
Recognition of Interast Income and Impairment on Certain Investments (“EITF 89-20"), The SPEs used to securltize assets are not consolidated by the
Company because the Company has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of these entities based on the framework provided in FASB
interpretation No. 46 (revised December 31, 20083), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, An Interpretation of ARB No. 51 ("FIN 48(r)"). Prior to the
adoption of FIN 46(1), such SPEs were not consolidated because they did not meet the criteria for consolidation under previous accounting guidance.

The Company purchases or recelves beneficial interests in SPEs, which generally acquire financial assets, including corporate equities, debt
securities and purchased options. The Company has not guaranteed the performance, liguidity or obligations of the SPEs and the Company's exposure
to loss is limited to its camying value of the beneficial interests in the SPEs. The Company uses the beneficial interests as part of its risk management
strategy, including asset-liability management. These SPEs are not consolidated by the Company because the Company has determined that it is not the
primary beneficiary of these entities based on the framework provided in FIN 46(r). Prior to the adoption of FIN 46(r), such SPEs were not consolidated
because they did not meet the criteria for consclidation under previous accounting guidance. These beneficial interests are generally structured notes, as
defined by EITF Issue No. 96-12, Recognition of Interest Income and Balance Sheet Classification of Structured Notes, which are included in fixed
maturities, and their income Is recognized using the retrospective interest method or the level yield method, as appropriate. Impairments of these
beneficial interests are includad in net investment gains and losses.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses dervative Instruments to manage risk through one of five principal risk management strategies, the hedging of: (i} liabilities;
(i) invested assets; {iily portfolios of assets or liabilities; (v) net investments in certain foreign operations; and () firm commitments and forecasted
transactions. Additionally, the Company enters into income generation ard replication derivative transactions as permitted by its insurance subsidiaries’
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Cerivatives Use Plans approved by the applicable state insurance departments. The Company's derivative hedging strategy employs a variety of
instruments, including financial futures, financial forwards, interest rate, credit default and foreign currency swaps, foreign currency forwards, and options,
including caps and floors.

On the date the Company enters into a derivative contract, management designates the derivative as a hedge of the identified exposure (fair value,
cash flow or foreign currency). If a derivative does not qualify for hedge accounting, according to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {"SFAS”)
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative instruments and Hedging Aclivities, as amended ("SFAS 133"}, the changes in Its fair value and all scheduled periodic
settlement receipts and payments are reported in net investment gains or losses.

The Company formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. In this documentation, the Company specifically identifies the asset, fiability, firm commitment, foreign
operation, or forecasted transaction that has been designated as a hedged item, states how the hedging instrument is expected to hedge the risks
related to the hedged item, and sets forth the method that will be used 10 retrospectively and prospectively assess the hedging instrument’s effectivenass
and the method that will be used to measure hedge ineffectiveness. The Company generally determines hedge effectiveness based on total changes in
fair valug of a derivative instrument. The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when: () it is determined that the derivative is no longer
effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of a hedged item; (i) the derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised; (i} the
derivative is de-designated as a hedge instrument; (i) it is probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur; (v) & hedged firm commitment no fonger
meets the definition of a firm commitrent; or (M) management determines that designation of the derivative as a hedge instrument is no longer
appropriate. )

The Company designates and accounts for the following as cash flow hedges, when they have met the effectiveness requirements of SFAS 133:
(i) various types of interest rate swaps 1o convert floating rate investments to fixed rate investments; (i) various types of interest rate swaps to convert
floating rate liabilities into fixed rate liabilities; (i) receive U.S. dollar fixed on foreign currency swaps 1o hedge the foreign currency cash flow exposure of
foreign currency denominated investments; (iv) foreign currency forwards 10 hedge the exposure of future payments or receipts in foreign currencies; and
(v) other instruments to hedge the cash flows of various other forecasted transactions. For all gualifying and highly effective cash flow hedges, the
effective portion bf changes in fair value of the derivative instrument is reported in other comprehensive income or loss. The ineffective portion of changes
in fair value of the derivative instrument is reported In net investment gains or fosses. Hedged forecasted transactions, other than the receipt or payment
of variable interest payments, are not expected {0 occur more than 12 months after hedge inception.

The Company designates and accounts for the following as fair value hedges when they have met the effectiveness requirements of SFAS 133:
(i) various types of interest rate swaps to convert fixed rate investments to floating rate investments; (i) receive U.S. dollar floating on foreign currency
swaps to hedge the foreign currency fair value exposure of foreign currency denominated investments; (i) pay U.S. dollar floating on foreign currency
swaps to hedge the foreign currency fair value exposure of foreign currency denominated liabilities, and (iv) other instruments to hedge various other fair
value exposures of investments, For ali qualifying and highly effective fair vaiue hedges, the changes in fair value of the derivative instrument are reported
as net investment gains or losses. In addition, changes in fair value attributable to the hedged portion of the underlying instrument are reported in net
investment gains and losses. In addition, changes in fair value attributable to the hedged portion of the underlying instrument are reported in net
investment gains and losses.

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the derivative no fonger qualifies as an effective fair value hedge, the derivative
continues 1o be carried on the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, but the hedged asset or liability will no longer be adjusted for changes in fair
value. When hedge accounting s discontinued because the hedged item no longer meets the definiion of a firm commitment, the derivative continues to
be carried on the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value, and any asset or liability that was recorded pursuant to recognition of the firm commitment is
removed from the consolidated balance sheet and recognized as a net investment gain or loss in the current period. When hedge accounting is
discontinued because it is probable that.a forecasted transaction will not occur, the derivative continues to be carried on the consolidated balance sheet
at its fair value, and gains and losses that were accumulated in other comprehensive income or loss are recognized immediately in net investment gains
or losses. When the hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable, but is reasonably possible, the accumulated gain or loss remains in other
comprehensive income or loss and is recognized when the transaction affects net income or loss; however, prospective hedge accounting for the
transaction is terminated. In all other situations in which hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivative Is carried at its fair value on the consolidated
balance sheet, with changes in its fair value recognized in. the current period as net nvestment gains or losses.

The Company uses forward exchange contracts that provide an economic hedge on portions of its net investments In foreign operations against
adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. Unrealized losses on instruments so designated are recorded as components of accumuliated
other comprehensive income.

The Company may enter into contracts that are not themselves derivative instruments but contain embedded derivatives. For each contract, the
Company assesses whether the economic characteristics of the embedded derivative are clearly and closely related to those of the host contract and
determines whether a separate instrurnent with the same terms as the embedded instrument wouid mest the definition of a derivative instrument.

If it is determined that the embedded derivative possesses economic characteristics that are not clearly and closely related to the economic
charactefistics of the host contract, and that a separate instrument with the same terms would qualify as a derivative instrument, the embedded derivative
is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a stand-alone derivative. Such embedded derivatives are recorded on the consolidated
balance sheet at fair value and changes in their fair value are recognized in the current period in net investment gains or losses. If the Company is unable
to properly identify and measure an embedded derivative for separation from its host contract, the entire contract is carried on the consolidated balance
sheet at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in the current period as net investment gains or {osses.

The Company also uses derivatives to synthetically create investments that are either maore expensive to acquire or othenwise unavailable in the cash
markets. These securities, called replication synthetic asset transactions ("RSATs™), are a combination of a credit default swap and a U.S. Treasury or
Agency security, synthetically creating a third replicated security. These derivatives are not designated as hedges. As of December 31, 2003 and 2002,
24 and 16, respectively, of such RSATs, with notional amounts totaling $489 million and $240 milion, respectively, were outstanding. The Company
records both the premiums received on the credit default swaps over the life of the contracts and changes in their fair value in net investment gains and
losses.
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The Company enters into written covered calls to generate additional investment income on the underlying assets it holds. These derivatives are not
designated as hedges. The Company records the premiums received over the life of the contract and changes in fair value of such options as ret
investment gains and losses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Property. Equipment, Leasehold Improvements and Computer Software

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements, which are included in other assets, are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is determined using either the straight-line or sum-of-the-years-digits method cver the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
estimated tife for company occupied real estate property is generally 40 years. Estimated lives range from five to ten years for leasehold improvements
and three to five years for all other property and equipment. Accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, equipment and leasehold
improvements was $527 milion and $428 milion at Decernber 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Related depreciation and amortization expense was
$119 milion, $85 million and $39 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Computer software, which is included in other assets, is stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Purchased software costs, as well as internal
and external costs incurred to develop internal-use computer software during the application development stage, are capitalized. Such costs are
amortized generally over a thres-year period using the straight-line method. Accumulated amortization of capitalized software was $432 million and
$317 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Related amortization expense was $150 mifion, $155 milion and $110 million for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The costs of acquiring new and renewal insurance business that vary with, and are primarily related to, the production of that business are deferred.
Such costs, which consist prncipally of commissions, agency and policy issue expenses, are amortized with interest over the expected life of the
contract for participating traditional life, universal fife and investment-type products. Generally, DAC is amortized in proportion to the present value of
estimated gross margins or profits from investment, mortality, expense margins and surrender charges. Interest rates are based on rates in effect at the
inception or acquisition of the contracts.

Actual gross margins or profits can vary from management's estimates resulting in increases or decreases In the rate of amortization. Management
utilizes the reversion to the mean assumption, a standard industry practice, in its determination of the amortization of DAC. This practice assumes that the
expectation for long-term equity investment appreciation is not changed by minor short-term market fluctuations, but that it does change when large
interim deviations have occurred. Management periodically updates these estimates and evaluates the recoverability of DAC. When appropriate,
management revises its assumptions of the estimated gross margins or prafits of these contracts, and the cumulative amortization is reestimated and
adjusted by a cumulative charge or credit 1o current operations.

DAC for non-participating traditional life, non-medical health and annuity policies with life contingencies is amortized in proportion to anticipated
premiums. Assumptions as to anticipated premiums are meade at the date of policy issuance or acquisition and are consistently applied during the lives of
the cantracts. Deviations from estimated experience are included in operations when they occur. For these contracts, the amortization period is typically
the estimated life of the policy.

Policy acquisition costs related to internally replaced contracts are expensed at the date of replacement.

DAC for property and casualty insurance contracts, which is primarily comprised of commissions and certain underwriting expenses, are deferred
and amortized on a pro rata basis over the applicable contract term or reinsurance treaty.

VOBA, included as part of DAC, represents the present value of future profits generated from existing insurance contracts in-force at the date of
acquisition and is amortized over the expected policy or contract duration in relation to the estimated gross profits or premiums from such policies and
contracts.

Goodwill

The excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired {"goodwill") is included in other assets. On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the
provisions of SFAS No. 142, Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets, (“SFAS 142"). In accordance with SFAS 142, goodwill is not amortized but is tested
for impairment at least annually to determine whether a writedown of the cost of the asset is required. Impairments are recognized in operating results
when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis
over a period ranging from ten to 30 years and impairments were recognized in operating results when permanent diminution in value was deemed to
have occurred.

Changes in goodwill were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in millions)

NEt DAlANCE 81 JANUAIY 1 . .o e $750 $609 F703
AU NS &+ o ottt et e e e e s 3 166 54
AT Zal N . oo — — 47
IDAITTIENT LOSSES « . oo ettt et e e e e e - (8) ®1)
DISPOSHION AN OB . L e e e (125) (17) (40)
NEt Dalance at DECEMDEr B1 ...ttt e e B $628  $760  $609

|
H
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Recognition of Insurance Revenue and Related Benefits

Premiums related to traditional life and annuity policies with life contingencies are recognized as revenues when due. Benefits and expenses are
provided against such revenues to recognize profits over the estimated lives of the policies. When premiums are dug over a significantly shorter pericd
than the period over which benefits are provided, any excess profit is deferred and recognized into operations in a constant relationship to insurance in-
force or, for annuities, the amount of expected future policy benefit payments.

Premiums related to non-medical health contracts are recognized on a pro rata basis over the applicable contract term.

Deposits related to universal life and investment-type products are credited to policyholder account balances. Revenues from such contracts
consist of arounts assessed against policynolder account balances for mortality, policy administration and surrender charges and are recognized in the
period in which services are provided. Amounts that are charged to operations include interest credited and benefit claims incurred in excess of related
policyholder account balances.

Premiums related to property and casualty contracts are recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis over the applicable contract term. Unearned
premiums are included in other fiabilities.

Other Revenues

Other revenues Include asset management and advisory fees, broker/dealer commissions and fees, and administrative service fees. Such fees and
commissions are recognized in the period in which senvices are performed. Other revenuss also include changes in account value relating to corporate-
owned life insurance (“COLM). Under certain COLL contracts, if the Company reports certain unlikely adverse results in its consolidated financial
statements, withdrawals would'not be immediately available and would be subject to market value adjustment, which could result in a reduction of the
account value.

Policyholder Dividends

Policyhelder dividends are approved annually by the insurance subsidiaries’ boards of directors. The aggregate amount of policyholder dividends is
refated to actual interest, mortality, morbidity and expense experience for the year, as well as management's judgment as to the appropriate level of
statutory surplus 1o be retained by the insurance subsidiaries.

Participating Business

Participating business represented approximately 14% and 16% of the Company’s life insurance in-force, and 57% and 55% of the number of life
insurance policies in-force, at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Participating policies represented approximately 38% and 38%, 39% and
41%, and 43% and 45% of gross and net life insurance premiums for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
percentages indicated are calculated excluding the business of the Reinsurance segment.

Income Taxes

The Holding Company and its includable life insurance and non-life insurance subsidiaries file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return in
accordance with the provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code”). Non-includable subsidiaries file either separate tax
retums or separate consolidated tax returns. The Tuture tax conseguences of temporary differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets
and liabilities are measured at the balance sheet dates and are recorded as deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

Reinsurance

The Company has reinsured certain of its life insurance and property and casualty insurance contracts with other insurance companies under
varous agreements. Amounts due from reinsurers are estimated based upon assumptions consistent with those used in establishing the liabilities related
to the underlying reinsured contracts. Policy and contract liabilities are reported gross of reinsurance credits, DAC is reduced by amounts recovered
under reinsurance contracts. Amounts received from reinsurers for policy administration are reported in other revenues.

The Company assumes and refrocedes financial reinsurance contracts, which represent low mortality risk reinsurance treaties. These contracts are
reported as deposits and are included in other assets. The amount of revenue reported on these contracts represents fees and the cost of insurance
under the terms of the reinsurance agreement and is reported in other revenuss.

Separate Accounts

Separate accounts are established in conformity with insurance laws and are generally not chargeable with liabilities that arise from any other
business of the Company. Separate account assets are subject to general account claims only to the extent the value of such assets exceeds the
Separate account liabilities, Investments (stated at estimated fair value) and liabilities of the separate accounts are reported separately as assets and
liabilities. Deposits t0 separate accounts, investment income and recognized and unrealized gains and losses on the investments of the separate
accounts accrue drectly fo contractrolders and, accordingly, are rot reflected in the revenues of the Company. Fees charged o coriractholders,
principally mortality, policy administration and surrender charges, are included in universal life and investment-type products fees. See " — Application of
Recent Accountmg Pronouncements.”

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation plans using the prospective fair value accounting method
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation {(“SFAS 123"), as amended by SFAS 148, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure (“SFAS 148").

Stock-based compensation grants pricr 1o January 1, 2003 are accounted for using the accounting method prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board Opinion ("APB") No. 25, Accounting for Stock-lssued to Empioyees {"APB 25") and Note 14 includes the pro forma disclosures required by SFAS
No. 1283, as amended.
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Foreign Currency

Balance sheet accounts of foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates in effect at each year-end and income and expense accounts are
translated at the average rates. of exchange prevalling during the year. The local currencies of foreign operations are the functional currencies uniess the
local economy Is highly inflationary. Translation adjustments are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income or loss, Gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions are reported in eamings. '

Discontinued Operations

The results of operations of a component of the Company that either has been disposed of or is classified as held-for-sale on or after January 1,
2002 are reported in discontinued operations if the operations and cash flows of the component have been or will be eliminated from the ongoing
operations of the Company as a result of the disposal transaction and the Company will not have any significant continuing involverment in the operations
of the component after the disposal transaction.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted eamnings per share
includes the dilutive effect of the assumed: (i} conversion of forward purchase contracts; (i) exercise of stock options, and (i) issuance under deferred
stock compensation using the treasury stock method. Under the treasury stock method, forward purchase contracts, exercise of the stock options and
issuance under deferred stock compensation is assumed with the proceeds used to purchase comrmon stock at the average market price for the period.
The difference between the number of shares assumed issued and number of shares assumed purchased represents the dilutive shares,

Demutualization and Initial Public Offering

On April 7, 2000 (the "date of demutualization”), Metropolitan Life Insurance Company (“Metrapolitan Life”) converted from a mutual life insurance
company to a stock life insurance company and became a wholly-owned subsidiary of MetLife, Inc. The conversion was pursuant 1o an order by the New
York Superintendent of Insurance (the “Superiniendent”) approving Metropolitan Life's plan of recrganization, as amended (the "plan’).

On the date of demutualization, policyholders’ membership interests in Meatropolitan Life were extinguished and eligible policyholders received, in
exchange for their interests, trust interests representing 494,468,664 shares of commoen stock of Metlife, Inc. 16 be held in a tust, cash payments
aggregating $2,550 milion and adjustments to their policy values in the form of policy credits aggregating $408 milion, as provided in the plan. In
addition, Metropolitan Life’s Canadian branch made cash payments of $327 milion in the second guarter of 2000 to holders of certain policies
transferred to Clarica Life Insurance Company in connection with the sale of a substantial portion of Metropolitan Life's Canadian operations in 1998, as a
resuit of a commitment made in connection with obtaining Canadian regulatory approval of that sale.

Application of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Effective Decernber 31, 2003, the Company adopted EIMTF issue No. 03-1, The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and fts Appilication to
Certain Investments ("EITF 03-1"). EITF 03-1 provides guidance on the disclosure requirements for other-than-temporary impairments of debt and
marketable equity investments that are accounted for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS”) No. 118, Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities. The adoption of EITF 03-1 requires the Company to include certain quantitative and qualitative disclosures for
debt and marketable equity securities classified as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity under SFAS 115 that are impaired at the balance shest date but
for which an other-than-temporary impairment has not been recognized. (See Note 2). The initial adoption of EITF 03-1, which only required additional
disclosures, did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”) revised SFAS No. 132, Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretiremant Benefits — an Amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88 and 106 (“SFAS 132(1"). SFAS 132() retains most of the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 132 and requires additional disClosure about assets, obligations, cash flows and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit
pension plans and other defined postretirement plans. SFAS 132(r) is primarily effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003; however, certain
disclosures about foreign plans and estimated future benefit paymenits are effective for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2004. The Company’s adoption
of SFAS 132{) on December 31, 2003 did not have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements since it only revises disclosure
requirements. In January 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 108-1, Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 ("FSP 108-1"), which permits a sponsor of a postretirement health care plan
that provides a prescription drug benefit to make a one-time election to defer accounting for the effects of the new legistation. The Company has elecied
to defer the accourting until further guidance is issued by the FASB. The measurements of the Company's postretirernent accumulated benefit plan
obligation and net periodic benefit cost disclosed in Note 13 do not reflect the sffects of the new legislation. The guidance, when issued, could reguire
the Company to change previously reported information.

In July 2003, the Accounting Standards Execuiive Commities of the American institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of
Position 03-1, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate Accounts
("SOP 03-1"). SOP 03-1 provides guidance on (i) the classification and valuation of long-duration contract labiliies, (i) the accounting for sales
inducements, and (il separate account presentation and valuation. SOP 03-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003. As of
January 1, 2004, the Company increased future policyholder benefits for various guaranteed minimum death and income benefits net of DAC and
uneamed revenue liability offsets under certain variable annuity and universal life contracts of approximately $40 million, net of incorne tax, which will be
reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting. Industry standards ard practices continue to evolve relating to the valuation of liabilities retating
to these types of benefits, which may result in further adjustments to the Company's measurement of fiabilities associated with such benefits in
subsequent accounting periods. Effective with the- adoption of SOP 03-1, costs associated with enhanced or bonus crediting rates to contractholders
will be deferred and amortized over the life of the reiated contract using assumptions consistent with the amortization of DAC. Prior to adoption of
SOP 03-1, the costs associated with these sales inducements have been deferred and amortized over the contingent sales inducement period. This
provision of SOP 03-1 will be applied prospectively to contracts. Effective January 1, 2004, the Company reclassified $118 million of ownership in its
own separate accounts from other assets to fixed maturities avallable-for-sale and equity securities. This reclassification will have no effect on net income
or other comprehensive income. In accordance with SOP 03-1's revised definition of a separate account, effective January 1, 2004, the Company also
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reclassified $1,678 milion of separate account assets to general account investments and $1,678 milion of separate account liabilities to future policy
benefits and policyholder account balances. The net cumulative effect of this reclassification was insignificant.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity
("SFAS 1580"). SFAS 150 clarifies the accounting for certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and eguity and requires that those
instruments be classified as a ligbility or, in certain circumstances, an asset. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after
May 31, 2003 and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 150, as of
July 1, 2008, required the Company to reclassify $277 million of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts from
mezzanine equity 1o liabilities. '

In April 2003, the FASB cleared Statement 133 Implementation issue No. B38, Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and
Debt instruments That incorporate Credit Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partially Related to the Creditworthiness of the Obligor undsr Those
Instruments ("lssue B36"). Issue B36 concluded that (i) a company's funds withheld payable and/or receivable under certain reinsurance arangements,
and (i) a debt instrument that incorporates credit risk exposures that are unrelated or only partially related to the creditworthiness of the obligor include an
embedded derivative feature that is not clearly and closely related to the host contract. Therefore, the embedded derivative feature must be measured at
fair value on the balance sheet and changes in fair value reported in income. Issue B36 became effective on October 1, 2008 and required the Company
to increase policyholder account balances by $40 million, to decrease other invested assets by $1 milion and to increase DAC by $2 milion. These
amounts, net of income tax of $13 million, were recorded as a cumuiative effect of a change in accounting. As a result of the adoption of Issue B36, the
Company recognized investment gains of $3 million, net of income tax, for the three month period ended December 31, 2003.

in Aprit 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities ("SFAS 149"},
SFAS 149 amends and clarifies the accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities. Except for certain implementation guidance that is incorporated in SFAS 148 and already effective, SFAS 149 is
effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003. The Company's adoption of SFAS 148 on July 1, 2003 did not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

During 2003, the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46 Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — An Interpretation of ARB No. 51
{("FIN 46"} and its December 2003 revision (“FIN 46(r)"}. Certain of the Company's asset-backed securitizations, collateralized debt obligations, structured
investment transactions, and investments in real estate joint ventures and ather limited partnership interests meet the definition of a variable interest entity
("VIE”) and must be consolidated, in accordance with the transition rules and effective dates, if the Company is deermed to be the primary beneficiary. A
VIE is defined as ()} any entity in which the equity investments at risk in such entity do not have the characteristics of a controling financial interest, or
(il any entity that does not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its activities without additional subordinated support from other parties. Effective
February 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN 46 for VIEs created or acquired on or after February 1, 2003 and, effective December 31, 2003, the
Company adopted FIN 46(r) with respect to interests in entiies formerly considered special purpose entities (“SPEs"), including interests in asset-backed
securities and collateralized debt obligations. In accordance with the provisions of FIN 46(r), the Company has elected to defer until March 31, 2004 the
consolidation of interests in VIEs for non SPEs acquired prior to February 1, 2003 for which it is the primary beneficiary. The adoption of FIN 46 as of
February 1, 2003 did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements, The adoption of the provisions of FIN 46() at
December 31, 2003 did not require the Company to consolidate any additional VIEs that ware not previously consolidated.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted FIN No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requiremments for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others ("FIN 458"). FIN 45 requires entities o establish liabilities for certain types of guarantees and expands
financial statement disclosures for others. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 did not have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated
financial statements. See Note 12,

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transttion and Disclosure
("SFAS 148"), which provides guidance on how to apply the fair value method of accounting and use the prospective transition method for stock options
granted by the Company subseguent to December 31, 2002, As permitted under SFAS 148, options granted prior to January 1, 2003 will continue to be
accounted for under Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees ("APB 25”), and the pro forma
impact of accounting for these options at fair value will continue 1o be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements untif the last of those options vest
in 2005. See Note 14,

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 146").
SFAS 146 requires that a ligbility for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recorded and measured initially at fair vaiue only when the liability
is incurred rather than at the date of an entity’s commitrent to an exit plan as required by EITF Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain Employee
Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity Including Certain Costs incurred in a Restructuring ("EITF 94-3"). The Company's activities subject
to this guidance in 2003 were not significant.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Staternents No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections ("SFAS 145"). In addition 1o amending or rescinding other existing authoritative pronouncements to make
various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicabiiity under changed conditions, SFAS 145 generally precludes companies from
recording gains and losses from the extinguishment of debt as an extraordinary item. SFAS 145 also requires sale-leaseback treatment for certain
mocdiifications of a capital lease that result in the lease being classified as an operating lease. The adoption of SFAS 145 did not have a significant impact
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ("SFAS 144",
SFAS 144 provides a single medel for accounting for long-lived assets to be disposed of by superseding SFAS No. 121, Accouniing for the impairment
of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of ("SFAS 121", and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30,
Reporting the Resufts of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently
Occurring Events and Transactions (“APB 30"). Under SFAS 144, discontinued operations are measured at the lower of carrying value or fair value less
costs to sell, rather than on a net realizable value basis. Future operating losses relating to discentinued operations also are no longer recognized before
they occur. SFAS 144 (i) broadens the definition of a discontinued operation 1o include a component of an entity (rather than a segment of a business);
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(Il requires long-lived assets 1o be disposed of other than by sale 1o be considered held and used until disposed; and (il retains the basic provisions of
(a) APB 30 regarding the presentation of discontinued operations in the statements of income, (o) SFAS 121 relating to recognition and measurerment of
impaired long-lived assets (other than goodwill), and () SFAS 121 relating to the measurement of long-lived assets classified as held-for-sale. Adoption
of SFAS 144 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consclidated financial statements other than the presentation as discontinued operations
of net investment income and net investment gains related to operations of real estate on which the Company inltiated disposition activities subsequent to
January 1, 2002 and the classification of such real estate as held-for-sale on the consolidated balance sheets. See Note 20,

Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, SFAS 142 eliminates the systematic amortization and establishes criteria for
measuring the impairment of goodwill and certain other intangible assets by reporting unit. Amortization of goodwill, prior to the adoption of SFAS 142
was $47 milion for the year ended December 31, 2001. Amortization of other intangible assets was not material for the years ended December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001. The Company completed the required impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in the third quarter of
2002 and recorded a $5 milion charge to eamings relating to the impairment of certain goodwil assets as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting.
There was no impairment of identified intangible assets or significant reclassifications between goodwill and other intangible assets at January 1, 2002.

Effective July 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations ('SFAS 141"). SFAS 141 requires the purchase method of
accounting for all business combinations and separate recognition of intangible assets apart from goodwill if such intangible assets meet certain criteria.
In accordance with SFAS 141, the eliimination of $5 million of negative goodwill was reported in net income in the first guarter of 2002 as a cumulative
effect of a change in accounting.

In July 2001, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) released Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 102, Sefected {oan Loss
Allowance and Documentation fssues (“SAB 102"}, SAB 102 summarizes certain of the SEC's views on the development, documentation and
application of a systematic methodology for determining allowances for loan and lease losses. The application of SAB 102 by the Company did not have
a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted certain additional accounting and reporting requirements of SFAS No. 140, Accounrmg far Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125, relating to the derecognition of
fransferred assets and extinguished liabilities and the reporting of servicing assets and ligbilities. The initial adoption of these requirements did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Effective April 1, 2001, the Company adopted EITF 99-20, Recognition of interest income and Impairment on Certain Investments. This pronounce-
ment requires investors in certain asset-backed securities to record changes in their estimated vield on a prospective basis and o apply specific
evaluation methods to these securities for an other-than-temporary decline in value. The initial adoption of EITF 93-20 did not have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financiat statements.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS 133 which established new accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. The cumulative effect of the adoption of SFAS 133, as of
January 1, 2001, resulied in a $33 million increase in other comprehensive income, net of income taxes of $18 milion, and had no material impact on net
income. The increase to other comprehensive income s attributable to net gains on cash flow-type hedges at transition. Also at transition, the amortized
cost of fixed maturities decreased and other invested assets increased by $22 milion, representing the fair value of certain interest rate swaps that were
accounted for prior to SFAS 133 using fair value-type settlierment accounting. During the year ended December 31, 2001, $18 million of the pre-tax gain
reported in accumulated other comprehensive Income at transition was reclassified into net investment income. The FASB continues 10 issue additional
guidance refating to the accounting for derivatives under SFAS 133, which may result in further adjustments to the Company's treatment of derivatives in
subseguent accounting periods.
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2. investments

Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities
Fixed maturiﬂes and equity securities at December 31, 2003 were as follows:

Al?n%sr{i:;d _Gross Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
{Doliars in millions)
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds:
U.S. COrporate SBCUMIES . ..ttt e e e $ 56,757 $ 3,888 $252 3 60,397
Mortgage-backed SeCUtioS . ... e 30,838 720 102 31,454
FOreign Ccorporate SECUNMEIBS . ..t i e 21,727 2,194 79 23,842
U.S treasunes/agenCies . . ..ot 14,707 1,264 26 15,945
Asset-Dacked SBCUMIES . ... e e 11,736 187 60 11,863
Commercial mortgage-backed securties . ... v 10,523 530 22 11,031
FOreign government SECUMIES . .. ... ot e 7,789 1,003 28 8,764
States and political SUDAIVISIONS .. ... o 3,155 209 15 3,349
Cther fixed INCOME BSSELS . . . vttt e e e e 492 167 83 576
TOta) DONAS oo 157,722 10,160 667 167,215
Redeemable prefered StOCKS ... ot B11 2 _78 8¢
Total fixed Maturties . ... oo $158,333 $10,162 8743 $167,752
Equity Securities:
COMIMON SIOCKS ottt e e e $ 620 $ 334 $ 2 § 982
Nonredeemable preferred SIOCKS .« o 602 48 - 4 B46
Total equity SECUMIES .. .. o $ 1222 $ 382 $ 6 $ 1,598
Fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, 2002 were as follows;
Aﬁ%ﬁl;’; d Gross Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
) {Dollars in millions)
Fixed Maturities:
Bonds:
U.S. COporate SEBOUMIES .« . oo oot v et e PR $ 47,021 $3,193 & 957  $ 49257
Mortgage-backed SECUMIES ...« e e 26,066 1,076 16 28,026
Foreign corporate securities .............. ... .. e 18,001 1,435 207 19,229
U.S treasuies/a06NCIES .« « .\ttt e e 14373 1,565 4 15,934
ASSEt-backed SECUMIES . ..o\ 9,483 228 208 9,503
Commercial mortgage-backed securties. . ... i 6,290 573 8 6,857
Forelgn govermment SeCUMtiES .. .. et 7,012 836 52 7,596
States and political SUDGIVISIONS .« . oo 2,580 182 20 2,742
Othier fixed INCOME 88818 ..ot e e 809 131 103 897
Total DONaS . o oo s 132,335 8,079 1,573 139,841
Redeemable preferred stocks ..o e 564 — 117 447
Total fixed Maturities . . ... oo $132,899 $9,079 $1,600 $140,288
Equity Securities:
COMIMION SIOCKS . . ettt e et e e et e e $ 87 %115 % 79 $ 918
Nenredeemable preferred stOCkS ..o 6879 25 4 700
Total equity SECUMIES . ..o e $ 1,556 $ 140 $ 83 $ 1,613

The Company held foreign currency derivatives with notional amounts of $4,273 milion and $2,371 milion to hedge the exchange rate risk
associated with foreign bonds and lcans at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company held fixed maturtties at estimated fair values that were below investment grade or not rated by an independent rating agency that
totaled $12,825 milion and $11,812 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These securities had a net unrealized gain of $888 million
and a loss of $422 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Non-income producing fixed maturities were $371 million and $479 milion at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively,

MetLife, Inc, . F-17




METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The cost or amortized cost and estimated fair value of bonds at December 31, 2003, by contractual maturity date (excluding scheduled sinking
funds), are shown below:

Cost or

Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value

. {Dollars in miltions)
DUB M OB YA OF 88 o vttt e e e et e e e e e $ 5,381 $ 5542
Due after one year through five VEarS . . ..o e e e 30,803 32,431
Due after five years througn 18N YEaIS. . .. o vt et e 29,342 31,830
Dug after ten years ... .o vve e R 39,011 43,084
U AL« s e e 104,627 112,867
Mortgage-backed and other asset-backed securities ... i 53,095 54,348
U AL .+ . e 167,722 167,215
Redeemable preferred StOCK ..o 611 537
Total fixed MAtUMTIES ... ettt e e e $158,333 167,752

Bonds not due at a single maturity date have been included in the above table in the year of final maturity. Actual maturities may differ from
contractual maturities due to the exercise of prepayment options.
Sales of fixed maturities and equity securities classified as available-for-sale were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

{Dollars in millions)
PrOCEEaS . .o $54.801  $37,427  $28,105
GrOSS INMVESIMENT GAINS « o vt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e $ 498 $ 1,681 B 646
OSSNV IO 0SS v vt ettt ettt e e i e e e $ (BOO) T ©79 $ (948

Gross investment losses above exclude writedowns recorded during 2003, 2002 and 2001 for other-than-temporarily impaired avaitable-for-sale
fixed maturities and equity securities of $355 million, $1,375 milion and $278 milion, respectively.

Excluding investments in U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S. government corporations and agencies, the Company is not exposed to
any significant concentration of credit risk in its fixed maturities portfolio.

The following table shows the estimated fair values and gross unrealized losses of the Company's fixed maturities, aggregated by sector and tength
of time that the securities have been in a continuous .unrealized 10ss position at December 31, 2003:

Equal to or Greater

Less than 12 Months than 12 Months Tatal

Gross Gross Gross

Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized
Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss Fair Value Loss

(Dollars in mitlions)

U.S. corporate securities ... ... $ 7.214 $152 $1,056 $100 $ 8,270 $252
Mortgage-backed securities. .............. 8,372 98 27 4 8,399 102
Foreign corporate securities. . ............. 2,683 65 355 14 2,938 79
U.S. treasuries/agencies . ... 3697 . 26 - — 3,697 26
Asset-backed securities .. ... .. 2,685 . 34 861 26 3,416 60
Commercial mortgage-backed securities . . . . 2,449 20 ) 282 2 2,731 22
Foreign govemment securities. .. .......... 331 28 2 — 333 28
States and political subdivisions ........... 389 12 ' 38 3 427 15
Other fixed income assets . . .. . SRR 130 _7 40 _10 170 83
Totalbonds ..o 27,720 508 2,661 159 30,381 667
Redeemable preferred stocks ............. 222 62 278 _ 4 500 76
Total fixed maturities ............. $27,942 $570 $2,939 $173 $30,881 $743

At December 31, 2008, the Company had gross unrealized losses of $6 milion from equity securities that had been in an unrealized loss position for
less than twelve months. The amount of unrealized losses from equity securities that had been in an unrealized loss position for twelve months or greater
is less than $1 milion at December 31, 2003, The fair value of those equity securities that had been in an unrealized loss position for less than twelve
months and for twelve months or greater at December 31, 2003, is $53 million and $22 million, respectivaly.

Securities Lending Program
The Company participates in a securities lending program whereby blocks of securities, which are included In investments, are loaned to third
parties, primarily major brokerage firms, The Company reguires a minimum of 102% of the fair value of the loaned securities 1o be separately maintained
as collateral for the loans. Securities with a cost or amertized cost of $25,121 milion and $16,196 million and an estimated fair valug of $26,387 million
and $17,625 million were on loan under the program at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company was liable for cash collateral under
its controt of $27,083 million and $17,862 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Security collateral on deposit from customers may not
be sold or repledged and is not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Assets on Deposit and Held in Trust
The Company had investment assets on deposit with regulatory agencies with a fair market value of $1,353 milion and $875 million at

Decernber 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Company securities held in trust to satisfy collateral requirements had an amortized cost of $2,276 million
and $1,949 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
Mortgage loans on real estate were categorized as follows:
December 31,
2003 2002

Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in millions)

........................................ e o o 820,402 78%  $19,671 78%

Commercial mortgage loans

AGHCUUral MOMQA0E I08MS. . . o e e 5,333 20 5,162 20

Residential mortgage loans. . ... ......oie ... ST 623 2 389 _2
Total o PP 26,378 100% 25212 100%

Less: Valuation allowanCes . .. .o e 129 126 o
MOMGAgE 108NS ..ot e e PR TP UTUR $26,249 $25,086

Mortgage loans on real estate are collateralized by properties primarily located throughout the United States. At December 31, 2003, approximately
21%, 7% and 7% of the properties were located in California, New York and Florida, respectively. Generally, the Company (as the lender) requires that a
minimum of one-fourth of the purchase price of the underlying real estate be paid by the borrower,

Certain of the Company's real estate joint ventures have mortgage oans with the Company. The camying values of such mortgages wers
$639 million and $620 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Changes in mortgage loan valuation allowances were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in miliions)

................................... . %126 $144 B a3

Balance at January 1

AGTONS e e 52 41 106
Deductions . ..o [ (49) (59) (45)
Balance al DeCamMEr B o $12¢ $126 $144

A portion of the Company's morigage ioans on real estate was impaired and consisted of the foliowing:

December 31,

2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)
Impaired mortgage loans with valuation allOWENTES . . ..ottt e $296 $827
Impaired mortgage loans without valuation allowances ... ... o 165 261
Ot o e 461 888
Less: Valuation allowances on impaired mMomGageS . ..o oo e s 62 125
IMpaired MOMGAGE I0BNS ..+« .ttt e e e e $399 3763

The average investment in impaired mortgage loans on real estate was $652 milion, $1,088 milion and $347 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Interest incorne on impaired morigage loans was $58 milion, $91 million and $103 miion for the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The investment in restructured mortgage loans on real estate was $191 milion and $414 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Interest iIncome of $19 milion, $44 milion and $76 million was recognized on restructurad loans for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively. Gross interest income that would have been recorded in accordance with the original terms of such loans amounted to $24 million,
$41 million and $60 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Morigage loans on real estate with scheduled payments of 60 days (90 days for agriculture mortgages) or more past due or in foreclosure had an
amortized cost of $51 milion and $40 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Real Estate and Real Estate Joint Ventures
Real estate and real estate joint ventures consisted of the following:
December 31,
2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)

Real estate and real estate joint ventures hald-for-InveStment . ... o e $4,997 $4,197
DI IS & o e e e e e (283) @71
o =) O O OO 4,714 3,926
Real 651ate NElO-IOr-Sale . . . e e 101 818
gl 10710 — )
ValUBON Bl O ANCE . . o oo (12) (1
Ol e e 89 799
Real estate and real State JoINT VeMIUIES . .. .ottt e e $4,803 $4,725

Accumulated depreciation on real estate was $1,955 milion and $1,951 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The related
depreciation expense was $183 million, $227 milion and $220 milion for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. These
amounts include $15 million, $66 milion and $93 million of depreciation expense related to discontinued operations for the years ended Decembber 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Real estate and real estate joint ventures were categorized as follows:

December 31,

2003 2002
Amount Percent Amount Percent
{Doilars in miliions)
M08 $2,775 58% 82,733 58%
Rl . 667 14 699 15
JaN o= a 1= 1S DN 861 18 8356 18
LB L e e 81 2 87 2
AN U e e e e 1 — 7 —
OMEI. 418 _8 g4 7
151 P P $4802  100% $4725  100%

The Company's real estate holdings are primarily located throughout the United States. At December 31, 2003, approximately 28%, 17% and 16%
of the Company's real estate holdings were located in New York, California and Ilinois, respectively.
Changes in real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-sale valuation allowance were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in millions)
BalanCe At JanUaIY 1 oo e $11 $35 $39
Additions charged t0 INVESIMENT INCOME . . .. .o e e e e et 17 21 16
Deductions for writedowns and diSPOSIIONS .« ... e (16) (45) (20)
BalanCe 8t DECOMIBr B .t e e $12 $11 $35

Investment income related to impaired real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-investment was $35 milion, $48 milion and $34 million for
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. There was no investment income related to impaired real estate and real estate joint
ventures held-for-sale for the year ended December 31, 2003. Investment income related to impaired real estate and real estate joint ventures held-for-
sale was $3 milion and $1¢ milion for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, The camying valug of non-income producing real
estate and real estate joint ventures was $77 millon and $63 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, raspectively.

The Company owned real estate acquired in satisfaction of debt of $3 milion and $10 million at Decemper 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Leveraged Leases
Leveraged leases, included in other invested assets, consisted of the following:
December 31,

2003 2002

{Dollars in miilions)
Y1100 U P PP $ 974 $ 985
Estimated residual ValUBS . .. . 386 428
Ot e e e 1,360 1,413
UNBEMEO INCOMIE .« vt ottt et e et e e e e e e e (380} (368)
LBVEIa0ET B80S oot e $ 880 $1.045
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The investment amounts set forth above are generally dug in monthly instaliments. The payment periods generally range from one to 15 years, but in
certain circumstances are as long as 30 years. These receivables are generally collateralized by the related property. The Company's deferred tax liability
related 1o leveraged leases was $870 million and $981 millon at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net Investment Income
The components of net investment income were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dotiars in millions)
Fixed MatUnitios . ... o $ 8817 $ 8367 $ 8562
EOUY SECUMIES o e e 31 - 43 62
Mortgage 10ans 0N real BSIaIE. . ... o i 1,903 1,883 1,848
Real estate and real estate JoInt veNIUrES(1) . ... oot 982 371 845
POy I0ANS et e e 564 543 536
Other limited parnershiD INTeresIS . . . .o e e e e 75 57 48
Cash, cash equivalents and short-tarm INvesSImMENtS ... o e e 171 252 279
BT o 206 185 225
1 P 12,739 12,301 12,405
Less IMVESIMENT EXPENSES (1) . o ottt 1,103 1,040 1,218
NEt INVESIMENE INCOME L ot et e et e e e $11,636 $11,261  $11,187

(1) Excludes amounts refated to real estate held-for-sale presented as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS 144,
Net Investment Gains (Losses) .
Net investment gains (losses), including changes in valuation allowances, and related policyholder amounts were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in millions)

FIX B0 AU S . . oo $398) 3IO17) F(645)
EOUY OIS oot e e e 41 224 85
Mortgage 10ans ON 1eal BSIatE . . ... o i (68) (22) ©1)
Real estate and real estate [oint vantures(1) . ... 19 (B) (4)
Other Imited ParnershiD INtErEStS .. o e (84) @ (161)
SAlES Of SIS . oot e e — — 25
VAt ) . oo (134)  (140) 124
BT e 39 (33) (26)
Ot L oL (573  (896) 713)

Amounts alfocated from:
Deferred policy acquUisition COSES .. ..o 31 5) (25)
PartiCIDating CONtTAC S L L e e 40 (7) —
Policyholder dividend Obligation . ... ... 144 157 159
Total net investment Gains (I0SSE8) . . ... ottt $358) $(751) $B79

(1) The amounts presented exclude amounts related to sales of real estate held-for-sale presented as discontinued operations in accordance with
SFAS 144,

(2) The amounts presented include scheduled pericdic setllement payments on derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting under
SFAS 133,

Investment gains and losses are net of related policyholder amounts. The amounts netted against investment gains and losses are () amortization of
DAC to the extent that such amortization results from investment gains and losses; (i) adjustments to participating contractholder accounts when

amounts equal to such investment gains and losses are applied to the contractholder's accounts; and (i) adjustments to the policyholder dividend
obligation resulting from investment gains and losses. This presentation may not be comparable to presentations made by other insurers.
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Net Unrealized Investment Gains
The components of net unrealized investment gains, included in accumulated other comprehensive income, were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in mitlions}
o [ 0710111 S PP $0204 $7,360 $3,097
Uy SECUMIES .. ot 376 57 617
LY 111Y = S O PO (427) (24 71
ONer IMVBSIEO BSSES . v\ttt et e e e e e (33) 16 . 59
JOal . e e e e 8,120 7,408 3,844
Amounts allocated from:
Future policy benefit 0SS reCogntioN . ... vt e e (1,482)  {1,269) (30)
Deferrad policy a0OUISTION COSIS L ottt e e e i e e e e et e e B74) (559) 21
PartiCIPAtNG CONTACIS « . oottt et e e (183) 153) (127)
Policyholder dividend obligation .. ... (2,130 (1,882 (708)
D EITE M OMIE 18X .« it e e e ettt et e e e (1,679)  (1,264) (1,079)
Ot 6,148 (5,127)  (1,965)
Net unrealized INVESIMENT GaINS .« ...t o et e e e e $2972 $2282 $1.879

The changes in net unrealized investment gains were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in miflions}
BalANCE Al JaNUANY 1o $2282 $1,879 $1,175
Unrealized investment gains (10sses) during the Year . ... .. i e e 1,711 3,565 1,365
Unrealized investment gains (losses) relating to:
Future policy benefit gains (I0Ses) reCogNtioN . ... ot e 213 (1,239) 254
Deferred policy 80aUISHION COSIS .\ttt e e (115) (538) (140
ParCIDEING COMTACES . L ettt ettt et e e e e e (30) 26) 6
Policyholder dividend obligation . ... ... (248) {1 174) (323)
DEfermed INCOME IaXES . o oottt (415) (185) (458)
BalanCe 8t DBCaMIEr B Lo e e B2O72  $2,282 $1,879
Net change in unrealized Investment Qains . ... $ 600 $ 403 3 704

Structured Investment Transactions
The Company securitizes high yield debt securlties, investment grade bonds and structured finance securities. The Company has sponsored four
securitizations with a total of approximately $1,431 millicn in financial assets as of December 31, 2003, The Company's beneficial interests in these SPEs
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the related investment income for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 20071 were insignificant.
The Company also invests in structured notes and similar type instruments, which generally provide equity-based returns on debt securities. The
carrying value of such investments was approximately $880 million and $870 milliort at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The related income
recognized was $78 milion, $1 milion and $44 milion for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Variable Interest Entities
As discussed in Note 1, the Company has adopted the provisions of FIN 48 and FIN 46(1). At December 31, 2003, FIN 46() did not require the
Company to consolidate any additional VIES that were not previously consolidated.
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The following table presents the total assets of and maximum exposure 1o loss relating to VIEs for which the Comparny has concluded that (i) it is the
primary beneficiary and which will be consolidated. in the Company’s financial statements beginning March 31, 2004, and (i) it holds significant valuable
interests but it is not the primary beneficiary and which will not be consolidated:

December 31, 2003

Not Primary

Primary Beneficiary(1) Beneficiary
Maximum Maximum
Exposure - Exposure

Total to Total to
Assets(2) Loss(3} Assets(2} Loss(3)
{Doflars in millions)

SPEs:

Asset-backed securitizations and Collateralized debt obligations .. ... $ - $ - $2,400 $20
Non-SPEs: i '

Real estate joint vemtUreS(4) . ... e e 8617 238 42 59
Other Imited DarNErSIDSG) . .o ot e e 29 27 459 10
TOEl e PRI $646  $265  $2901  $89

(1) Had the Company consolidated these VIES at December 31, 2003, the transition adjustments would have been $10 million, net of income tax.

(2) The assets of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations are reflected at fair value as of December 31, 20083, The assets of
the real estate joint ventures and other limited partnerships are reflected at the carrying amoLints at which such assets would have been reflected on
the Company’s balance sheet had the Company consciidated the VIE from the date of its initial Investment in the entity.

(3) The maximum exposure to loss of the asset-backed securitizations and collateralized debt obligations is egual to the carrying amounts of retained
interests., In addition, the Company provides collateral management senvices for certain of these structures for which it collects a management fee.
The maximum exposure 1o loss relating to real estate joint ventures and other limited partnerships is equal 1o the carrying amounts plus any unfunded
commitments, reduced Y amounts guaraniesd by other pariners.

(4) Real estate joint ventures include partnerships and other ventures, which engage in the acguisition, development, management and dispesat of real
estate investments. ' : ’ :

(5) Cther limited partnerships include partnerships established for the purpose of investing in public and private debt and equity securities, as well as
lirmited partnershins established for the purpose of investing in low-income housing that qualifies for federal tax credits.

3. Derivative Financial Instruments

The table below provides a summary of notional amount and fair value of derivative financial instruments held at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002

Current Market Current Market
Notional or Fair Value Notional or Fair Value

Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities
’ {Dollars in millions)

FINaNCIal UIUIES .ot ottt e e e e $1348 3 8 330 % 4 % - % -
IS ralE SWADS . o e e 0944 189 36 3,866 198 126
OO S et 325 5 — 325 9 —
DS o 9,345 29 — 8,040 - —
Financial forwards . ... .. o oo e 1,310 2 3 1,945 - 12
FOMIGN CUITENCY SWADS .« o v v ettt et e et et e ettt e 4,710 9 796 2,871 a2 181
Options ... .. T DU 8,065 7 — 6,472 9 -
Foreign currency forwards . . ..o 895 5 32 54 — 1
Creditdefault swaps ..o PP PP i 815 2 1 e 2 -
Total contractual commitments . .. .. R $34,357 $256  $898  $23,453 $308  $320
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The following is a reconciliation of the notional amounts by derivative type and strategy at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

December 31, 2002 Terminations/ December 31, 2003
Notional Amount Additions Maturities Notional Amount

{Dollars in millions})

BY DERIVATIVE TYPE

FinanCial FUITES .. ..o e $ 4 $2208 $ 864 $ 1,348
IMErest rale SWaDS . . .. o 3,866 8,063 1,985 9,944
FIOOrS . e e 328 — - 325
=0 O 8,040 3,000 1,695 9,345
Financial forwardS. .. ..o ‘ 1,845 1,310 1,845 1,310
FOreign CUmency SWaDS . ...t e e 2,371 2,634 195 4,710
OOt ONS .+ o et 6,472 — 407 6,065
Foreign curmrenCy forwards . .. ... oo e b4 663 22 095
Written covered Calls ... .o o — 1,178 1,178 —
Cradit default SWapS ..o 376 284 45 815
Total contractual CommItMENtS . .o oo $23,453 $19,240 $8,336 $34,357
BY DERIVATIVE STRATEGY
Liabifity NEAGING .« .o oot $ 8,954 $ 5386 $1,952 $12,388
Invested asset NedgiNg . ... ... 5,411 7,295 1,823 10,883
Portfolio hedging. . .« oo s 9,028 2,443 4,539 6,932
Firm commitments and forecasted transactions .. ............. o 60 3,689 22 3,627
Hedging net investments in foreign aperations . ... ... o oL — 527 — 527
Total contractual commitments ............... P $23,453 $19,240 $8,336 $34,357

The following table presents the notional amounts of derivative financial instruments by maturity at December 31, 2003:

Remaining Life

After One After Five
One Year Year Through Years Through After Ten
or Less Five Years Ten Years Years Total
{Dollars in millions}
Financlal futures ............. ..ol S $ 1,348 8 — 3 - $ — 51348
INEETEST FAIE SWADS .« ot et e e e e 242 6,343 1,693 1,666 9,944
FIOOrS o — — 325 — 325
(072101 P 3,150 6,195 — — 9,345
Financial forwards .. .. ..o e 1,310 — — — 1,310
FOraign CUITENCY SWADS « &« e e et e e et et et e e e e 327 1,676 2,271 436 4,710
Options .............. e e e 4,163 1,801 — 1 6,065
Foreign CumenCy fOrwards . ...t e 695 — — — 695
Written covered Calls ... o e e - — — - —
Credit default swaps. .. ... e 189 426 — — 15
Total contractual CommItments .. ... $11,424 $16,541 $4,280 - $2,103 $34,357

The following table presents the notional amounts and fair values of derivatives by type of hedge designation at December 31, 2003 and 2002:

2003 2002
Notional __ FairValue  — yoeiong __ Fairvalue
Amount  Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities
{Dollars in millions)

BY TYPE OF HEDGE

Falrvalue .. e 4027 $27 297 $ 420 § — $ 64
Cash oW . 13,173 59 449 3,520 69 73
Foreign operations 527 - 10 — — —
Non qualifying . ...t e e 16,630 170 142 19513 239 183

Ot e $34,357 $256  $898  $23,453 308  $320

The Company recognized net investment expense of $63 millon and net investment income of $3 million and $3 milion, from the periodic
settlement of interest rate caps and interest rate, foreign currency and credit default swaps that qualify as accounting hedges under SFAS No. 133, as
amended, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized $191 million and $30 million, respectively, in net investment
losses related to qualifying fair value hedging instruments. Accordingly, $159 million and $34 million of net unrealized gains on fair vaiue hedged
investments were recognized in net investment gains and losses during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, There were no
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discontinued fair value hedges during the years ended Decermiber 31, 2003 or 2002. There were no derivatives designated as fair value hedges during
the year ended December 31, 2001.

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the net amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income relating to cash flow hedges
were losses of $417 million and $24 milion, respectively. For the vears ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the market value of cash flow hedges
decreased by $456 million and $145 milion, respectively. During the years ended Decamber 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized other
comprehensive net losses of $387 milion and $142 milion, respectively, relating to the effective portion of cash flow hedges. During the year ended
December 31, 2003, other comprehensive expense of $2 milion was reclassified to net investment income. During the year ended December 31, 2002
other comprehensive losses of $57 milion were reclassified to net investment losses, During the year ended December 31, 2003, insignificant amounts
were recognized In net investment fosses refated to discontinued cash flow hedges. During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, no cash
flow hedges were discontinued. For the vears ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, $8 milion, $1Q milion and $19 milion of other
comprehensive income was reclassified to net investment income, respectively, related to the SFAS 133 transition adjustment.

Approximately $2 million of net investment expense and $40 milion of net losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income at
December 31, 2003 are expected 1o be reclassified during the year ending December 31, 2004 into net investment income and net invastment loss,
respectively, as the derivatives and underlying investments mature or expire according to their original terms,

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized as net investment gains, the scheduled periodic settiement
payments on dervative instruments of $84 milion, $32 milion and $24 million, respectively, and nst investment losses from changes in fair value of
$218 milion and $172 milion and net investment gains of $100 million, respectively, related to derivatives not qualifying as accounting hedges.

The Company uses forward exchange contracts that provide an economic hedge on portions of its net investments in foreign operations against
adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company experienced net unrealized foreign
currency losses of $10 million related to hedges of its net investments in foreign operations. These unrealized fosses were recorded as components of
accumulated other comprehensive income.

4. Insurance

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs
Information regarding VOBA and DAC for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is as follows:

Deferred
Value of Policy
Business Acquisition
Acquired Costs Total
{Dollars in millions)
Balance at December 81, 2000 . ... o $1.674 3 8,044 $10,618
1072 a1 2 177 10t TGPPSO - 2,039 2,039
AU ONS o 124 — 124
Total e 1,798 10,983 12,781
Amortization allocated to:
Net investment GaiNs (J0SSES) . ...ttt e e (15) 40 25
Unrealized investiment gains (0SSES) . . v vttt 8 132 140
BT BB SES « o vt vttt et e e e 126 1,287 1,413
Total AMOrHZatON « . . e e e 119 1,459 1,578
DISPOSHIONS AN Ot Lot e e e e (1) (35) (36)
Balance at December 81, 20071 . e s 1,678 9,489 11,187
CaDAl At NS .t e e 2,340 2,340
ACQUISTTIONS o i 369 — 369
' Tl 2,047 11,828 13,876
Amortization allocated to:
Net INVESTMENT GaINS (I0SS8S) .ttt e e 16 1) 5
Unrealized-investment gains (0888S) .. ..o v v vn O 154 384 538
AR, BB IS - . ot ittt ettt e e e 132 1,607 1,639
Total amortization . ... 302 1,880 2,182
DISpOSHIONS AN BT . .o (6) 39 33
Balance at December 31, 2002 . ... . 1,739 9,988 11,727 -
CaDalZAtONS e — 2,792 2,792
AU NS Lo 40 218 258
O B e 1,779 12,988 14,777
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Deferred
Value of Policy
Business Acquisition
Acquired Costs Total

(Dollars in millions)

Amortization allocated to:

Net investment Gains (I08SE8S) .« ..ttt e {7 (24) 31)
Unrealized investmeant gaing (I0SSES) . .« oot e i e e e e (31) 146 118
BT BXIDENSES « L o ottt ettt ettt e 162 1,656 1,818
Total AMOMZAION .« . e 124 1,778 1,902
DISpOSIioNs AnNd OtNer .. .o o 2 66 68
Balance at Dacember 31, 2003 .. ..o $1,657 $11,286 $12,043

The estimated future amortization expense allocated to other expenses for VOBA is $135 million in 2004, $128 million in 2005, $122 milion in 2008,
$117 million in 2007 and $114 milion in 2008.

Amortization of VOBA and DAC is allocated to () investment gains and losses to provide consolidated statement of income information regarding the
impact of such gains and losses on the amount of the amortization, (i) unrealized investment gains and losses 1o provide information regarding the
amount that would have been amortized if such gains and i0sses had been recognized, and (i) other expenses 10 provide amounts related 1o the gross
margins or profits originating from transactions other than investment gains and losses.

Investment gains and losses related to certain products have a direct impact on the amortization of VOBA and DAC. Presenting investment gains
and losses net of related amortization of VOBA and DAC provides information useful in evaluating the operating performance of the Cornpany. This
presentation may not be comparable to presentations made by other insurers.

Future Policy Benefits and Policyholder Account Balances

Future policy benefit labilities for participating traditional life iInsurance policies are equal 1o the aggregate of () net level premium reserves for death
and endowment policy benefits (calculated based upon the nonforfeiture interest rate, ranging from 3% to 11%, and mortality rates guaranteed in
calculating the cash surrender values described in such contracts), (i) the liability for terminal dividends, and (iii) premium deficiency reserves, which are
established when the liabilties for future policy benefits plus the present value of expected future gross premiums are insufficient to provide for expected
future policy benefits and expenses after DAC is written off.

Future policy benefit liabilities for traditional annuities are equal to accumulated contractholder fund balances during the accumulation period and the
present value of expected future payments after annuitization. Interest rates used in establishing such liabilities range from 2% to 11%. Future policy
benefit liabilities for non-medical health insurance are calculated using the net level premium method and assumptions as to future morbidity, withdrawals
and interest, which provide a margin for adverse deviation..Interest rates used in establishing such liabilities range from 3% to 11%. Future policy benefit
liabilities for disabled lives are estimated using the present value of benefits method and experience assumptions as to claim terminations, expensas and
interest. Interest rates used in establishing such liabilites range from 3% t© 11%.

Policyholder account balances for universal life and investment-type contracts are egual to the policy account values, which consist of an
accumulation of gross premium payments plus credited interest, ranging from 1% to 13%, less expenses, mortality charges, and withdrawals.

The liabllity for unpaid claims and claim expenses for property and casualty insurance represents the amount estimated for claims that have besn
reported but not settled and claims incurred but not reported. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated based upon the Company's historical experience
and other actuarial assumptions that consider the effects of current developments, anticipated trends and risk management programs, reduced for
anticipated salvage and subrogation. Revisions of these estimates are included in operations in the year such refinements are made.

Separate Accounts

Separate accounts include two categories of account types: non-guaranteed separate accounts totaling $59,278 million and $44,470 miflion at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for which the policyholder assumes the invesiment risk, and guaranteed separate accounts totaling
$16,478 milion and $15,223 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for which the Company contractually guarantees elther a minimum
return or account value to the policyholder.

Fees charged to the separate accounts by the Company (including mortality charges, policy administration fees and surrender charges) are reflected
in the Company's revenues as universal life and investment-type product policy fees and totaled $626 million, $642 milion and-$559 million for the vears
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Guaranteed separate accounts consisted primarily of Met Managed Guaranteed Interest
Contracts and participating close-out contracts., The average interest rates credited on thase contracts were 4.5% and 4.8% at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The assets that support these liabilities were comprised of $13,513 million and $12,984 million in fixed maturities at December 31,
2008 and 2002, respectively.

5. Reinsurance

The Company's life insurance operations participate in reinsurance activities in order to limit losses, minimize exposure 1o large risks, and to provide
additional capacity for future growth. Tne Company currently reinsures up to 80% of the mortality risk for all new individual life insurance policies that it
writes through its various franchises. This practice was initiated by different franchises for different products starting at various points in time between
1992 and 2000. Risks in excess of $25 million on single life policies and $30 milion on survivorship policies are 100% coinsured. In addition, in 1998, the
Company reinsured substantially all of the mortality risk on its universal life policies issued since 1983, RGA retains a maximum of $6 million of coverage
per individual life with respect to its assumed reinsurance business, The Company reinsures its business through a diversified group of reinsurers.
Placement of reinsurance is done primarily on an automatic basis and also on a facuitative basis for risks of specific characteristics. The Company is
contingently liable with respect 1o ceded reinsurance should any reinsurer be unable to meet its obligations under these agreements.

In addition to reinsuring mortality risk, the Company reinsures other risks and specific coverages. The Company routinely reinsures certain classes of
risks in order to limit its exposure 1o particular travel, avocation and lifestyle hazards. The Company has exposure to catastrophes, which are an inherent
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risk of the property and casualty business and could contribute to significant fluctuations in the Company’s results of operations. The Company uses
excess of loss and quota share reinsurance arrangements to fimit its maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposure to larger
risks.

The Company has also protected itself through the purchase of combination risk coverage. This reinsurance coverage pools risks from several lines
of business and includes individual and group life claims in excess of $2 million per policy, as well as excess property and casualty losses, among others,

See Note 12 for information regarding certain excess of loss reinsurance agreements providing coverage for risks associated primarily with sales
practices claims.

The amounts in the consolidated statements of income are presented net of reinsurance ceded. The effects of reinsurance were as foliows:

' Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in millions)
Do e =211 L P $19,396 $18,439 $16,332
REINSUIANCE BSSUMET .« . . e e e 3,708 2,993 2,907
REINSUrANCE CRUB ...ttt e (2,429) (2,355) (2,027)
NBE DIBIMIUMIS ottt e e e e e e $20,673 $19,077 $17,212
Reinsurance recoveries netted against policynolder benefits ................ . ... PO $ 2417 $ 2,886 $ 2255

Reinsurance recoverables, included in premiums and other receivables, were $4,014 million and $3,918 million at December 31, 2008 and 2002,
respectively, including $1,341 milion and $1,348 million, respectively, relating to reinsurance of long-term guaranteed interest contracts and structured
settlement lump sum contracts accounted for as a financing transaction. Reinsurance and ceded commissions payables, included in other liabllities,
were $106 milion and $79 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectivaly.

The following table providies an analysis of the activity in the liability for benefits relating to property and casualty, group accident and non-medical
health policies and contracts:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in millions}
BalanCe @t JANUAINY 1 ..o v $ 4885 $ 4597 $ 4,226
Reinsurance recoverables . ... ... P (498) (457) (410)
Net DalanCe al JanUary 1 @ . 4,387 4,140 3,816
"Incurred related to:

U YA ottt et e e e 4,483 4,219 4182
PHIOr VBAIS o vttt ettt et 45 81) (B4)

4,528 4,138 4,008

Paid related to:

CUITBNT YBA o e e et ettt e e e e e e e (2,678) (2,559) (2,538)
POl OIS et (1,352) (1,332) (1,235)
(4,028) (3,891) (3,774)

Net Balance at December Bl ... 4,887 4,387 4,140
Add: Reinsurance raéCoveraDIES ... v it e e 525 498 457
Balance &t DeCemMber 3. . $ 5412 $ 48385 § 45697

6. Closed Block

On the date of demutualization, Metropolitan Life established a closed block for the benefit of holders of certain individual life insurance policies of
Metropolitan Life. Assets have been allocated to the closed block in an amount that has been determined to produce cash flows which, together with
anticipated revenues from the policies included in the closed block, are reasonably expecied to be sufficient to support obligations and ligbilities relating
to these policies, including, but not limited to, provisions for the payment of claims and certain expenses and taxes, and to provide for the continuation of
policyholder dividend scales in effect for 1999, if the experience underlying such dividend scales continues, and for appropriate adjustmerits in such
scales if the experience changes. At least annually, the Company compares actual and projected experience against the experience assumed in the
then-current dividend scales: Dividend scales are adjusted periodically to give effect 1o changes in experience.

The closed block assets, the cash flows generated by the closed biock assets and the anticipated revenues from the policies in the closed block will
benefit only the holders of the policies in the closed block. To the extent that, over time, cash flows from the assets allocated to the closed block and
claims and other experience related to the closed block are, in the aggregate, more or less favorable than what was assumed when the closed block was
established, total dividends paid to closed block policyholders in the future may be greater than or less than the total dividends that would have besn paid
to these policyholders if the policyholder dividend scales in effect for 1999 had been continued. Any cash flows in excess of amounts assumed will be
available for distrioution over time to closed block policyholders and will not be available to stocknolders. If the closed block has insufiicient funds to make
guaranteed policy benefit payments, such payments will be made from assets outside of the closed block. The closed block will continue in effect as
long as any policy in the closed block remains in-force. The expected life of the closed block is over 100 years.

The Company uses the same accounting principles 1o account for the participating policies included in the closed block as it used prior to the date
of demutualizaticn. However, the Company establishes a policyholder dividend obligation for eamings that will be paid to policyholders as additional
dividends as described below. The excess of closed biock liabilities over closed block assets at the effective date of the demutualization (adjusted to
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eliminate the impact of related amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income) represents the estimated maximum future earnings from the
closed block expected to result from operations attributed to the closed block after income taxes. Earnings of the closed block are recognized in income
over the period the policies and contracts in the closed block remain in-force. Management believes that over time the actual cumulative eamings of the
closed block will approximately equal the expected cumulative earnings due to the effect of dividend changes. If, over the period the closed block
remains in existence, the actual cumulative earnings of the closed block s greater than the expected cumulative eamings of the closed block, the
Company will pay the excess of the actual cumulative earnings of the closed block over the expected cumulative eamings to closed block policyholders
as additional policynolder dividends unless offset by future unfavorable experience of the closed block and, accordingly, will recognize only the expected
cumulative earnings in income with the excess recorded as a policyholder dividend obligation. If over such periad, the actual cumulative eamings of the
closed block is less than the expected cumulative earnings of the closed block, the Company will recognize only the actual earmnings in income. However,
the Company may change policyholder dividend scales in the future, which would be intended 1o increase future actual eamings untit the actual
cumulative eamings equal the expected cumulative eamings.
Closed block liabilities and assets designated to the closed block are as follows:
December 31,
T2008 2002
" (Doliars in millions)

CLOSED BLOCK LIABILITIES

FUture polCY DENefS ... $41,028  $41,207
Other pOlICYNOIAEr TUNTS .« .o e e e e 260 279
Policyholder diviAends Dayable ... .. e e 682 718
Policyholder dividend obligation . ... ..o 2,130 1,882
Payables under securities loaned ransactions ... ... i 6,418 4,851
Other B S . oo oot e e e 180 433
Jotal closed Block abilities ... . . .o e 51,698 48,371
ASSETS DESIGNATED TO THE CLOSED BLOCK
Investments:
Fixed maturities available-for-sale, at fair value {amortized cost: $30,381 and $28,338, respectively) .... 32,348 29,081
Equity securities, at fair value (cost: $217 and $236, respectively) . . ... o 250 218
Mortgage 10ans on real 8SEIE . ... ot 7,431 7,032
POl Y 08NS o oot 4,036 3,988
e T Y= (<O 123 24
e INVESIE A0S . . . o ottt ettt e e e e e 108 604
Ot VSIS . o o oo e 44,296 41,847
Cash and cash eqUIVAIBNTS . ..o oo 531 435
ACCrUed INVESIMENMT INCOME . ¢ . o o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 527 540
Defamed INCOME TBXES « .\ e i et et e e e e e e 1,043 1,151
Premiums and Other reCeivabIES . . .. oo e 164 130
Total assets designated to the closed block ... oL e 46,501 44,103
Excess of closed block liabilities over assets designated to to the closed block ....................... 50837 5,268
Amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive 10ss:
Net unrealized investment gains net of deferred income tax of 730 and $577, respectively .. ......... 1,270 1,047
Unrealized derivative gains (losses), net of deferred income tax {benefit) expense of $(28) and $7,
OBV L ot e e (48} 13
Allocated to policyholder dividend cbligation, net of deferred income tax benefit of ($778) and ($668),
PO VI oot e e (1,352) (1,214)
(130) (154)
Maximum future earnings to be recognized from closed block assets and llabities . . ... ..o oot $ 4907 § 5114

Information regarding the policyholder dividend obligation is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

) (Dollars in millions)
Balance at Beginning Of ¥oar . ..ot e e e e $1.882 § 708 3385
Impact on net income before amounts allocated from palicyholder dividend obligation ............. ... ... 144 157 158
Nt INVESIMENT GaINS (0888 « o i e e et e e e (144) (157)  (159)
Change in unrealized investment and dervative gains ... .o 248 1,174 323
Balance at end Of Year. . .. .o $2,130  $1,882 $708
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Closed block revenues and expenses were as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in millions}

REVENUES
118« 2 = A $3,365 $3,551 $3,658
Net investment INCOmMe and OtNEr TBVBNUBS . . .. ..ottt e e e e e 2,654 2,568 2,547
Net investment gains (iosses) (net of amounts allocated from the policyholder dividend obligation of ($144),
(B157) and (B159), reSPCHVEY) .\ttt 16 168 (12)
Tt TEVENUES . oottt ettt e e e e 5835 6,287 6,193
EXPENSES
Policynolder benefits and Claims .. ... i e 3,660 3,770 3.862
Policynolder diVIBBNAS . . .. .. o e 1,509 1,573 1,544
Change in policyholder dividend obligation {(excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains
(losses) of ($144), ($157) and (3159), respaCtival) . e 144 157 159
BT BXDBNSES - o ottt ittt e e 207 310 352
Ot BXDBNSES . . vt 5,610 5810 5,917
Revenues net of expenses DefOre INCOME taXES . . ... o i e e e 325 477 278
O tBXE S « o ittt et e e e 118 173 97
Revenues net of expenses and NComME 18XES . .. . vttt et e $ 207 $ 304 $ 179

The change in maximum future eamings of the closed block is as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in mitlions)
BalaNCE Al BNa Of YA . ottt e $4,907 $5,114 $5333
Less:
Reallocation of assets. ... .o P — 85 -
Balance at beginning Of Year .. ..o 5114 5,333 55612
Change QUING VB . . . ettt et e e e e e e $ (207) 3B (B04) $ (179)

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the allocation of assets 10 the closed block was revised to appropriately classify assets in accordance
with the plan of demutualization. The reallocation of assets had no impact on consolidated assets or liabilities.

Metropolitan Life charges the closed block with federal income taxes, state and local premium taxes, and other additive state or local taxes, as well
as investment management expenses relating 1o the closed block as provided in the plan of demutualization. Metropolitan Life also charges the closed
block for expenses of maintaining the policies included in the closed block.

Many of the derivative instrument strategies used by the Company are also used for the closed block. The table below provides a summary of the
notional amount and fair value of derivatives by hedge accounting classification at:

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2002
Notionat ~___ FairValue  — \ouong _ Fairvalue
Amount Assets Liabilities Amount Assets Liabilities

(Dollar in millions)

By Type of Hedge :
Bl VIS e 3 6 3 - $1 $ - $— $—

Cash W L 473 — 80 128 2 11
NON QUAITYING & e e e Q0 — 12 258 32 _ 2
TOW © « e e $569 $ — 993 $386  $34 $13

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the closed block recognized net investment expenses of $2 milion and net
investment income of $1 milion and $1 million, respectively, from the periodic settlerment of interest rate caps and interest rate, foreign currency and
credit default swaps that qualify as accounting hedges under SFAS 133, as amended.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the closed block recognized $1 million in net investment losses related to qualifying fair value hedges.
Accordingly, $t milion of unrealized gains on fair value hedged investments was recognized in net investment losses during the year ended
December 31, 2003. There were no fair value hedges during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. There were no discontinued fair value
hedges during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,

For the years ended Decernioer 31, 2003 and 2002, the net amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income relating to cash flow hedges
were losses of $75 milion and gains of $21 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the market value of cash flow
hedges decreased by $108 milion and increased by $4 million, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the closed block
recognized other comprehensive net losses of $93 million and other comprehensive net gains of $4 million, respectively, relating to the effective portion
of cash flow hedges. During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, no cash flow hedges were discontinued. For the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, $3 milion and $4 milion of other comprehensive income was reclassified to net investment income, respectively, related
to the SFAS 133 transition adjustment. Amounts reclassified for the transition adjustment for the year ended December 31, 2001 were insignificant.
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Approximately $5 million of net losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2003 are expected to be reclassified
during the year ending December 31, 2004 into net investment 10sses as the derivatives and underlying investments mature or expire according to their
original terms. :

For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, scheduled perfodic settlernent payments on derivative instruments recognized as net
investment gains and losses were immaterial. Nat investment losses from changes in fair value of $18 milion and $11 milion and gains of $5 million
related to derivatives not qualifying as accounting hedges were recognized for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively,

7. Debt
Debt consisted of the following:

December 31,

2003 2002

{Dollars in millions}
Senior notes, interest rates ranging from 3.91% to 7.25%, maturity dates ranging from 2006 to 2033 ... ... 34,256 32,539
Surplus notes, interest rates ranging from 7.00% to 7.88%, maturity dates ranging from 2008 to 2025 ... .. 940 1,632
Fixed rate notes, interest rates ranging from 1.68% to 12.00%, maturity dates ranging from 2005 to 2008 . . 110 83
Capital 18888 ODIGAIONS . . . e e 74 21
Other notes with vanying interest rales .. ... o 323 150
Total IoNg-tarm el 5,703 4,425
TOtal ShOM-EIMN ABDL. . L o e e e ... 3p42 1,161
1= PO $9,345 $5,686

The Company maintains committed and unsecured credit facilites aggregating $2,478 milion (31,000 million expiring in 2004, $1,303 million
expiring in 2005 and $175 million expiring in 2008). If these facifities were drawn upon, they would tear interest at rates stated in the agreements. The
facilities are primarily used for general corporate purposes and as back-up lines of credit for the borrowers’ commercial paper program. At December 31,
2003, the Company had drawn approximately $49 million under the facilities expiring in 2005 at interest rates ranging from 4.08% to 5.48% and
approximately another $50 million under the facllity expiring in 2006 at an Interest rate of 1.69%. In April 2003, the Company replaced an expiring
$1 bilion five-year credit faciiity with a $1 billion 364-day credit facility and the Holding Company was added as a borrower. In May 2003, the Company
replaced an expiring $140 million thres-year credit faclity, with a $175 million three-year credit facility which expires in 2006. At December 31, 2003, the
Company had approximately $828 million in letters of credit from various banks.

Payments of interest and principal on the surplus notes, subordinated to all other indebtedness, may be made only with the prior approval of the
insurance department of the state of domicile. On November 1, 2003, the Company redeemed the $300 million of 7.45% surplus notes outstanding
scheduled to mature on November 1, 2023 at a redemption price of $311 million.

The aggregate maturities of long-term dabt for the Company are $134 miflion in 2004, $1,436 million in 2005, $862 milion in 2006, $38 milion in
2007, $44 million in 2008 and $3,388 milion thereafter.

Short-term debt of the Company consisted of commercial paper with a weighted average interest rate of 1.1% and a weighted average maturity of
31 days at December 31, 2003, Short-term debt of the Company consisted of commercial paper with a weighted average interest rate of 1.5% and a
weighted average maturity of 74 days at December 31, 2002, The Company also has other collateralized borrowings with a weighted average coupon
rate of 5.07% and a weighted average maturity of 30 days at December 31, 2003. Such securities had a weighted average coupon rate of 5.83% and a
weighted average maturity of 34 days at December 31, 2002.

Interest expense related o the Company's indebtedness includad in other expanses was $420 million, $288 milion and $252 milion for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

8. Shares Subject to Mandatory Redemption and Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Securities of Subsidiary Trusts

MetLife Capital Trust | In connection with Metlife, Inc.’s, initial public offering in April 2000, the Holding Company and MetLife Capital Trust |
(the "Trust"} issued equity security units (the "units”}), Each unit originally consisted of () a contract to purchase, for 350, shares of the Holding Company's
common stock {the “purchase contracts”) on May 15, 2003; and (i) a capital security of the Trust, with a stated liguidation amount of $50.

In accordance with the terms of the units, the Trust was dissolved on February 5, 2003, and $1,0068 milion aggregate principal amount of
8.00% debentures of the Holding Company (the "MetLife debentures”), the sole assets of the Trust, were distributed to the owners of the Trust's capital
securities in exchange for their capital securities. The MetLife debentures were remarketed on behalf of the debenture owners on February 12, 2003 and
the Interest rate on the Metlife debentures was reset as of February 15, 2003 to 3.911% per annum for a vield to maturity of 2.876%. As a result of the
ramarketing, the debenture owners received $21 miion (80.03 per diluted common share) in excess of the carrying value of the capital securities. This
excess was recorded by the Company as a charge to additional paid-in capital and, for the purpose of calculating earnings per share, is subtracted from
net income to arrive at net income available to common shareholders.

On May 15, 2003, the purchase contracts assoclated with the units were settled. In exchange for $1,006 million, the Company issued 2.97 shares
of MetLife, Inc. common stock per purchase contract, or approximately 59.8 million shares of treasury stock. The excess of the Company's cost of the
treasury stock (§1,662 miflion) over the contract price of the stock issued 1o the purchase contract holders ($1,008 million) was $656 miffion, which was
recorded as a direct reduction to retained eamings.

Interest expense on the capital securities is included in other expenses and was $10 milion, $81 million and $81 milion for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

GenAmerica Capital . In June 1997, GenAmerica Corporation (“GenAmerica”) issued $125 million of 8.525% capital securities through a wholly-
owned subsidiary trust, GenAmerica Capital . GenAmerica has fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a subordinated basis, the obligation of the trust
under the capital securities and Is obligated to mandatorily redeem the securities on June 30, 2027. GenAmerica may prepay the securities any time after
June 30, 2007. Capital securities outstanding were $119 milion, net of unamortized discounts of $6 milion, at both December 31, 2003 and 2002.
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Interest expense on these instruments is included in other expenses and was $11 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001,

RGA Capital Trust 1. In December 2001, a majority-owned subsidiary of the Company, Reinsurance Group of America Incorporated ('RGA'™,
through Its wholly-owned trust, RGA Capital Trust | (the "Trust”), issued 4,500,000 Preferred iIncome Equity Redesmable Securities (“PIERS”) Units. Each
PIERS unit consists of (i) a preferred security issued by the Trust, having a stated liquidation amount of $50 per unit, representing an undivided beneficial
ownership interest in the assets of the Trust, which consist solely of junior subordinated debentures issued by RGA which have a principal amount at
maturity of $50 and a stated maturity of March 18, 2051, and (i) a warrant to purchase, at any time prior to December 15, 2050, 1.2508 shares of RGA
stock at an exercise price of $50. The fair market value of the warrant on the issuance date was $14.87 and is detachable from the preferred security.
RGA fully and unconditionally guarantees, on a subordinated basls, the obligations of the Trust under the preferred securities. The preferred securities and
subordinated debentures were issued at a discount (original issue discount) to the face or liquidation value of $14.87 per security. The securities wil
accrete 1o their $50 face/liquidation value over the life of the security on a level vield basis. The weighted average effective interest rate on the preferred
securities and the subordinated debentures is 8.25% per annum. Capital securities outstanding 'were $158 million, net of unamortized discount of
$67 million, at both December 31, 2003 and 2002.

9. September 11, 2001 Tragedies

On September 11, 2001, terrorist attacks occurred in New York, Washington, D.C. and Pennsylvania (the "tragedies”) triggering a significant loss of
fife and property, which had an adverse impact on certain of the Company's businesses. The Company's original estimate of the total insurance losses
related to the tragedies, which was recorded in the third quarter of 2001, was $208 million, net of Income taxes of $117 milion. As of December 31,
2003 and 2002, the Company's remaining liability for unpaid and future claims associated with the tragedies was $9 million and $47 million, respectively,
principally refated to disability coverages. This estimate has been and will continue to be subject to revision in subsegquent periods, as claims are received
from Insureds and processed. Any revision to the estimate of losses in subseguent periods will affect net income in such periods.

10. Business Realignment Initiatives

During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company implemented several business realignment initiatives, which resulted from a strategic review of
operations and an ongoing commitment to reduce expenses. The impact of these actions on a segment basis were charges of $399 million in
Institutional, $97 million in Individual and $3 million in Auto & Home. The liability at Decernber 31, 2003 and 2002 was $27 million and $40 milion, in the
Institutional segment and $9 million and $18 million, in the Individual segment, respectively. The remaining liability is due to certain contractual obligations.

11. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for continuing operations was as foliows:
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

{Dollars in millions}

Current; . .
10 1| I P S $363 $803  $(B7)
St BNA 100! . .ot 22 (7 (4)
O IO . . e e 47 31 15
432 817 (56)
Deferred:
FoOeral . o 240 (332) 247
State and 10Cal . . ..o 27 16 12
[0 o (12) 1 i
255 (315) 260
PrOVISION Or NGOME TS . vt ettt et e e et e e e e e e $687 $502 3204

Reconciliations of the income tex provision at the U.S. statutory rate 1o the provision for income taxes as reported for continuing operations weare as
follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in millions)

Tax provision at U.S, statutory rate. ......... . P $920 3572 $200
Tax effect of:

Tax exempt INVESIMEBNT NCOME .« . . o oottt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (118) (87) (82)

State and 10Cal INCOME taXES . . ...ttt 44 20 6

Foreign operations net of foreign income taxes ... e 81 1) 4

PO YA fBXES L e e (26) 7 38

SalES Of DUSINES SO . L i — — 5

OHher, NBL e e _ 52 _ 5 33

POV oM fOr MO (B . . o ottt et e e $687 $502 $204

Metlife, Inc. F-31




METLIFE, INC. ‘
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Deferred income taxes represent the tax effect of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and ligbllities. Net deferred income tax
assets and liabilities consisted of the following:
December 31,
2003 2002
(Doltars in millions)

Deferred income tax assets:

Policyholder liabilities and reCeivables . . ... . e $3,704 $3,845
Net Operating 10SSES . . . oo oo e N 352 322
Litigation related . ... ool O P 72 99
INMANGIDIE 18X @SSET .« . . o oo e 120 199
L6017 268 386
4,518 4,851
Less: Valualion allowante . .. ..o o e 32 84
4,484 4,767

Deferred income tax fiabilities:
L1 1= N 1,343 1,681
Deferred policy aCOUISIION COSIS . . . .ot e e e e 3,595 3,307
Employes Denefits .. ..o o R, 131 55
Net unrealized INVeSIMENt GaINS . .. .o e e e e 1,679 1,264
BT e e e 135 85
6,883 6,392
Net deferred InCome tax llability . . ... e e e $(2,399) $(1,625)

Domestic net operating loss carryforwards amount to $828 million at Decembber 31, 2003 and will expire beginning in 2013. Foreign net operating
loss carryforwards amount to $241 million at December 31, 2003 and were generated in various foreign countries with expiration periods of five years to
infinity.

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance refated to tax benefits of certain foreign net operating loss camyforwards. The valuation allowance
reflects management's assessment, based on available information, that it is more likely than not that the deferred incame tax asset for certain foreign net
operating loss caryforwards will not be realized. The tax benefit will be recognized when management believes that it is more likely than not that these
deferred income tax assets are realizable. In 2003, the Company recorded a tax benefit for the reduction of the deferred tax valuation aflowance related to
certain foreign net operating loss carmyforwards. The 20083 tax provision also includes an adjustment revising the estimate of income taxes for 2002.

The Intermal Revenue Service has audited the Company for the years through and including 1996. The Company is being audited for the years
1997, 1998 and 1999, The Company believes that ahy adjustments that might be required for open years will not have a material effect on its
consolidated financial statements.

12. Commitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

Litigation

Sales Practices Claims

Over the past several years, Metropolitan Life, New England Mutual Life insurance Company (“New England Mutual”) and General American Life
insurance Company (“General American’) have faced numerous claims, including class action lawsuits, alleging improper marketing and sales of
individual fife insurance policies or annuities. These lawsuits are generally referred 10 as “sales practices claims.”

In December 19989, a federal court approved a settlament resolving sales practices claims on behalf of a class of owners of permanent life insurance
palicies and annuity contracts or certificates issued pursuant to individual sales in the United States by Metropolitan Life, Metropolitan Insurance and
Annuity Company or Metropolitan Tower Life Insurance Company bstween January 1, 1982 and December 31, 1997. The class includes owners of
approximately six milion in-force or terminated insurance policies and approximately one million in-force or terminated annuity contracts or certificates.

Similar sales practices class actions against New England Mutual, with which Metropolitan Life merged in 1996, and General American, which was
acquired in 2000, have been settled. In October 2000, a federal court approved a settlernent resolving sales practices claims on behalf of a class of
owners of permanent life insurance policies issued by New England Mutual baetween January 1, 1983 through August 31, 1996. The class includes
owners of approximately 600,000 in-force or terminated policies. A federal court has approved a settlerment resolving sales practices claims on behalf of
a class of owners of permanent life insurance policies issued by General American between January 1, 1882 through December 31, 1996. An appellate
court has affired the order approving the settlement. The class includes owners of approximately 250,000 in-force or terminated policies.

Certain class members have opted out of the class action seftlements noted above and have brought or continued non-class action sales practices
lawsuits. In addition, other sales practices lawsuits have been brought. As of December 31, 2003, there are approximately 366 sales practices lawsuits
pending against Metropolitan Life, approximately 40 sales practices lawsuits pending against New England Mutual and approximately 25 sales practices
lawsuits pending against General American. Metropolitan Life, New England Mutual and General American continue to defend themselves vigorously
against these lawsults. Some individual sales practices claims have been resolved through settlement, won by dispositive motions, or, in a few instances,
have gone to trial, Maost of the current cases seek substantial dameges, including in some cases punitive and treble damages and attomeys' fees.
Additional litigation relating to the Company’s marketing and sales of individual life insurance may be commenced in the future.

The Metropolitan Life class action settlement did not resolve two putative class actions involving sales practices claims filed against Metropalitan Life
in Canada, and these actions remain pending.
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The Company believes adequate provision has been made in its consolidated financial statements for all probable and reasonably estimable losses
for sales practices claims against Metropolitan Life, New England Mutual and General American.

Regulatory authorities in a small number of states have had investigations or inquiries relating to Metropolitan Life’s, New England Mutual's or General
American’s sales of individual life insurance policies or annuities. Over the past several years, these and a number of investigations by other regulatory
authorities were resolved for monetary payments and certain other relief. The Company may continue to resolve investigations in a similar manner.

Asbestos-Related Clai ‘

Metropolitan Life is also a defendam in thousands of lawsuits seeking compensatory and punitive damages for personal injuries allegedly caused by
exposure to asbestos or asbestos-containing products. Metropolitan Life has never engaged in the business of manufacturing, producing, distributing or
sefling asbestos or asbestos-containing products nor has Metropolitan Life issued liability or workers’ compensation insurance to companies in the
business of manufacturing, producing, distributing or sélling asbestos or asbestos-containing products. Rather, these lawsLits have principally been
based upon allegations relating to certain research, publication and other activities of one-or more of Metropolitan Life's employees during the period from
the 1920's through approximately the 1850's and have alleged that Metropolitan Life leamed or should have leamed of certain health risks posed by
asbestos and, among other things, improperly publicized or falled to disclose those health risks. Metropolitan Life believes that it should not have legal
liability in such cases.

Legal theories asserted against Metropolitan Life have included negligence, intentional tort claims and conspiracy claims conceming the health risks
associated with asbestos. Although Metropolitan Life believes it has meritorious defenses to these claims, and has not suffered any adverse monetary
judgments in respect of these claims, due to the risks and expenses of Itigation, aimost all past cases have been resolved by settlements. Metropolitan
Life's defenses (beyond denial of certain factual allegations) to plaintiffs’ claims include that: (i) Metropolitan Life owed no duty to the plaintifis — it had no
special relationship with the plaintifis and did not manufacture, produce, distribute or sell the asbestos products that allegedly injured plaintiffs; (if} plaintiffs
cannot demonstrate justifiable detrimental reliance; and (iil) plaintifis cannot demonstrate proximate causation. In defending asbestos cases, Metropolitan
Life selects various strategies depending upon the jurisdictions in which such cases are brought and other factors which, in Metropolitan Life's-judgment,
best protect Metropolitan Life's interests. Strategies include seeking to settle or compromise claims, motions challenging the legal or factual basis for
such claims or defending on the merits at trial. In 2002 and 2003, trial courts in California, Utah and Georgia granted motions dismissing claims against
Metropolitan Life on some or all of the above grounds. Other courts have denied mations brought by Metropolitan Life to dismiss cases without the
necassity of trial. There can be no assurance that Metropolitan Life will receive favorable decisions on motions in the future. Metropolitan Life intends to
continue to exercise its best judgment regarding settlement or defense of such cases, including when trials of these cases are appropriate.

The following table sets forth the total number of asbestos personal injury claims pending against Metropolitan Life as of the dates indicated, the
nurmiber of new claims during the years ended on those dates and the total setiiement payments made to resolve asbestos personal injury claims during
those years:

At or for the Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

) (Dollars in millions)
Asbestos personal injury claims at year end (approXimate) .. ..o 111,700 106,500 89,000
Number of new claims during the year (@oProXimate) ... 60,300 66,000 59,500
Settiement payments during the year (1) ... ... ... B, N $ . 842 3 954 $ <07

(1) Settlement payments represent payments made by Metr0po\'itam Life during the year in connection with setﬂements made in that year and in prior
_years. Amounts do not include Metropolitan Life's attorneys’ fees and expenses and do not reflect amounts received from insurance carriers.

The Company believes adequate provision has been made In its consolidated financial statements for all probable and reasonably estimable fosses
for asbestos-related claims. The ability of Metropolitan Life to estimate its ultimate asbestos exposure is subject to considerable uncertainty due to
numerous factors. Tre availabiity of data is fimited and it is difficult to predict with any certainty numerous variables that can affect liability estimates,
including the number of future claims, the cost to fresolve claims, the disease mix and severity of disease, the jurisdiction of claims filed, tort reform efforts
and the impact of any possible future adverse verdicts and their amounts.

Recent bankruptcies of other companies involved in asbestos litigation, as well as advertising by plaintiffs’ asbestos lawyers, may result in an
increase in the number of claims and the cost of resolving claims, as well as the number of trials and possible adverse verdicts Metropalitan Life may
experience. Plaintiffs are seeking additional funds from defendants, including Metropolitan Life, in light of such recent bankruptcies by certain other
defendants. In addition, publicity regarding tegislative reform efforts may result in an increase in the number of claims.

Metropolitan Life will continue to study its claims experience, review external literature regarding asbestos claims experience in the United States and
consider numerous variables that can affect its asbestos liability exposure, m_cludmg bankruptcies of other companies involved in asbestos litigation and
legislative and judicial developments, to identify trends and to assess their impact-on the recorded asbestds liabitity.

The number of asbestos cases that may be brought or the aggregate amount of any liability that Metropolitan Life may uttimately incur is uncertain.
Accordingly, it Is reasonably possitle that the Company's total exposure to asbestos claims may be greater than the liability recorded by the Company in
its consolidated financial statements and that future charges to income may be necessary. While the potential future charges could be materiat in
particular quarterly or annual periods in which they are recorded, based on information currently known by management, it does not believe any such
charges are likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, Metropolitan Life analyzed its claims experience and reviewed external publications:and numerous variables to
identify trends and assessed their impact on its recorded asbestos liability. Certain publications suggested a trend towards more asbestos-related claims
and a greater awareness of asbestos litigation generally by potential plaintiffs and plaintiffs’ lawyers. Plaintiffs’ lawyers continue to advertise heavily with
respect to asbestos litigation. Bankruptcies and reorganizations of other defendants. in asbestos litigation may increase the pressures on remaining
defendants, including Metropolitan Life. Through the first nine months of 2002, the number of new claims received by Metropolitan Life was lower than
those received during the comparable 2001 period. However, the number of new claims received by Metropolitan Life during the fourth quarter of 2002
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was significantly higher than those received in the prior year quarter, resulting in more new claims being received by Metropclitan Life in 2002 than in
2001. Factors considered also included expected trends in filing cases, the dates of initial exposure of plaintiffs to asbestos, the likely percentage of total
asbestos claims which included Metropolitan Life as a defendant and experience in claims settiement negotiations.

Metropolitan Life also considered views derived from actuarial calculations it made in the fourth quarter of 2002, These calculations were made
using, among other things, then current information regarding Metropolitan Life’s claims'and settlement experience, information available in pubiic reports,
as well as a study regarding the possible future incidence of mescthelioma. Based on all of the above information, including greater than expected claims
experience In 2000, 2001 and 2002, Metropofitan Life expected to receive more claims in the future than it had previously expected. Previously,
Metropolitan Life’s liability reflected that the increase in asbestos-related claims was a result of an acceleration in the reporting of such claims; the liability
now reflects that such an increase is also the result of an increase in the total numbper of asbestos-related claims expected to be received by Metropolitan
Life. Accordingly, Metropolitan Life increased its recorded liability for asbestos-related claims by $402 million from approximately $820 mitlion to
$1,225 million at December 31, 2002. This total recorded asbestos-related liabllity (after the selif-insured retention) is within the coverage of the excess
insurance policies discussed below. The aforementioned analysis was updated through December 31, 2003,

During 1998, Metropolitan Life paid $878 million in premiums for excess insurance policies for asbestos-related claims. The excess insurance
policles for asbestos-related claims provide for recovery of losses up to $1,500 milion, which is in excess of a $400 milion self-insured retention. The
asbestos-related policies are also subject to annual and per-claim sublimits. Amounts are recoverable under the policies annually with respect to claims
paid during the prior calendar year. Although amounts paid by Metropolitan Life in any given year that may be recoverable in the next calendar year under
the policies will be reflected as a reduction in the- Company’s operating cash flows for the year in which they are paid, management believes that the
payments will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's liquidity.

Each asbestos-related policy contains an experience fund and a reference fund that provides for payments to Metropolitan Life at the commutation
date if the reference fund is greater than zero at commutation or pro rata reductions from time to time in the loss reimbursements to Metropolitan Life if the
cumulative retumn on the reference fund is less than the retumn specified in the experience fund. The retum in the reference fund is tied to performance of
the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index. A claim was made under the excess insurance policies in 2003 for
the amounts paid with respect to asbestos litigation in excess of the retention. Based on performance of the reference fund, at December 31, 2002, the
loss reimbursements to Metropolitan Life in 2003 and the recoverable with respect to later periods was $42 million less than the amount of the recorded
losses. Such foregone-foss reimbursements may be recovered upon commutation depending upon future performance of the reference fund. The
foregone loss reimbursements were estimated to be $9 million with respect to 2002 claims and estimated to be $42 million in the aggregate.

The $402 million increase in the recorded liability for asbestos claims less the foregone loss reimbursement adjustment of $42 million ($27 million,
net of income tax) resulted in an increase in the recoverable of $360 million. At December 31, 2002, a portion ($136 milion) of the $360 million
recoverable was recognized in income while the remainder ($224 million) was recorded as a deferred gain which is expected to be recognized in income
in the future over the estimated settlement period of the excess insurance policies. The $402 million increase in the recorded liability, less the portion of
the recoverable recognized in income, resufted in a net expense of $266 milion (3163 milion, net of income tax). The $360 million recoverable may
change depending on the:future performance of the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond index.

As a result of the excess.insurance policies, $1,237 million is recorded as a recoverable at December 31, 2002 ($224 million of which is recorded
as a deferred gain as mentioned above); the amount includes recoveries for amounts paid in 2002, If at some point in the future, the Company believes
the liability for probable and estimable losses for asbestos-related claims should be increased, an expense would be recorded and the insurance
recoverable would be adjusted subject to the terms, conditions and limits of the excess insurance policies. Portions of the change in the insurance
recoverable would be recorded as a deferred gain and amortized into income over the estimated remaining settlement period of the insurance policies.

In 2003, Metropolitan Life also has been named as a defendant in a small number of silicosis, welding and mixed dust cases. The cases are
pending in Mississippi, Texas, Ohio, Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Louisiana, Kentucky, Georgia, Alabama, llincis and Arkansas. The Company intends to
defend itself vigorously against these cases.

Property and Casually Actions

A purported class action has been . fled against Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company's subsidiary, Metropolitan Casualty
Insurance Company, in Florida alleging breach of contract and unfair trade practices with respect to allowing the use of parts not made by the original
manufacturer to repair damaged automobiles. Discovery is ongoing and a motion for class certification is pending. Two purported nationwide class
actions have been flled against Metropolitan Property and Casuaity Insurance Company in lllinois. One suit claims breach of contract and fraud due to the
alleged underpayment of medical claims arising from the use of a purportedly biased provider fee pricing system, A motion for class certification has been
fled and discovery is ongoing. The second sult claims breach of contract and fraud arising from the alleged use of preferred provider organizations to
reduce medical provider fees covered by the medical claims portion of the insurance policy. A motion to dismiss has been filed. A purported class action
has been filed against Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company in Montana. This suit alleges breach of contract and bad faith for not
aggregating medical payment and uninsured coverages provided in connection with the several vehicles identified in insureds’ motor vehicle policies.
Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company is vigorously defending itself against this lawsuit. Certain plaintiffs’ lawyers have alleged that the
use of certain automated databases to provide total loss vehicle valuation methods was improper. Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance
Company, along with a number of other insurers, has tentatively agreed in January 2004 1o resolve this issue in a class action format. The amount to be
paid in resolution of this matter will not be material to Metropoliten Property and Casualty Insuranice Company.

Demutualization Acticns .

Several lawsuits were brought in 2000 challenging the faimess of Metropolitan Life’'s plan of reorganization, as amended (the "plan”) and the
adequacy and accuracy of Metropolitan Life's disclosure to policyholders regarding the plan. These actions name as defendants some or all of
Metropclitan Life, the Holding Company, the individual directors, the New York Superintendent of insurance {the “Superintendent”) and the underwriters
for MetLife, Inc.’s initial public offering, Goldman Sachs & Company and Credit Suisse First Boston. Five purported class actions pending in the New York
state court in New York County were consolidated within the commercial part. In addition, there remained a separate purported class action in New York
state court in New York County. On February 21, 2003, the defendants’ motions to dismiss both the consolidated action and separate action were
granted; leave to replead as a proceeding under Article 78 of New York's Civil Practice Law and Rules has been granted in the separate action. Plaintifis
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in the consolidated action and separate action have filed notices of appeal. Another purported ¢lass action in New York state court in Kings County has
been voluntarily held in abeyance by plaintiffs. The plaintiffs in the state court class actions seek injunctive, declaratory and compensatory relief, as well as
an accounting and, in some instances, punitive damages. Some of the plaintiffs in the above described actions also have brought a proceeding under
Article 78 of New York's Civil Practice Law and Rules challenging the Opinion and Decision of the Superintendent who approved the plan. in this
proceeding, petitioners seek o vacate the Superintendent's Opinion and Decision and enjoin him from granting final approval of the plan. This case also
is being held in abeyance by plaintifis. Three purported class actions were filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of New York
claiming violation of the Securities Act of 1933. The plaintiffs in these actions, which have been’ consolidated, claim that the Policyholder Information
Booklets relating to the plan falled to disclose certain material facts and seek rescission and compensatory damages. Metrapolitan Life’'s motion to
dismiss these three cases was denied in 2001. On February 4, 2003, plaintiffs fled a consolidated amended complaint adding a fraud claim under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1834. Metropolitan Life-has served a motion to dismiss the consolidated amended complaint and a motion for summary
judgment In this action. Metropolitan Life, the Holding Company and the individual defendants believe they have meritorious:defenses to the plaintiffs'
claims and are contesting vigorously all of the plaintifis’ claims in these actions.

In 2001, a lawsuit was filed in the Superior Court of Justice, Ontario, Canada on behalf.of a proposed class of certain former Canadlan policyholders
against the Holding Company, Metropolitan Life, and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company of Canada. Plaintiffs’ allegations concem the way that their
policies were treated in connection with the demutualization of Metropolitan Life; they seek damages, declarations, and other non-pecuniary relief. The
defendants believe they have meritorious defenses to the plaintiffs’ claims and will contast vigorously all of plaintiffs’ claims in this matter.

In July 2002, a lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas on behalf of a proposed class comprised of the
seftiement class in the Metropolitan Life sales practices class action ssttlement approved in December 1999 by the United States District Court for the
Westem District of Pennsyivania. After the defendants’ motion to transfer the lawsuit to the Westemn District of Pennsylvania wais granted, plaintiffs fied an
amended complaint alleging that the treatment of the cost of the sales practices settiement in connection with the demutualization of Metropolitan Life
breached the terms of the setllement. Plaintiffs sought compensatory and punitive damages, as well.as attomeys' fees and costs. In October 2003, the
court granted defendants’ motion to dismiss the action. Plaintiffs fled a notice of appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit. In
January 2004, the appeal was dismissed..

Race-Conscious Underwiti ng Claims

Insurance departments in a number of states initiated inguiries in 2000 about possible race- CODSCIOUS underwriting of life insurance. These inquiries
generally have been directed to all life insurers licensed in their respective states, including Metropolitan Life and certain of its affilates. The New York
Insurance Department has concluded its examination of Metropolitan Life concerning possible past race-conscious underwriting practices. Four
purported class action lawsuits fled against Metropolitan Life in 2000 and 2001 alleging racial discrimination in the marketing, sale, and administration of
life insurance policies have been consolidated in the United States District Court for the Southermn District of New York. On April 28, 2003, the United
States District Court approved a class-action settiement of the consolidated actions. Several persons filed notices of appeal from the order approving the
sefflement, but subsequently the appeals were dismissed. Metropelitan Life also has entered into settlement agreesments to resolve the regulatory
examination, Metropolitan Life recorded a charge in the fourth guarter of 2001 in connection with the anticipated resolution of these matters. The
Company believes the remaining portion of the previously recorded charge is adequate to cover the costs assaciated with the resolution of these
matters.

Sixieen lawsuits involving approximately 130 plaintiffs have been filed in federal and state court in Aiapama Mississippi and Tennessee alleging
federal and/or state law claims of racial discrimination in connection with the sale, formation, administration or servicing of life insurance policies.
Metropolitan Life is contesting vigorcusly plaintifis’ claims in these actions.

Other

In 2001, a putative Class action was filed against Metropolitan Life. in the United States District Court for the Southem District of New York al!egmg
gender discrimination and retaliation in the MetLife Financial Services unit of the Individual segment. The plaintiffs were seeking unspecified compensatory
damages, punitive damages, a declaration that the alleged practices were discriminatory and illegal, injunctive relief requiring Metropolitan Life 1o
discontinue the alleged discriminatory practices, an order restoring class members to thelir igntful positions (or appropriate compensation in lieu thereof),
and other relief, Plaintiffs fled a motion for class certification. Opposition papers were filed by Metropolitan Life. In August 2003, the court granted
preliminary approval to a seftlement of the lawsuit. At the falmess hearing held on Novemnber 6, 2003, the court approved the settlement of the lawsuilt.
Implementation of the settiement has commenced in 2004,

A putative class action lawsuit is pending in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia, in which plaintifis allege that they were
denied certain ad hoc pension increases awarded to retirees under the Metropolitan Life retirement plan. The ad hoc pension increases were awarded
only to retirees (i.e., individuals who were entitled to an immediate retirement benefit upon their termination of employment) and not available to individuals
like these plaintiffs whose employment, or whose spouses’ employment, had terminated before they became eligitle for an immediate retirement benefit.
The plaintiffs seek to represent a class consisting of former Metropolitan Life employees, or their surviving spouses, who are receiving deferred vested
annuity payments under the retirement plan and who were allegedly eligitle 1o receive the ad hoc pension increases awarded in 1977, 1980, 1989,
1982, 1996 and 2001, as well as increases awarded in earfier years. Metropoiitan Life is vigorously defending itself against these allegations.

Alawsult was filed against Metropolitan Life in Ontario, Canada by Clarica Life insurance Cempany regarding the sale of the majority of Metropolitan
Life's Canadian operation 1o Clarica in 1998. Clarica alleged that Metropolitan Life breached certain representations and warranties contained in the sale
agreement, that Metropolitan Life made misrepresentations upon which Clarica refied during the negotiations and that Metropolitan Life was negligent in
the performance of certain of its obligations and duties under the sale agreement. The parties settled the matter in January 2004, The settlement will have
no material impact on the Company's consolidated financial results in 2004.

A reinsurer of universal life policy liabiliies of Metropolitan Life and certain of its affilates commenced an arbitration proceedrng and sought
rascission, Claiming that, during undenwriting, material misrepresentations or omissions were made to the reinsurer. The reinsurer alsc sent a notice
purporting to increase reinsurance premium rates. In December 2003, the arbitration pane! denied the reinsurer’s attempt 10 rescind the contract and
granted the reinsurer's request to raise rates. As a result of the panel's rulings, lidbilities ceded to "the reinsurer were recaptured effective May 5 2003,
The recapture had no materie) impact on the Company's consohdated financial resuits in 2003.
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As previously reported, the SEG is conducting a formal investigation of New England Securities Corporation {"NES"), an indirect subsidiary of New
England Life Insurance Company ("NEUCO"), in response 10 NES informing the SEC that certain systems and controls relating to one NES advisory
program waere not operating effectively. NES is cooperating fully with the SEC.

Prior to fling the Company's June 30, 2003 Form 10-Q, Metlife announced a $31 million after-tax charge resulting from certain improperty deferred
expenses at an affiliate, New England Financial. MetLife notified the SEC about the nature of this charge prior to its announcement. The SEC is pursuing a
formal investigation of the matter and MetLife is fully cooperating with the investigation.

The American Dental Association and two individual providers have sued MetLife, Mutual of Omaha and Cigna in a purported class action lawsuit
brought in a Florida federal district court. The plaintiffs purport to represent a nationwide class of in-network providers who allege that their claims are
being wrongfully reduced by downcoding, bundiing, and the improper use and programming of software, The complaint alleges federal racketeering and
various state law theories of lighility. MetLife is vigorously defending the case and a motion to dismiss has been filed.

A purported class action in which a policyholder seeks to represent a class of owners of participating life insurance pelicies is pending in state court
in New York. Plaintiff asserts that Metropolitan Life breached her policy in the manner in which it allocated investment income across lines of business
during a period ending with the 2000 demutualization. In August 2003, an appellate court affrmed the dismissal of fraud claims in this action, MetLife is
vigorously defending the case.

Regulatory bodies have contacted the Company and have reguested information relating to market timing and late trading of mutual funds and
variable insurance products. The Company believes that these inquiries are similar to those made to many financial services companies as part of an
industry-wide investigation by various regulatory agencies into the practices, policies and procedures relating to trading in mutual fund shares. State
Street Research Investment Services, one of the Company's indirect broker/dealer subsidiaries, has entered into a settiement with the National
Asscciation of Securities Dealers ("NASD") resolving all cutstanding issues relating to its investigation. The SEC has commenced an investigation with
respect to market iming and late trading in a limited number of privately-placed variable insurance contracts that were sold through General American.
The Company is in the process. of responding and is fully cooperating with regard to these information requests and investigations. The Company at the
present time is not aware of any systemic problems with respect to such matters that may have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position. .

Variocus litigation, claims and assessments against the Company, in addition 10 those discussed above and those otherwise provided for in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, have arisen in the course of the Company's business, including, but not limited to, in connection with its
activities as an insurer, employer, investor, investment advisor and taxpayer. Further, state insurance reguiatory authorities and other federal and state
authorities regularly make inguiries and conduct investigations conceming the Company's compliance with applicable insurance and other laws and
reguiations.

Summary

It is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate cutcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings or provide reasonable ranges of
potential losses, except as noted above in connection with specific matters. In some of the matters referred to above, very large and/or indeterminate
amounts, including punitive and treble damages, are sought. Although in light of these considerations it is possible that an adverse outcome in certain
cases could have a material adverse effect upon the Company's consolidated financial position, based on information currently known by the Company’s
management, in its opinion, the outcomes of such pending investigations and legal proceedings are not fikely to have such an sffect. However, given the
large and/or indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters and the inherent unpredictability of litigation, it is possible that an adverse outcome
in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated net income or cash flows in particular quarterty
or annual periods. ‘

Leases ‘

In accordance with industry practice, certain of the Company's income from lease agreements with retail tenants is contingent upon the level of the
tenants’ sales revenues. Additionally, the Company, as lessee, has entered into various lease and sublease agreements for office space, data
processing and other equipment. Future minimum rental and sublease income, and minimum gross rental payments relating to ihese lease agreements
were as follows: . :

Gross

Rental Sublease Rental

Income Income Payments

{Dollars in millions)

2004 e e $ 567 316 $210
200D L e $ 522 515 $192
2008 L $ 481 514 $168
2007 e $ 432 512 $145
2008 L e e $ 366 $10 $113
0552211 O O $1,965 313 8717

Commitments to Fund Partnership Investments
The Company makes commitments to fund partnership. investments in the normal course of business. The amounts of these unfunded commit-
ments were $1,380 milion and $1,667 million at December 31, 2008 and 2002, respsctively. The Company anticipates that these amounts will be
invested in the partnerships over the next three to five years.

Guarantees
In the course of its business, the Company has provided certain indemnities, guarantees and commitments to third parties pursuant to which it may

be required to make payments naw or in the future.
In the context of acquisition, disposition, investment and other transactions, the Company has provided indemnities and guarantess, including those
refated 1o tax, environmental and other specific liabilities, and other indemnities and guarantees that are triggered by, among other things, breaches of
representations, wamranties or covenants provided by the Company. In addition, in the normal course of business, the Company provides indermnifica-
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tions to counterparties In contracts with triggers similar to the foregoing, as well as for certain other liabilities, such as third party lawsuits. These
obligations are often subject to time limitations that vary in duration, including contractual limitations and those that arise by operation of law, such as
applicable statutes of limitation. In some cases, the maximum potential obligation under the indemnities and guarantees is subject 10 a contractual
limitation ranging from $1 million to $800 million, while in other cases such limitations are not specified or applicable. Since certain of these obligations are
net subject to fimitations, the Company does not believe that tis possible to determine the maximum potential amount due under these guarantees in the
future.

In addition, the Company indemnifies its directors and officers as provided in its charters and by-laws. Also, the Company indemnifies other of its
agents for liabilities incumed as a result of their representation of the Company's interests. Since these indernnities are generally not subject to limitation
with respect to duration or amount, the Company does not believe that It is possible to determine the maximum potential amount due under these
indermnities in the future.

The fair value of such indemnities, guarantees and commitments entered into was insignificant. The Company’s recorded liability at December 31,
2003 and 2002 for indemnities, guarantees and commitments provided to third parties prior to January 1, 2003 was Insignificant.

The Company writes credit default swap obfigations requiring payment of principal due in exchange for the reference credit obligation, depending on
the nature or occurrence of specified credit events for the referenced entities. In the event of a specified credit event, the Company's maximum amount at
risk, assuming the value of the referenced credits become worthless, is $489 million at December 31, 2003, The credit default swaps expire at varicus
times during the next four years.

13. Employee Benefit Plans

Pension Benefit and Other Benefit Plans v

The Company is both the sponsor and administrator of defined benefit pension plans covering eligible employees and sales representatives of the
Company. Retirement benefits are based upon years of credited service and final average or career average eamings history.

The Company also provides certain postemployment benefits and certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees
through insurance contracts. Substantially all of the Company’s employees may, in accordance with the plans applicable to the postretirement benefits,
become eligible for these benefits if they attain retirement age, with sufficient service, while working for the Cormpany.

The Company uses a December 31 measurement date for all of its pension and postretirement benefit plans.

Obligations, Funded Status and Net Periodic Benefit Costs

December 31,
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning Of YEar .. ..o v v e $4,785 $4,426 31,878 31,669
SEIVICE COSt. oottt e e e e 123 105 38 36
EIESt SOt . o o\ttt 314 308 122 123
Acquisitions and AIVESTIIUIES . .. ..ot e n (73) - —
Actuarial losses .. ... .. o i e e e e e 352 312 167 342
Curtailments and termiNaioNS .. ...t 7 3) (4) 2
Change IN DBNEltS .. e 2 — (1) (168)
BEnefiS DI ... e (292) {290) (122) (122)

Projected benefit obligation atend of year .. .. .. 5272 4,785 2,078 1,878

Change in plan assets:,

Contract value of plan assets at beginning of year . ... i i 4,053 4,161 965 1,169
ACtual returm ON PIEN 8SSEIS ..o e 634 (179 112 92)
ACQUISIIONS and AiVeSTILIES .. oot e e e e (1) (67) — -
Employer and particioant CoNtibUloNS .. .ot e 337 428 46 10
BENEIS DI o v e e e (292) (290) (122) (122)

Contract value of plan assets atend ofyear . ... ... ... ... ... e 4,731 4,053 1,001 965

U e (e s R (541) 732y (1,077) (913)

Unrecognized net asset at ransition . .. ... o e 3 — - .=

Unrecognized net actuarial losses............. e e R 1,451 1,507 364 262

Unrecognized prior SENVICE COST ...ttt 82 101 (184) (208)

Prepaid (accrued) Beneflt COSt. . .o $ 005 $ 876 - % (897) $ (859

Qualified plan prepaid pension Cost ... vvvei i S $1,325 B171

Non-qualified plan accrued pension COSt. ..ot PR (474) (341)

Unamortized prior SEIVICE COST . ...t e e e 14 —

Accumulated other COMPreneNSIvE 10SS . .. o oot e 130 46

Prepaid DENEft COSt .\ o\ttt $ 995 & 878
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The aggregate projected benefit obligation and aggregate contract value of plan assets for the pension plans were as follows:

Qualified Pian Non-Qualified Plan Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
(Dotlars in millions)
Aggregate projected benefit obligation ... ... oL $4,735) 4,311 $(B37) 474  $B.272) $4,785)
Agaregate contract value of plan assets (principally Company
CONIIACES) . v vttt e e e L 4,731 4,053 — — 4,731 4,053
Underfunded. ... ... .. . . . e ) 4 % (258) $B37) $Ur4)  F B41) B (739

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $4,902 million and $4,259 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. .
Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

December 31,

2003 2002

{Dallars in millions)

Projected Denefit OblIgatON . . . . $560 $489
Accumutated benefit OblIGatIoN . . . ... e $472 $359
A VAIE Of DIaN S8BES .ottt ittt it e e $ 16 -89

Information for pension and postret)remént plans with a projected bengfit obligation in excess of plan assets:

December 31,

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
{Dollars in millions)
Projected benefit obIgatIoN .. ... $5,232 $4,746 $2,078 $1.878
Fair value Of DIaN 888808 . . . oo e e $4,675 $3,995 $1,001 $ 965
The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
{Doliars in millions)

SENVICE COSE v oot e e e $123 3105 %104 $38 $36 P 34
IMBrest COSt . e 314 308 308 122 123 115
Expected retun onplanassets ... ... Ll e (335) (356) (402) 71 (93) (108)
Amortization of prior actuarial losses (Qains). . ... o 103 33 @) (12) (Q) (27)
Curtailment cost .. ... e e 10 11 21 3 4 0
Net periodic Denefit COSt ... e $215 $101 3 29 $ 80 61 $ 20

|
H

Assumptions
Assumptions used in determining benefit obligations were as folliows:

December 31,

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
DISCOUNT BB + v v vt e et ettt e e e e e e e e 3.5%-9.5% 4%-95% 6.1%-65% 6.5%-7.25%
Rate of compensation INCreaSe . . ...t i e e e 3%-8% 2%-8% N/A “N/A

Assumptions used in determining net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

December 31,

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2003 2002 2003 2002
DISCOUNTIate. .. oy R 4%-9.5% 4%-9.5% 6.5%-6.75%  6.5%-7.40%
Expected rate of retum onplan assets . ...oo o e 3.5%-10% 49%-10%  3.79%-85 % 5.2%-9%
Rate of compensation' increase ... e 3%-8% 2%-8% O NA N/A

For the largest of the plans sponsored by the Company {the Metropolitan Life Retirement Plan for United States Employees, with a projected benefit
obligation of $5.2 bilion or 98% of all qualified plans at December 31, 2003}, the discount rate and the range of rates of future compensation increases
used in determining that plan's benefit obligation at December 31, 2003 were 6.1% and 4% 1o 8%, respectively. The discount rate, expected rate of
return on plan assets, and the range of rates of future compensation increases used in determining that plan’s net pericdic benefit cost at Decernber 31,
2003 were 6.75%, 8.5% and 4% to 8%, respectively. The discount rate is based on the yield of a hypothetical portfolio of high-quality debt instruments
available on the valuation date, which would provide the necessary future cash flows 1o pay the aggregate projected benefit obligation when due. The
expected rate of return on plan assets is based on anticipated performance of the varlous asset sectars in which the plan invests, weighted by target
allocation percentages. Anficipated future performance is based on long-term historical retums of the plan assets by sector, adjusted for the Company's
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long-term expectations on the perfarmance of the markets. While the precise expected return dertved using this approach will fluctuate from year to year,
the Company's policy is to hold this long-term assumption constant as long as it remains within a reasonable tolerance from the derived rate, The
expected rate of return on plan assets for use in that plan's valuation in 2004 is currently anticipated to be 8.5%. The discount rates of 3.5% and 9.5%
used in determining pension benefit obligations, the discount rates of 4% and 8.5% used in determining net periodic pension costs, and the expected
rates of retum on pension plan assets of 3.5% and 10% are attributable to the Company’s international subsidiaries in Taiwan and Mexico, respectivaly.
The rates of compensation increase of 3% and 2% in 2003 and 2002, respectively, is attributable to the Company's subsidiary in Taiwan. These rates are
indicative of the econormic environments in those countries. The expected rate of return on postretirement benefit plan assets of 3.79% is atiributable 1©
the Company's Canadian subsidiary and reflects the nature of the investments.
The assumed health care cost trend rates used in measuring the accumulated nonpension postretirement benefit obligation were as follows:

December 31,

2003 2002
Pre-Medicare eligible claims .. ... e 8.5% down o 5% in 2010 9% down to 5% in 2010
Medicare eligible claims . ... e 10.5% down to 5% in 2014 11% down to 5% in 2014

Assumed health care cost trend rates may have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage point change in
assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

One Percent  One Percent

increase Decrease

(Oollars in millions)
Effect on total of service and interest cost components . . .. . S PO $ 10 $ 9
Effect of accumulated postretirement benefit otfigation................. e $108 $(105)

Plan Aséets ) .
The weighted average allocation of pension plan and other benefit plan assets is as follows:

Decermnber 31,
Pension

Benefits Other Benefits
s 0z 03 2002
Asset Category
Equity securities. ............ P 52% 38% 38% 36%
Fixed maturities .......: U 39% 52% 61% B83%
Realestate . ..o P PR 9% 10% - -
Other. ... L RPN - —_ _1% __1%
TOEL o et PP 100%  100%  100%  100%
The weighted average target allocation of pension plan and other benefit plan assets for 2004 is as follows:
’ Pension Other
Benefits Benefits
Asset Category
QUL SBCUMIES ..ottt e e e 35%-60%  25%-40%
Fixed maturities . ..........o. oo e e 35%-70%  50%-80%
Rl Bl . . . 0%-15% N/A
O R oo 0%-20% 0%-10%

Target aliocations of assets are dstermined with the objective of maximizing retums and minimizing volatility of net assets through adequate asset
diversification and partial fiability immunization. Adjustments are made to target allocations based on the Company's assessment of the impact of
economic factors and market conditions.

Cash Flows
In January 2004, the Company contributed $450 million to its pension plans and $88 millicn to its other benefit plans during 2004. -
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service as appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Pension Other
Benefits Benefits
Tol—la_rs in mim;r_w_s)_
B2 S S $ 329 $117
200D e $ 30 $121
2006 ..ot P $ 313 $125
2007 e & 319 $130
2008 e PP $ 328 $134
2000- 201 8 o R R R TS U PP 31,828 3729

Savings and Investment Plans
The Company sponsors savings and investment plang for substantially all employeess under which the Company matches a portion of employes
contributions. The Company contributed $59 million, $88 mifion and $60 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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14. Equity

Preferred Stock

On September 29, 1999, the Holding Company adopted a stockholder rights plan {the "rights plan”) under which each outstanding share of
comman stock issued betwaen April 4, 2000 and the distribution date (as defined in the rights plan) wilf be coupled with a stackholder right. Each right
will entitle the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. Each one one-hundredth of a share of
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock will have economic and voting terms equivalent to one share of common stock, Until it is exercised, the right
itself will not entitle the holder thereof to any rights as a stockholder, including the right to receive dividends or to vote at stockholder mestings.

Stockholder rights are not exercisable until the distribution date, and will expire at the close of business on April 4, 2010, unless earfier redeemed or
exchanged by the Holding Company. The rights plan is designed to protect stockholders in the event of unsolicited offers to acquire the Holding
Company and other coercive takeover tactics.

Common Stock

On February 19, 2002, the Holding Company's Board of Directors authorized a $1 billion common stock repurchase program. This program began
after the completion of the March 28, 2001 and June 27, 2000 repurchase programs, each of which authorized the repurchase of $1 bilion of common
stock. Under these authorizations, the Holding Company may purchase common stock from the MetLife Policyholder Trust, in the open market and in
privately negotiated transactions.

On August 7, 2001, the Company purchased 10 milion shares of its common stock as part of the sale of 25 millon shares of MetLife common
stack by Santusa Holdings, S.L., an affliate of Banco Santander Central Hispano, S.A, The sale by Santusa Holdings, S.L. was made pursuant to a shelf
registration statement, effective June 29, 2001.

The Company acquired 2,997,200, 15,244,492 and 45,242,966 shares of common stock for $37 million, $471 million and $1,322 million during
the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2003, 59,004,925 shares of common stock
were issued from treasury stock for $1,667 million, of which 59,771,221 shares were issued in connection with the settlement of the purchase contracts
{see Note 8) with cash proceeds of approximately $1,008 milion. During the vears ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, 16,379 and 67,578 shares of
common stock were issued from treasury stock for $438 thousand and $1 million, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately
$709 million remaining on its existing share repurchase authorization,

Dividend Restrictions

Under the New York Insurance Law, Metropolitan Life is permitted without prior insurance regulatory clearance to pay a stockholder dividend to the
Holding Company as long as the aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the lesser of () 10% of its surplus to
policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year, and (i) its statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year
{excluding reatized capital gains), Metropalitan Life will be permitted to pay a cash dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the lesser of such two
amounts only if it files notice of its intention to declare such a dividend and the amount thereof with the Superintendent and the Superintendent does not
disapprave the distribution. Under the New York Insurance Law, the Superintendent has broad discretion in determining whether the financial condition of
a stock life insurance company would support the payment of such dividends to its stockholders. The Department has established informal guidelines for
such determinations. The guidelines, among other things, focus on the insurer's overall financial condition and profitability under statutory accounting
practices. For the year ended December 31, 2003, Metropolitan Life paid to MetLife, Inc. $698 million in dividends for which prior insurance reguiatory
clearance was not required and $750 milion in special dividends, as approved by the Superintendent. For the year ended December 31, 2002,
Metropolitan Life paid to MetlLife, Inc. $535 million in dividends for which prior insurance regulatory Clearance was not required and $369 miflion in special
dividends, as approved by the Superintendent. For the year ended December 31, 2001, Metropolitan Life paid to MetLife, Inc. $721 milion in dividends
for which prior insurance regulatory clearance was not required and $3,033 milion in special dividends, as approved by the Superintendent. At
December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be paid to the Holding Company from Metropolitan Life in 2004, without prior
regulatory approval is $798 miliion. Metropolitan Life could pay the Holding Company a dividend of $798 million without prior approval of the
Superintendent.

Under the Delaware Insurance Law, MIAC is permitted without prior insurance regulatory clearance to pay a stockholder dividend to the Holding
Company as long as the aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not exceed the greater of (i) 10% of its surplus 1o
policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year, and (i) its statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding calendar year
(excluding realized capital gains). MIAC will be permitted to pay a cash dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the greater of such two amounts
only if it files notice of its intention to declare such a dividend and the amount thereof with the Superintendent and the Superintendent does not
disapprove the distribution. Under the Delaware Insurance Law, the Superintendent has broad discretion in determining whether the financial condition of
a stock life insurance company would support the payment of such dividends to its stockholders. The Department has established informal guidelines for
such determinations. The guidelines, among other things, focus on the insurer's overall financial condition and profitability under statutory accounting
practices. MIAC paid to MetLife, Inc. $104 miflion in dividends for which prior insurance regulatory Clearance was not required and $94 million in special
dividends, as approved by the Superintendent for the year ended December 31, 2003. For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, MIAC paid to MetLife, Inc. $25 million and $31 million in dividends for which prior insurance regulatory clearance was not required. As of
December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be paid to the Holding Company from MIAC in 2004, without prior regulatory
approval, is $185 million.

Under the Rnode Island Insurance Law, Metropolitan Property and Casualty Insurance Company is psermitted without prior insurance reguiatory
clearance to pay a stockholder dividend to the Holding Company as long as the aggregate amount of all such dividends in any calendar year does not
exceed the lesser of () 10% of its surplus to policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year, and (i) next preceding three year eamings
reduced by capital gains and dividends paid to stockholders. Metropolitan Property and Casualty insurance Company will be permitted to pay a
stockholder dividend to the Holding Company in excess of the lesser of such two amounts only if it files notice of its intention to declare such a dividend
and the amount thereof with the Superintendent and the Superintendent does not disapprove the distribution. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
Metropolitan Property and Casuatty Insurance Company paid to MetLife, Inc. $75 million in dividends for which prior insurance regulatory clearance was

F-40 Metlife, Inc.




METLIFE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

not required. As of December 31, 2003, the maximum amount of the dividend which may be paid to the Holding Company from Metropohtan Property
and Casualty Insurance Company in 2004, without prior regulatory approval, is $200 miliion.

Stock Compensation Plans

Under the MetLife, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan”), awards granted may be in the form of non-gualified or incentive stock
options qualifying under Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code. Under the MetLife, Inc. 2000 Directors Stock Plan, as amended (the “Directors
Stock Plan”), awards granted may be in the form of stock awards or non-qualified stock options or a cormibination of the foregoing to outside Directors of
the Company. The aggregate number of shares of stock that may be awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan is subject to a maximum limit of
37,823,333 shares for the duration of the plan. The Directors Stock Plan has a maximum limit of 500,000 share awards.

All options granted have an exercise price egual 1o the fair market value price of the Company's common stock on the date of grant, and an option's
maximum temm is ten years, Certain options under the Stock Incentive Plan become exercisable over a three-year period commencing with the date of
grant, while other options become exercisable three years after the date of grant. Options issued under the Directors Stock Plan are exercisable
immediately.

The fair value of each aption grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes options-pricing madel with the following weighted
average assumptions used for grants for the:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
DMIdENd Vil . L 0.68%-0.79% 0.68% 0.68%
Risk-free rate of retum ... e 1 2.71%-4.03% 4.74%-5.52% 5.72%
VOlAtIY . .o 37.0%-38.7% 25.3%-30.3% 31.80%
EXpected AUration . .. . 6 years 6 years 4-8 years
A summary of the status of options included in the Company’s Stack Incentive Plan and Directors Stock Plan is presented below;
Weighted - Weighted
Average Options Average
. Options Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
Qutstanding at December 31, 2000. ... ... oo — $ - — 3 -
L1 O A 12,263,550 $29.93 — 5 -
EXEICIBE « 1 v et -~ $ - - 3 -
Canceled/EXpred . ..o L [1,146,866) $29.95 -~ $ -
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 ... oo 11,116,684 $20.93 — $ -
Gramted . 7,275,855 $30.35 - $ -
BXEICISEa L v oot (11,401) $29.95 — 3 -
Canceled/EXpired . .. ..o {2,121,508) $30.07 - 5 -
Qutstanding at December 31, 2002. . ... ..ot e 16,259,630 $30.10 1,357,034 $30.01
GrANIEA et e e 5,634,439 $26.13 — $ -
BXOICISEA - o vt ettt et et e e (20,054) $30.02 - - 3 -
Canceled/ExXpirad . . (1,578,987) $29.45 — $ -
Quistanding December 31, 2003 ... .o 20,295,028 $20.05 - 4,566,265 $30.15
Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Weighted average fair value of options granted . .. ..o e DU $10.41  $10.48 $10.29
The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003:
Number
Number Weighted Average Weighted Exercisable at Weighted
OQutstanding at Remaining Contractual Average December 31, Average
Range of Exercise Prices December 31, 2003 Life (Years) Exercise Price 2003 Exercise Price
$23.75 - §26.75 5,180,850 212 _ $25.97 9,334 $23.75
$26.76 - $28.75 201,336 8.52 $27.41 2,336 $28.10
$28.76 - $30.75 14,707,077 7.28 $30.11 4,471,306 $30.12
$30.76 - $32.75 146,135 8.18 $31.86 58,759 $31.72
$32.76 - $33.64 59,530 9,27 $33.26 24,530 $33.64
20,295,028 7.77 $29.05 4,566,265 $30.15
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Effective January 1, 2003, the Company elected to apply the fair value method of accounting for stock options granted by the Company
subsequent to December 31, 2002. As permitted under SFAS 148, options granted prior to January 1, 2003 will continue to be accounted for under
APB 25. Had compensation expense for grants awarded prior to January 1, 2003 been determined based on fair value at the date of grant in
accordance with SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS 123", the Company's eamings and eamings per share amounis would
have been reduced to the following pro-forma amounts:

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

{Dollars in millions,
except per share data)

D=1 17521 2 R $2,217 $1,605 $473

Charge for conversion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of a subsidiary frust(1) .. 21) — —
$2,196 $1,605 $473

Net income available to common sharenolders ... ... e

Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of related tax

= i< o= AU $ 13 $ 1 $ 1
Deduct: Total Stock-based employee compensation determined under fair value based method for afl

awards, net Of related 1aX BECIS . .\t et e 42) (33) (20)
Pro forma net income available to common shareholders(2)(3) . ... i $2,167 $1,573 $ 454

Basic earnings per share
F S £=] 0 o 1= O

PO a2 3] . oot e F N

$ 298 $ 228 30.64
$ 294 $ 2.23 $0.61

Diluted earnings per share
Asreporied ... P

PIO fOMNIA ) B) . v vt e e $ 2.90

$294 $ 220 $0.62
$ 215 30.59

(1) See Note 8 for a discussion of this charge included in the calculation of net income avaitable to common shareholders.

(2) The pro forma eamings disclosures are not necessarily representative of the effects on net income and eamings per share in future years.

(3) Includes the Company's ownership share of stock compensation costs related 1o the Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated incentive stock
plan and the stock compensation costs related to the incentive stock plans at SSRM Holdings, Inc. determined in accordance with SFAS 123,

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002 and 2001, stock-based compensation expense related to the Company's Stock Incentive Plan and
Directors Stock Plan was $20 milion, $2.1 million and $1.3 million, respectively, including stock-based compensation for non-employees of $550 thou-
sand, $2.1 milion and $1.3 million, respectively.

Statutory Equity and Income

Applicable insurance department regulations require that the insurance subsidiaries prepare statutory financial statements in accordance with
statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the insurance department of the state of domicile. Statutory accounting practices primarily differ
from GAAP by charging policy acguisition costs to expense as incurred, establishing future policy benefit liabifiies using different actuarial assumptions,
reporting surpius notes as surplus instead of debt and valuing securities on a different basis.

As of December 31, 2001, New York Statutory Accounting Practices did not provide for deferred income taxes. The Department has adopted a
modification 1o its regulations, effective December 31, 2002, with respect to the admissibility of deferred taxes by New York insurers, subject to certain
limitations.

Statutory net income of Metropolitan Life, as filed with the Department, was $2,169 million, $1,455 million and $2,782 million for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2002 and 2001, respectively; statutory capital and surplus, as filed, was $7,878 million and $6,986 million at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. ‘

Statutory net income of MIAC, which is domiciled in Delaware, as filed with the Insurance Department of Delaware, was $341 million, $34 million and
$26 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively; statutory capital and surplus, as filed, was $1,051 milion and
$1,037 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Statutory net income of Metropolitan Property and Casualty, which is domiciled in Rhode Island, as filed with the Insurance Department of Rhode
Island, was $214 milion, $173 milion and $61 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively; statutory capital and
surplus, as filed, was $1,998 milion and $1,964 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively,

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) adopted the Codification of Statutory Accounting Principles (the “Coedification™),
which is intended to standardize regulatory accounting and reporting to state insurance departments, and became effective January 1, 2001. However,
statutory accounting principles continue to be established by individual state laws and permitied practices. The Department required adoption of the
Codffication, with certain modifications, for the preparation of statutory financial statements effective January 1, 2001. Further modifications by state
insurance departments may impact the effect of the Codification on the statutory capital and surplus of Metropolitan Life and the Holding Company's

other insurance subsidiaries.

MetLife, Inc.
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Other Comprehensive Income - .
The following table sets forth the reclassification adjustments requwed for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 in other
comprehensive income (1oss) that are included as part of net income for the current year that have been reported as a part of other comprehensive
income (loss) in the current or prior year:

15.

Years Ended December 31,
- 2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in millions)

Holding gains on investments arising during the year ............ ... e e $1,548 $3,785 $1,343

Income tax effect of NoldINg GaINS . . .. oo e (682 (1,179) (530)
Reclassification adjustments: -
Recognized holding losses included in Curmrent year iNnCOME ..ottt e 330 336 510
Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts associated with investments .................... (168) (528) (488)
Recognized holding gains allocated to other policyholder amountS. . .. oo e (215) (145) (134)
INCOME tax BffeCt. . ... e 20 105 45
Allocation of holding losses on investments refating to other policyholder.amounts ... s, 331} (2,832 {89)
Income tax effect of allocation of holding losses to other policyholder amounts ... ..o 147 889 27
Net unrealized investment gains ...... e e 690 403 704
Foreign currency translation adjustment .. ... e 177 (69) (60)
Minimum pension fiabifity adiustment. . ... 82) — (18)
Other COMPENENSIVE INCOME « .+ vt ettt et e e e et et e e e e e e e $ 785 $ 334 § 626
Other Expenses

Other expenses were comprised of the following:
N Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in millions)
(@] aalo 7= a1 1('o) o A O O $2685 $2481 $2,459
CommISSIONS v v v vveeve e e 2,474 2,000 1,861
Interest and debt I88UB COBIS . ..t 478 403 332
Amortization of policy acguisition costs {excludes amounts directly related to net investment gains (losses))
of $(31), $5 and B25, r88DRCIVENY) ..ot 1,818 1,639 1,413
Capftalization of policy aCqUISIION COSIS ..ot v it e (2,792)  {2,340) (2,039
Rent, Nt Of SUDIEASE INCOME . . . oo e e e 254 295 282
e g 110 73 57
L1 O P 2,274 2,464 2,867
Total Other BXDENSES . ...t $7301 $70156 $7.022

16. Earnings Per Share

The following presents a reconciliation of the weighted average shares used in calculating basic earnings per share to those used in calculating

diluted eamings per share:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
{Doliars in miilions, except share and per share data)
Weighted average common stock outstanding for basic eamings per share ......... 737,903,107 704,588,115 741,041,654
Incremental shares from assumed:
Conversion of forward purchase CoNtracts . ..ottt et 8,293,269 24,596,850 25974,114
Exercise Of SIoCK OptIONS. .. v\ttt 68,111 5,233 1,133
Issuance under deferred SIOCK COMPENSAHON . . .. oottt 579,810 — —
Weighted average common stock outstanding for dituted earnings per share ........ 746,844,297 729,201,298 767,016,001
Income from continuing operations ................ ... .. ... ... $ 1043 & 1134  § 366
Charge for conversion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of a
sUbSIdIanY TS . (21 — —
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders . . . .. 5 1,022 % 1,134 % 366
Basic 8amings Par Share . .. ... $ 260 % 161 8 0.49
Diluted eamings pershare.................... U $ 257 % 156 3 0.48
MetLife, Inc.
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For the Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in millions, except share and per share data)

Income from discontinued operations available to common shareholders. .. $ 300 % 471 % 107
BasiC eamings Der Share . ... oo e e 3 041  $ 067 8 014
Diluted eamings P SNAM . . .\ttt et e e 3 040 % 065 $ 0.14

Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of income taxes ........... 5 (26) % - % —
BasiC 8AMINGS PO SNAM . . . ettt et e 3 0.04) $ - & -
DIET AITINGS DI SNAMG .« . 4 et vt e e e e ettt e e e $ 003 % — 8 —

NetIncome . ... ... . 3 2,217 8§ 1,605 § 473

Charge for conversion of company-obligated mandatorily redeemable
securities of a subsidiary trust(1) ........... ... ...l (21) - —

Net income available to common shareholders .. .......................... $ 2196 3% 1,805 % 473
BaSIC 8aMINgS D8 SNBIB . . o vttt $ 298 & 228 § 0.64
Diluted €amMiINGS DB SN . .« .o e $ 294 % 220 & 0.62

(1) See Note 8 for a discussion of this charge included in the calculation of net income available to common shareholders.
17. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are summarized in the table below:

Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

2003
O] FOVENIUES o e $8,364 $8,862 $8,816 $9,747
Ol BXDENSES o oottt et e e $7,952 $8,079 $8,109 $3,019
Income from continuing OPErations ...« oo vt $ 296 $ 571 $ 560 $ 516
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes. .................. $ 66 $§ 9 $ 14 $ 211
Income before cumulative effect of change inaccounting . ...t $ 362 $ 580 $ 574 $ 727
NEE INCOME .o e $ 362 $ 580 $ 574 $ 701
Basic earnings per share:
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders . ...... $ 039 $ 078 $ 0.74 $ 068
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . ........o.o... .. $ 0.09 ReKel! $ 0.02 $ 0.28
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting available to common
ShArBNOITEIS . ot e e $ 0.49 $ 0.79 - 5075 $ 0.96
Net income available to commaon shareholders . . ... .ot $ 049 $ 079 $ 075 $ 0.92
Diluted eamings per share:
Income from continuing operations available to common shareholders ... .. .. $ 0.38 $ 078 $ 0.74 $ 068
Income from discontinued operations, net of INncome taxes................. $ 0.09 $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 028
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting available to common
SNArENOIOEIS e $ 0.47 $ 0.79 $ 075 3 095
Net income available to common sharsholders ... oo e e $ 0.47 $ 079 $ 075 $ 0.92
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Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
{Dollars in millions, except per share data}

2002
TOWI FEVENUBS . o o ettt e et e e e $7,963 $8,189 $8,111 $8,803
OBl BXDENSES o ot e $7,482 $7.669 $7,686 $8.593
Income from continuing Operations . ... ..o $ 289 $ 364 $ 307 $ 164
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . .................. $ 25 $ 23 $ 26 $ 397
Income before cumulative effect of change inaccounting ..ot $ 324 $ 387 $ 333 $ 561
NEUINGOME © ittt et et et e e e $ 329 $ 387 3 328 $ 561
Basic eamings per share:
Income from continuing operations available to common sharsholders .. ... .. $ 042 $ 0.62 $ 0.44 $0.23
income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes .. ........ DR $ 004 $ 003 8 0.04 $ 057
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting available to common
SharehOIderS L e $ 0.46 $ 055 $ 0.47 $ 0.80
Net income available to common shareholders .. ... i $ 046 $ 055 $ 047 3 0.80
Diluted eamings per share: .
Income from continuing operations available t© common sharehclders ... .. $ 0.40 $ 050 $ 042 $ 0.23
Income from discontinued operations, net of incometaxes .. ................ $ 0.03 $ 0.03 $ 0.04 $ 055
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting available to common
SNBSS e $ 0.44 $ 053 $ 046 $ 0.78
Net incomne available 1o cornmon shareholders . ... ..o $ 0.44 $ 0.53 $ 045 $ 078

Unaudited net income for the three months ended June 30, 2003 includes a $64 milion after-tax benefit from a reduction of a previously established
liability related 1o the Company's race-conscious underwriting settlement, $62 milllion of after-tax earnings from the merger of the Company's Mexican
operations and a reduction in policynolder liabilities resulting from the change in reserve methodology and a $31 million after-tax charge related to
previously deferred expenses. Unaudited net income for the three months ended September 30, 2003 includes a $28 million after-tax banefit from a
reduction of a previously established liabilty related to the Company’s race-conscious underwriting settlement and a $36 million benefit from a revision to
the 2002 income tax estimates.

Unaudited' net income for the three months ended March 31, 2002 includes a $48 million after-tax charge to cover costs associated with the
resolution of a federal government investigation of General American's former Medicare business. Unaudited net income for the three months ended
June 30, 2002 includes a $30 milion after-tax reduction of a previously established liability related 1o the Company’s sales practice class action
settlement in 1999. Unaudited net income for the three months ended December 31, 2002 includes a $169 million after-tax charge to cover costs
associated with the asbestos-related claims, a $20 million after-tax reduction of a previously established liability to the Company's 2001 business
reglignment initiatives and a $17 million after-tax reduction of a previously established disability insurance liabllity related to the September 11, 2001
tragedies.

18. Business Segment information

The Company provides insurance and financial services to customers in the United States, Canada, Central America, Europe, South America, South
Alfrica, Asia and Australia. The Company's business is divided into six segments: Institutional, Individual, Auto & Home, International, Reinsurance and
Asset Management, These segments are managed separately because they either provide different products and services, reguire different strategies or
have different technology reguirements.

Institutional offers a broad range of group insurance and retirement and savings products and services, including group life insurance, non-medical
health insurance, such as short and long-term disability, long-term care, and dental insurance, and other insurance products and services. Individual
offers a wide variety of individual insurance and investment products, Including life insurance, annuities and mutual funds. Auto & Home provides
insurance coverages, including private passenger automobile, homeowners and personal excess liability insurance. International provides fife insurance,
accident and health insurance, annuities and retirement and savings products to both individuals and groups, and auto and homeowners .coverage to
individuals. Reinsurance provides primarlly reinsurance of life and annuity pelicies in North America and various international markets. Additionally,
reinsurance of critical iliness policies is pravided in select international markets, Asset Management provides a broad variety of asset management
praducts and senvices to individuals and institutions.

Set forth in the tables below Is certain financial information with respect to the Company's operating segments as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those of the Campany, except for the method of capital
allocation and the accounting for gains and losses from intercompany sales, which are efiminated in consolidation. The Company allocates capital to
each segment based upon an intemal capital aiocation system that aflows the Company to more effectively manage its capital. The Company evaluates
the performance of each operating segment based upon net iIncome excluding certain net investment gains and losses, net of income taxes, and the
impact from the cumulative effect of changes in accounting, net of income taxes. Scheduled periodic settlerment payments on derfvative instruments not
quelifying for hedge accounting are included in net investment gains(iosses). The Company allocates certain non-recuring items {€.0., expenses
associated with the resolution of proceedings alleging race-conscious underwriting practices, sales practices claims and asbestos-related claims) 1o
Corporate & Cther.
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. Auto & Asset Corporate
At or for the Year Ended December 31, 2003 Institutional  Individual Home International Reinsurance Management & Other Total
X {Dollars in millions)

Premiums ..o e $ 9093 $§ 4344 $2,908 $1,678 § 2,668 $ - $ (18 $ 20,673
Universal fife and Investment-type product policy

fBES 635 1,589 — 272 — — — 2,496
Net investmentincome ............. ... . ..... 4,038 6,201 158 502 473 66 198 11,636
Other reVeNUES . .. oo e e 592 407 32 80 49 143 39 1,342
Net investment gains (losses) ................... (204) (130) (15) 4 31 9 83) (358)
Policyhelder benefits and claims. . ............... 9,932 5183 2,139 1,454 2,136 — 4 20,848
Interest credited to policyholder account balances. . 915 1,793 — 143 184 — - 3,035
Policyholder dividends ... oo 188 1,700 1 55 21 - — 1,975
Other eXpENSES oo 1,784 2,880 756 659 740 182 300 7,301
Income (loss) from continuing operations before

provision {benefit) for income taxes ............ 1,325 855 187 225 140 36 (138 2,630
Income from discontinued operations, net.of

NCOME TEXES .ot ei e et 30 30 - - — — 240 300
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of

NCOMETaXES ... i e e 26) — — - — — — (26)
Netincome ... 849 801 157 208 92 22 288 2217
Total @SSelS . . 113,743 165774 4,608 9,935 12,833 302 19,656 326,841
Deferred policy acquisition costs ................ 739 8,817 180 1,048 2,160 — 1 12,943
Goodwill, Net, ..o 59 206 157 85 100 18 3 628
Separate accountassets ... 35,632 39,619 — 504 13 — (12) 75,756
Palicyhalder liabilities .. ... o i 61,589 100,278 2,943 7,179 9,783 — (2,211) 178,571
Separate account liabifities ......... ... ... . ... 35,632 38,619 — 504 13 - (12) 75,756

. Auto & Asset Corporate
At or for the Year Ended December 31, 2002 institutional  Individual Home international Reinsurance Management & Other Totat
{Dollars in millions)

Premiums ... $ 8245 § 4,507 $2,828 $1,511 $ 2,005 $ - $ (19) $ 19,077
Universal fife and investment-type product policy

LT G624 1,379 - 144 — — - 2,147
Net investmantincome ........................ 3,818 8,244 177 481 421 59 (19) 11,261
Other revenuUes . . ..ot i e 609 418 26 14 43 166 56 1,332
Net investment gains (0sses) . .......cvvviin. .. (494) (144) (46) © 2 (4) (58) (751)
Policynolder benefits and claims................. 9,339 5220 2019 1,388 1,554 -~ 3 19,623
Interest credited to policyholder account batances. . 932 1,793 — 79 146 -~ — 2,950
Policyholder dividends .. ... ... ... oo 118 1,770 — 35 22 - — 1,942
Other expenSEs ..o vve v e 1,531 © 2,629 793 507 622 211 722 7,015
Income (loss) from continuing operations before ‘

provision (benefit) for income taxes ......... ... 985 992 173 112 127 10 (783) 1,636
Income from discontinued operations, net of

NCOME TAXES « vttt e 121 199 — — — — 151 471
Netincome (loss) ...t 759 826 132 84 84 8 (286) 1,605
Total assets{1). ... oo 98,234 1451562 4,540 8,301 9,924 190 11,0856 277,428
Deferred policy acquisiton costs ................ 608 8,521 175 945 1,477 — 1 11,727
Goodwill, net. . ... 62 223 185 193 96 18 3 750
Separate accountassets ... oo 31,935 27,457 - 307 11 — (7 59,693
Policyholder llabilities . ... ... . .. ... oo . 55497 95,813 2,873 5,883 7,387 — (2,011 165242
Separate account liabilitles ... L 31,035 27,457 — 307 i — (17) 58,683

(1) These balances reflect the allocation of capital using the Risk-Based Capital methodology, which differs from the original presentation of GAAP equity
included in Metlife, Inc.’s 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Auto & Asset Corporate
At or for the Year Ended December 31, 2001 Institutional Individual Home International Reinsurance Management & Other Total
(Dollars in miilions)
L= 32 7,288 $4563 $2,7556 3846 $1,762 $ - 3 2) $17,212
Universal life and investment-type product policy fees ....... .. 592 1,260 - 38 — - (1) 1,889
Net investment INCome . ... ... e 3,967 8,165 200 267 3380 71 127 11,187
Other reVENUSS .ttt 849 495 22 16 42 108 85 1,507
Net investment gains (108SeS). . ... .o ..(18) 853 (17) (16) (©) 25 (1,402) (579)
Policyholder benefts and clams ... ... 8,924 5233 2121 889 1,484 - 3 18,454
Interest credited to policynolder account balances . ........... 1,013 1,898 — 51 122 — — 3,084
Policyholder dividends. ..o .ooo oot N . 259 1,767 — 36 24 — — 2,086
BT BXDBNSES . v vttt e e e 1,746 2,747 800 328 491 252 ge7 7,022
Income (loss) from continuing operations before provision .
(penefit) forincometaxes . ... oo 538 1,691 39 46 87 42 (1,853) 570
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . . .. 21 36 — - - - 50 107
Net iInCome (0SS) ..o i e 382 1,085 41 14 40 27 (1,128) 473

The following table indicates amounts in the current and prior years that have been classified as discontinued operations in accordance with
SFAS 144: C )

Year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
{Dollars in millions)

Net investment income : .
1B o]t N A $ 2 $33 $34

INOMIUAL . .o R 5 50 56
COmOrEE & HNEr . . it e 45 77 79
Total NEt INVESIMENT NCOME . o o oottt et e e e e e e e e e e $ 52 $160 $169
Net investment gains (losses)
IS ONAl L . et e U $45 %156 § —
INAIVITUEL . L e e e 43 262 —
OO A & Bl . L oo e e e 333 164 —
Total net investment gains (I0SSeS) ... ..o e $421  $H82  § —
Interest Expense - .
INAIVIAUBL . . . o e $ 1 81 § =
Total INTEreSt EXDENSE « . o e s $ 1 1% -

|
|
II

Economic Capital.  Beginning in 2003, the Company changed its methodology of allocating capital to its business segments from Risk-Based
Capital (“RBC") to Economic Capital. Prior to 2003, the Company's business segments’ allocated equity was primarily based on RBC, an intemally
developed formula based on applying a multiple to the National Association of Insurance Commissioners Statutory Risk-Based Capital and included
certain adjustments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"). Economic Capital is an
intemnaily developed risk capital model, the purpose of which is to measure the risk in the business and o provide a basis upon which capital is deployed.
The Economic Capital model accounts for the unique and specific nature of the risks inherent in MetLife's businesses. This is in contrast to the
standardized regulatory RBC formula, which is not as refined in its risk caloulations with respect to the nuances of the Company’s businesses.

The change in methcdology is being applied prospectively. This change has and will continue to impact the level of net investment income and net
income of each of the Company's business segments. A porticn of net investment income is credited 1o the segments based on the leve! of allocated
equity. This change in methodology of allocating equity does not impact the Company’s consolidated net investment income or net incorme.

The following table presents actual and pro forma net investment income with respect to the Company's segments for the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001. The amounts shown as pro forma reflect net investment income that woutd have been reported in these years had the
Company allocated capital based on Economic Capital rather than on the basis of RBC.

Net Investment Income
) ' For the Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001
Actual Pro forma Actual Pro forma
(Dollars in millions}

INStUtONAL . . . et $ 3,918 $ 3,980 $ 3,967 $ 4,040
INAIVIAUAL © .o 8,244 6,155 6,165 6,078 .
AULO & HOME Lo e 177 160 200 184
IematONa] . . e 461 424 267 251
LIS =1 1o 421 382 380 354
ASSEE MaNAGEMENT . . ottt ettt e 59 71 71 89

Corporate & Oter . . e e (19) 89 127 101
Total ... e $11,261 $11,261 $11,187 $11,187
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The following table presents actual and pro forma assets for each of the Company’s operating segments at December 31, 2002, The amounts
shown as pro forma reflect assets that would have been reported in the prior year had the Company allocated capital based on Economic Capital rather
than on the basis of RBC.

Assets X

Actual(1) Pro forma

{Dollars in millions)

ISt 0N . et e $ 98,234 $ 98,810
NIV . e e e 145,162 144,073
AT B HOMIE L e e 4,540 4,360
BN oAl L . o e e e e e 8,301 7,990
RN SUI BN S o ot e e e e e e e 9,924 9,672
ASSEL MANAGEMENT . L\ o 190 320
CorDOrate & BT . e e 11,085 12,201
o= O $277,426 $277,426

(1) These balances reflect the allocation of capital using the RBC methodology, which differs from the original presentation of GAAP equity included in
MetLife, Inc.'s 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Reinsurance segment's results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 include RGA's coinsurance agreement under which it
assumed the traditional U.S. life reinsurance business of Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America. The transaction added approximately
$246 milion of premiums and $11 milion of pre-tax income, excluding mincrity interest expense.

The Individual segment’s results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes a second quarter after-tax charge of $31 miliion
resulting from certain improperly deferred expenses at an affiliate, New England Financial.

The International segment’s results of operations include the results of operations of Aseguradora Hidalgo S.A. (“Hidalgo™), a Mexican fife insurer that
was acquired on June 20, 2002. During the second quarter of 20083, as part of its acquisition and integration strategy, intemational completed the legal
merger of Hidalgo into its original Mexican subsidiary, Seguros Genesis, S.A., forming MetLife Mexico, S.A. As a result of the merger of these companies,
the Company recorded $62 milion of after-tax earnings from the merger and a reduction in policyholder liabilities resulting from a change in reserve
methodalogy.

The Institutional, Individual, Reinsurance and Auto & Home segments for the year ended December 31, 2001 include $287 million, $24 million,
$9 milion and $5 million, respectively, of pre-tax losses associated with the September 11, 2001 tragedies. See Note 9.

The Institutional, Individual and Auto & Home segments include $399 million, $87 million and $3 million, respectively, in pre-tax charges associated
with business realignment initiatives for the year ended December 31, 2001. See Note 10.

The Individual segment for the year ended December 31, 2001 includes $118 milion of pre-tax expenses assoclated with the establishment of a
policyholder liability for certain group annuity policies.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, pre-tax gross investment gains (losses) of $1,027 milion, $142 million and $(1,172) million {comprised of a
$354 million gain and an intercormpany efimination of $(1,528) million), resulting from the sale of certain real estate properties from Metropolitan Life to
Metropolitan Insurance anc Annuity Company, a subsidiary of MetLife, Inc., are included in the Individual segment, Institutional segment and Corporate &
Other, respectively.

As part of the GenAmerica acquisition in 2000, the Company acguired Conning Corporation ("Conning™), the results of which are included in the
Asset Management segment due to the types of products and strategies employed by the entity from its acquisition date to July 2001, the date of its
disposition. The Company sold Conning, receiving $108 million in the transaction and reported a gain of approximately $256 million, in the third quarter of
2001.

Corporate & Other includes varlous start-up and run-off entities, as well as the elimination of all Intersegment amounts. The elimination of
intersegment amounts relates to intersegment loans, which bear interest rates commensurate with related borrowings, as well as intersegment
reinsurance transactions.

Net investrment income and net investment gains (losses) are based upen the actual results of each segment's specifically identifiable asset portiolio
adjusted for allocated capital. Other costs and operating costs were allocated to each of the segments based upon: (i) a review of the nature of such
costs; (i) time studies analyzing the amount of employee compensation costs incurred by each segment; and (iil} cost estimates included in the
Company's product pricing.

Revenues derived from any customer did not exceed 10% of consolidated revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.
Revenues from U.S. operations were $32,312 million, $30,263 milion and $29,525 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively, which represaented 90%, 92% and 95%, respectively, of consolidated revenues.

19. Acquisitions and Dispositions

In September 20083, a subsidiary of the Company, Reinsurance Group of America, Incorporated (‘RGA”), announced a coinsurance agreement
under which it assumed the traditional U.S. life reinsurance business of Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America. The transaction closed during
the fourth quarter of 2003 with an effective date retroactive to July 1, 2003. The transaction added approximately $278 billion of life reinsurance in-force,
$246 million of premium and $11 million of income before income tax aexpense, excluding minority interest expense, to the fourth quarter of 2003,

In June 2002, the Company acquired Aseguradora Hidalge S.A. (“Hidalgo”), an insurance company based in Mexico with approximately $2.5 billion
in assets as of the date of acquisition. The Company's existing Mexico subsidiary and Hidalgo now operate as a combined entity under the name Metlife
Mexico.

In November 2001, the Company acquired Compania de Seguros de Vida Santander S.A. and Compania de Reaseguros de Vida Soince Re S.A.,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Santander Central Hispano in Chile. These acquisitions marked MetLife's entrance into the Chilean insurance markat,
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In July 2001, the Company completed its sale of Conning Corperation (“Conning”), an affiiate acquired in the acquisition of GenAmerica Financial
Corporation (“GenArnerica”) in 2000. Conning specialized in asset management for insurance company investment portfolios and investment research,

20. Discontinued Operations

The Company actively manages its real estate portfolio with the objective 10 maximize eamings through selective acauisitions and dispositions. In
accordance with SFAS 144, income related to real estate classified as held-for-sale on or after January 1, 2002 is presented as discontinued operations.
These assets are carried at the lower of cost or market.

The following table presents the components of income from discontinued operations:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
. {Dollars in miliions)

VSN N OMIE .« .ttt e e et e e $120 $ 458 5508
VSTt EXDENSE . et (68) (298) (339
Net INVeStMENt GaiNS (I0SSES). « -« v vt vttt e e 421 582 —

T8l TGS oottt ittt e e e 473 742 189
ISt XIS . ittt e e e e e e 1 1 -
PrOVISION Or MCOME XS . . . ottt e e e e e 172 270 82

Income from diSCOMtiNUEd OPEIALIONS . . . ..ottt e e $300 3471 $107

The carrying value of real estate related to discontinued operations was 3839 million and $798 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
See Note 18 for discontinued operations by business segment.

Subsequent to December 31, 2003, Metlife entered into a marketing agreement to sell one of its reat estate investments, the Sears Tower, and
reclassified the property from Reat Estate — Held-for Investments to Real Estate — Held-for Sale. The carrying value of the property as of December 31,
2003 is approximately $700 million,

21. Fair Value Information ‘

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by using available market information and the valuation methodologies
described below. Considerable judgment is often required in interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates
presented herein may not necessarily be indicative of amounts that could be realized in a current market exchange. The use of different assumptions or
valuation methodologles may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

Amounts related to the Company's financial instruments were as follows:

Notional Carrying Estimated
December 31, 2003 Amount Value Fair Value
{Dollars in millions)
Assets:
FIXE MU . L oot e $167,752 $167,752
QU SBCUNIES vttt e e et e e e e e "% 1598 3 1,598
Mortgage 10ans ONreal BSIBIE . ... .ttt e $ 26,249 3 28,259
POy 08NS . o e e $ 8749 $ 8749
SO IMVBSHMEITS .\ttt e i e et e e e e e e e $ 1826 3 1,826
Cash and cash @QUIVAIENTS . . . ..ot $ 3733 $ 3733
Mortgage 108N COMMIMENTS . . . . ...\ttt ettt e e e A $ 67¢ % - 3 @
Commitments 1o fund partnership INVESIMENTS . . ..o e e eeaas $1,380 $ - $ —
{iabilities: :
Policyholder account balances .........ooi i $ 63,957 $ 64,861
Shortterm delt ... $ 3642 $ 3642
LONGABIM JBBE oottt e e ' $ 5703 $§ 6,041
Shares subject 1o mandatory redemplion ... ... e 3 277 $ 336
Payable under securities loaned transactions ... IR U $ 27,083 $ 27,083
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Notional Carrying Estimated
December 31, 2002 Amount Value Fair Value
e — (Dollars in millions) )
Assets: "
Fixed maturities . .. ... ..o e $140,288 $140,288
Equity secunities . ... e $ 1,613 $ 1,613
Mortgage 10ans 0N real EStAIE . ... L e § 25086 27,778
Policy l0ans . ..o S $ 8580 $ 8580
SOt Ve SIMENS . o $ 1921 $ 1,921
Cash and Cash eqUIVaIBNIS . . . ..ot $ 2383 & 2323
Mortgage 10an CommMItMENtS . . ..ot e e e P $ 859 $ — $ 12
Commitments to fund partnership INVestmentS . ... oo e $1.667 8 — $ —
Liabilties,
Policynolder aCCOUNt DAIENCES . ..\ ottt et et e $ 55,285 $ 55,809
Short-term debt ..o R U $ 1181 % 1,161
Long-termdebt. .................. 1S $ 4425 § 4731
Payable under securities foaned tranSaCHONS -\ .o ’ $ 17,862 $ 17,862
Other: ‘
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary frusts. ... L. $ 1,265 $ 1,337

The methods and assumptions used o estimate the fair valugs of financial instruments are summarized as follows:

Fixed Maturities and Equily Securities
The fair value of fixed maturities and equity securities are based upon quotations published by applicable stock exchanges or received from other
reliable sources. For securities for which the market values were not readily avaiable, fair values ‘were estimated using quoted market prices of
comparable investments. '

Mortgage Loans on Real Estate, Mortgage Loan Commitments and Commitments to Fund Partnership Investments
Fair values for mortgage loans on real estate are estimated by discounting expected future cash flows, using current interest rates for similar loans
with similar credit risk. For mortgage loan commitments, the estimated falr value s the net premium or discount of the commitments. Commitments to
fund partnership investments have no stated interest rate and are assumed 10 have a fair value of zero.

Policy Loans
The carrying values for policy loans approximate fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments
The carmrying values for cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments approximated fair values due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

Policyholder Account Balances
The fair value of policyholder account balances is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows based upon interest rates currently being
offered for similar contracts with maturities consistent with those remaining for the agreements being valued.

Short-term and Long-term Debt, Payables Under Securities Loaned Transactions, Shares Subject to Mandatory Redemption
and Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Securities of Subsidiary Trusts
The fair values of short-term and long-term debt, payables under securifies loaned transactions, shares subject to mandatory redemption and
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts are determined by discounting expected future cash flows using risk rates
currently available for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The fair value of derivative instruments, including financial futures, financial forwards, interest rate, credit default and foreign currency swaps, foreign
currency forwards, caps, floors, options and written covered calls are based upon quotations obtained from dealers or other reliable sources. See Note 3
for derivative fair value disclosures.
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Corporate Profile

Metlife, Inc., through its affliates and subsidiaries, is a leading provider
of insurance and other financial services to individual and institutional
customers. The Metlife companies serve approximately 13 million
households in the U.S. and provide benefits to 37 million employees and
family members through their plan sponsors, Cutside the U.S., the
Metlife companies have direct insurance operations in 10 countries
serving approximately 8 milion customers.

Corporate Headquarters
MetLife, Inc.

One Madison Avenue

New York, NY 10010
212-578-2211

internet Address
www.metiife.com

Form 10-K and Other Information

MetLife, Inc. will provide to shareholders without charge, upon
written or oral request, a copy of Metlife, Inc.’s annual report
on Form 10-K (including financial statements and financial
statement schedules, but without exhibits) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2003. MetLife, Inc. will furnish to
requesting shareholders any exhibit to the Form 10-K upon the
payment of reasonable expenses incurred by MetLife, Inc. in
furnishing such exhibit. Requests should be directed to
Investor Relations, MetLife, Inc., One Madison Avenue, New
York, New York 10010-3690, by electronic mail
(metir@metlife.com) or by telephone (1-800-649-3593). The
annual report on Form 10-K may also be accessed at
http://ir.metlife.com and at the website of the Securities and
Exchange Commission at http://www.sec.gov.

Transfer Agent/Shareholder Records
For information or assistance regarding shareholder accounts or
dividend checks, please contact Metlife’s transfer agent:

Mellon Investor Services, LIL.C

P.O. Box 4412

South Hackensack, NJ 07606-2012
1-800-6439-3593

TDD for Hearing Impaired: 201-373-5040
www.melloninvestor.com

Trustee, Metlife Policyholder Trust
Wilmington Trust Company

1100 North Market Street

Wilmington, DE 18890

302-651-1000

www wilmingtontrust.com
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hitp://ir.metlife.com

Governance Information
hitp:/Avww. metlife. com/corporategovernance

Metl.ife News
http://metnews.metlife.com

Common Stock and Dividend Information

Metlife Inc.’'s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE) under the trading symbaol "MET.” The following table presents the
high and low closing prices for the common stock of MetLife, inc. on the
NYSE for the periods indicated. Metlife, Inc. declared an annual
dividend of $0.23 per share on October 21, 2003 and $0.21 per share
on October 22, 2002, Future dividend decisions will be based on and
affected by a number of factors, including the operating results and
financial requirements of the Holding Company and the impact of
regulatory restrictions. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations ~ Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”

Common Stock Price

2003 High Low

First quarter $29.34 $24.01
Second guarter $29.20 $26.61
Third quarter $29.58 $27.35
Fourth quarter $33.92 $28.96

Commen Stock Price

2002 High Low
First quarter $33.30 $28.67
Second quarter $34.58 $28.00
Third quarter $29.58 $22.76
Fourth quarter . $28.41 $20.75

As of March 1, 2004, there were approximately 6.8 million beneficial
sharehclders of MetlLife, Inc.




